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Narrative Report

Introduction

The Council's financial performance for the year ended 31st March 2018 is as set oul in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and ils' financial posilion is as set out in ihe Balance Sheet ond Cash Flow Statement.

These financial statements have been prepared in line with the Code of Praclice on Local Autharity Accounfing in the
Uniled Kingdom for the year ended 31st March 2018 {the Code) and the Depariment for Communifies Accounts Direclion,
Circular LG 05/2018. It is the purpose of this foreword to explain, in on easily understandable way, the finoncial facls in
relation to the Council.

This Statement of Accounts explains Derry City ond Strabane Diskict Council's finances during the financial yeor 2017718
and ils financial position at the end of that vear. |1t follows opproved occounling standards and is necessarily technical in
parts.

The purpose of the Narmalive Report is to provide information on the authority, its main objectives and stralegies and the
principail risks it faces,

Group Accounts

The Code requires Local Authorities to consider all their interests and to prepare a full set of group financial slatements
where they have material interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Dery Cily and Strabane District Council
owns 100% of the shares in Cily of Denry Airport {Operations) Limited, which commenced irading on 15t April 2010, and
accordingly Council is required to prepare Group Financial Statements incorporating the Airport. Deny City and Sirabane
District Council continues fo provide support lo CODA (Operalions) Limited o ensure it meels its' day to day warking and
lixed capital requirements. There are going concerm issues al the dirport and these are clearly outlined in the govemance
statement, note 11 and in the Group Financial Statements in notes | and 5.



The Movement in Reserves Stalement

This Statement, as set out on page 31, shows the movement in the year on the dilferent reserves held by the Council,
analysed into 'usable reserves’ (i.e. those thal can be applied to fund expendilure or reduce local taxoiion) and other
reserves. The 'Surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services' fine shows the true economic cost of providing the Council's
services, more details of which ore shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Slatement. These are different
from the statutory amounts required to be charged 1o the General Fund Balance for Local Tax purposes. The ‘Net increase
/Decrease before transfers to stalutory and ofher reserves’ line shows the slatutory General Fund Balance belore any
discrefionary iransfers to or from statutory and other reserves underiaken by the Council.

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This stalement. as set out on page 30. shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the omount to be funded from taxation. Councils raise iaxation to
cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be ditferent from the accounting cost. The taxalion position is
shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheel, as sel oul on page 32, shows the value as al the Balance Sheel date of the Council's assets and
liobilities. The net assets of the Council {assels less Habilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are
reported in two categories. The first colegory of reserves are usable reserves, ie those reserves that the Council may use to
provide services, subject fo the need to muaintain a prudent level of reserves and any statulory limilalions on their use {for
example the Capilal Recelpts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second
calegory of reserves are those that the authority Is not able to use 1o provide services. This category of reserves includes
reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become
available to provide services if the assels are sold; ond reserves that hold liming difierences shown in the Moverment in
Reserves Sialement line ‘Adjusiments belween accounfing basis and funding basis under regulalions'.

The Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Stalement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporting period. The
statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cosh fiows as operofing,
investing and financing activilies. The omount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is o key indicator of the
extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of
services provided by the Council. Investing aclivities represent the exient to which cash outfiows have been made for
resources which are inlended 1o contiibute 1o the Council's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing
activilies are useful in predicting claims on fulure cash flows by providers of capital {i.e. borrawing) lo the Council.



Performance Report

Community Planning

On 07 November 2017 Denry City and Strabane District Council, alongside its statutory and support partners, launched a
long-term plan for the City and District named its inclusive, ‘Strategic Growth Plan' {Community Pian). The Plan waos
developed in accordance with the slatutory duty of Community Planning as set oul in the Local Government Act {2014).
The duty has created a new parinership between ail the tiers of government, the community and voluntary sector and
business to improve the wellbeing of its citizens. Community Planning provides o form of strong integrated, partnership
goverance that fakes a skrategic view and is evidence based, people focused and place-centred. It helps ensure that
by working together and pooling resources we can strategically grow and improve social, economic and environmental
wellbeing for all.

The drott plan was developed as a resull of an exlensive co-design process and has been informed by a robust evidence
base. It was subject to a significant public consultotion process over the summer and early avlumn of 2017, 16 public
consullation events were held across the council area with other engogements with interested stakeholders provided on
request. 16,000 copies of a bespoke children’s version of the Sirategic Growth Plan were circuloied to all primary school
pupils in the City and District also seeking their views.

In lotal 206 responses were submitted as part of the public consultation on the draft Strategic Growih Plan/Community
Plan. This significant leedback demonsirated an overwhelming support for the Growth Plan and the aspirations within if.
The consultafion evidenced and validated the approach to co-design and co-produce as they supported the outcomes,
indicators and actions within the plan and reinforced the key need for the hransformative projects to deliver social,
economic ond environmental wellbeing and regenerafion.

The Council and its partners have convened around a common and agreed vision:
Our vision is a thriving, prosperous and sustainable City and District with equality of opportunity for all.

The Strategic Growth Plan sets oul the eight outcomes the partnership wishes to achieve between 2017 and 2032, Under
the economic wellbeling pillor the parinership aspires to be ‘better skilled and educated', ‘to prosper through a strong,
competitive economy' and to ‘live in the cultural destination of choice’. Under the environmental wellbeing pillar the
parinership aspires to 'live sustainobly - protecting the environment' and ‘to connect people and oppoerunities through
our infrastructure’. In lerms of the social pillar, the parinership aspires thal locol people will 'live long, healthy and fulfilling
lives', ‘live in a shared, equal and safe communily’ and that ‘our children ond young people have the bes) start in life'.
These outcomes have been mapped and aligned lo the drolt outcomes arficulated in the drafl Programme for
Government and central governments Ouicome Delivery Flan 2018-19.

35 population-wide indicators are also outlined within the plan to measure progress in achieving the eight cutcomes.
Over 200 aclions are also detaited in the plan including the expansion of the University of Ulster at Magee, the
development of transport infrasiructure and models of prevention and early inlervention lo reduce levels of health
inequalities and deprivation.

Combined, these actions will have a significont impact on the Derry City and Strabane Districl. The Partnership
commissioned an econcmic forecast of the impacts of the plan, ils interdependencies and risks. The economic forecast
has projected that the plan could generate capilal expenditure in the region of £3.8bn creating in turn £450m additional
Gross Value Added for our local economy. it will create 15000 additional jobs, grow the Council area's resident
population by 10.000 people and generate £100m in additional tax revenue.

The implementalion of the plan is ongoing and it will be governed by the Siralegic Growth Parinership and ils eight
outcome delivery parinerships. In accordance with the legislation, the Council and its pariners are required lo publish a
stalement on progress on achieving the outcomes, indicators and acfions within the plan within two years of publicalion -
which will be Novemnber 2019 and review the plan in 2021.

The Council is fully committed lo leading and facifitating this process wilh its parlners. For further information on the
Strategic Growth Plan for the Derry City and Sirabane Diskict Council area pleose see www.growderrystrabane.com.

One of the key risks lo delivery is ensuring the necessary finances are secured, both public and private. In this regard,
Council is progressing discussions around securing a City Growth Dea! for the City Region which it is hoped will provide
funding far the crilical calalyst projects required to transform the City Region and build on the significant progress made in
recent years.



Organisational shucture and Financial performance

The Council has been siructurally organised to ensure that it is poised and ready to deliver on outcomes and actlions
within the Stralegic Growth Plan. Three direciorates have been formed 1o align with the three pillars of social, economic
and environmental wellbeing. Our Health and Community Directorate is aligned to the social wellbeing pillar, aur Business
and Culiure direclorale is aligned to the economic pillar of wellbeing and our Environment and Regeneration directorate
haos been aligned to the environmental pillar of wellbeing. Subsidiary to the direclors, each of the oulcome delivery
parinerships have been ollocaled Heads of Service or Senior Responsible Owners which will assist the Qutcome delivery
partnership to deliver on its actions, The actions within the Sirategic Growth Plan that are atiributable to Council are
fealured within our Service Plans and the Council has aligned its performance improvement objeclives to the oulcomes.
Together this demonstrates organisational readiness for delivery of Shrategic Growth in the coming years.

The new organisational struclure and committee struclure is based on these three direclorates which are supported by
Cross- Culting support services {including Council, Finance, Legal, Human Resources, Internal Audit, Performance
Improvement and Corporale funding). Budgets are managed and conirolled on this basis. Additional budget areas are
included for City of Derry Airport and alse Capital projects and loan charges which is a key organisational priority as
identified in the Strategic Growth Plan.

For the year ended 31 March 2018 the Council increased its General Fund reserve by £101,784 io £4,794,901. The Council's
budget of £56,163,211 was adjusted by £4,235,636 represenling funds transferred to and from reserves and £1,000.000
transfemed to reserves for provision against potential non-domeslic raling appeals for the revalualion of domestic
properties in 2015, Financial performance for the year has been summarised in the table below:-

Area Annval Net Varlance
Budget Expenditure

£000 £000 £000
Cross Cutling Corporale Services 5,139 4,775 (344)
Council 1,264 1,145 (19
Healih & Community 9,445 8.951 [494)
Business & Culture 7.328 6,985 {343)
Environment & Regeneration 21,557 21,467 (20)
Caopital and loans [excluding City of Derry Airport) 5,654 5.176 {478)
City of Denry Airport {including capital and loans) 3,950 3,999 49
Other cosis/ transiers to reserves to fund other cosls {1,411} B21 2,232
Total net expenditure 52,924 53,319 393
Sources of funding:-
Rates support grant {3.757) {3.407) 150
Rates (including deraifing gront) {52.615) (53,709} {1,094}
Transfering Functions Grant {340} {340} Q
Transfers to and from reserves 4,236 4,236 0
Total funding (52,474) (53,420) (744)
{Surplus)/ Deficit 450 (101) {551)
Opening District Fund (4.694)
Closing District fund (4,795)

The surplus has been enabled by Council's efficiency programme, strong finoncial management and conlrol, ratebase
growlh and a strong growlh in Council's planning and building control income which is a positive sign of growth and
acticily in the new Council area. This has been ofiset by the impact of Central Govermment grant cuts, most notably Rates
Support Grant, which respresents a signifcant financial challenge for Council moving forward.

A detailed analysis of income and expenditure for each service area is provided in Note 2¢ fo the accounis in ling with
the "Telling the Story” format of accounts. This is then reconciled in Note 2a lo the expenditure and income included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalement.



Efficiency programme

Since the inception of the new Council, recurrent efficiencies of £2.289m have been identifed. A key part of this has been
enabled through organisational restruciuring and severance payments to ofiicers who have left the organisation.
Included within 2017/18 nel expenditure (other costs} is a sum of £418,535 relating to officer severance payments. The
Council has not had fo borow or utilise capitalisation directions to fund these costs.

As parl of the rates estimates process for 2017/18 and 2018/19, these efficiencies hove been reinvesled into the key areas
of need and growth as identified within the Strategic Growth plan. These include loan charges funding for Council's
capital plan {(£1.27m}. a major festivals fund {£500k). a thiid party capilal projects und (£75k). and further investment in
rural community services and grant aid (£167k).

identificotion of further efficiencies remains a priority for the new Council to fund further investment in Council's growth
ambitions.

Capital Expendifure

Copital expenditure is a key priorily for the new Council as identififed in the Siralegic Growlh Plan. Since inception, the
new Council has completed projects {mostly commenced by legacy Councils) to the value of £346.97m of which £15.77m
has been secured rom external sources. A further £41.879m of projects have been approved, in progress and are fully
financed of which £29.5m hos been secured from exlemal sources. Council has also recently allocated further funding of
£24.4m fo progress further projects which il is hoped will lever exiernal funding of £30.67m and deliver lotal further
investment of £55.07m. in addition. Council has a number of stralegic projects which it is aiming o progress. These will
require further rates investment and will form part of Council's City Growth Deal proposals.

Expenditure on capital projecls during the year amounted to £13,754,945. The breakdown of this expendiiure is shown in
Note 11 (Fixed Assets Schedules) to the Financial Stalements. The major items of expenditure, including work in progress,
were as follows:-

£
Brandywell Stadium 5,755,366
Vehicles & Equipment 1,729,490
Melvin 3G Pitch 950,717
Leisure and pitches 605,360
Greenways & public realm 124,712
Community Centres 205,460
Office reorganisation and IT equipment 212,759
Maritime Museum 24,010
Brooke Park Restoration 335879
Drumahoe Play 776,641
SIF Play projects 2,987,230
Strafhfoyle Play 303,628
Other Parks & Play Arecs 23,192
City of Derry Airport 51,597
Other sundry 225

Granis lo the value of £4,159,224 were received or were receivable 1o partly fund the capilal expenditure.

The Council can finance Capilal Expenditure using:

+ Loon Finance (lcan or lease)

= Grant Aid

= Capital Receipts - proceeds from the sale of capital assets

+  Repairs and Renewals/Capital Funds

«  Transters of funds from revenue resources
Details of the financing of capital expenditure for the year are shown in Note 12 to the Financiol Stalements,
The total amount oulstanding on Government Loans as al 31st March 2018 was £53.670,322. Advances of £4,774,000 were
taken up during the year. Capilal expenditure unfinanced at 315t March 2018 for which loans will be drawn down was
£9.724,719,



Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The objeclive of the Expendilure and Funding Analysis is lo demonstrate to ralepayers how the funding available 1o the
authorily {ie government grants, rates and business rates) for the year has been used in providing services in comparison
with those resources consumed or eamned by authorities in accordance with generally occepled accounting practices.
The Expenditure and Funding Analysis also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between

the Council's directorates [services or depariments]. Income and expenditure accounied far under generally accepled
accounting proctices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expendiiure Slatement.

Statement of the Council's and Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
The Council's Responsibilities
Under Section | of the Local Govemnment Finance Act {Northem Ireland} 2011 a council shall moke arangements for lhe

proper administration of ils financiol affairs. A council shall designote an officer of the council as its chief financial officer
and these orangements shall be caried out under the supervision of its chief linancial officer.

Under Regulation 7 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations {Northern Ireland} 2015 the Councill, or a
Commitlee, is required by resolufion, to approve the accounts.

These accounis were approved by the Chief Executive on 24 Seplember 2018.
The Chief Financial Officer's Responsibllities

Under Regulation 8 of the Local Government {Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015, the Chief Financial
Officer is responsible for the preparalion of the Council's Slatement of Accounts in the form direcled by the Depariment
for Communities.

The accounts must give a frue and fair view of the income ond expendilure and cash tlows for the financial year and the
financial position as af the end of the financial year.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts. the Chief Financial officer is required fo:

. observe the Accounis Direction issued by the Department for Communities including compliance with the Code
of Practice on Locol Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom

D) follow relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suilable accounting policies on a consistent
basis, and

. make judgements and estimates thot are reasonable and prudent.
The Chief Financial Officer is also reguired to:
. keep proper accounting records that are up-lo-date, and

. take reasonable sleps for the prevention and detection of froud and other inegularities.



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Scope of Responsibility

Derry City & Strabane District Council is responsible for ensuring thot its business is conducted in accordance with the low
and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically,
efficiency and effeclively.

Dery City & Strabane Dislrict Council also hos a duly under Local Govemment (Best Value) Act (Northem lreland) 2002 to
make arongements for conlinuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, Derry City & Sirabane District Council is responsible for putfing in place proper
arrangements for the govemnance of its affairs, facilitating the effeclive exercise of its functions, which includes
arrangements for the management of risk.

Derry City & Strabane District Council is required to prepare an Annual Governance Stalement which is consistent with the
principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framewaork Delivering Good Governance in Local Governmenl. A copy of the code is on
our website ot www.derystrabane.com. This statement explains how the Council meets the requirerents of Regulation 4
of the Local Government {Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northem Ireland) 2015, in relatfion to the publication of a
statement on intermal control.

The Purpose of the Governance Framewaork

The govemance fromework comprises the systems ond processes. and culture and values, by which the local governmeni
body is direcled and controlled and its activilies through which it accounis to, engages with and leads its communities. 1
enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its siralegic objectives and to consider whelher those objectives
have led lo the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significani pari of that framework and is designed to manage risk o o reasonable level,
It cannol eliminate all risk of foilure lo achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable
and not absolule ossurance of eftecliveness. The system of intemal control is based on an ongoing process designed to
identify and priorilise the risks fo the achievement of the local governmeni bady's policies, aims and objectives, to
evaluate the likelihood of those risks being reglised ond the impact should they be redlised, and to manage them
efficiently, effectively and economically.

The govemance framework has been in place at the local authorily for ihe year ended 31 March 2018 and up fo the date
of approval of the financial statements.

The governance framework
The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the Council's governance arangements include the

. Identitylng and communicating Derry City & Strabane Diskrict Councll's vision of s purpose and intended
outcomes lor citizens and service users.

The Council communicates its vision of its purpose and intended outcomes through a number of channels,
namely its community plan, local community plans, its corporate plan and its ongoing approach to
communicafions and engagement.

In accordance with Section 10 of the Local Government Act (2014) Derry City and Strabane District Counci
commenced d significant 24-month engagement and co-design process to develop @ Community Plan for the
City and District. Community Planning is defined as “a process led by Councils, in conjunction with partners and
communilies to develop and implement a shared vision for their arec, a long term vision which relates {o all
aspects of community life and which alse involves working together 1o plan and deliver betier services which
make a real difference to people’s lives.”



Foliowing a significant consullation, engagement and co-design process, a dralt Plan was opproved by the
Council and its partners on 315t May 2017 and launched for a 16-week public consullalion period {lo allow for
the summer recess pericd) closing on 15th Seplember 2017. During this fime the general public ond key
interested parlies were invited to provide their views on the content of the dratt plan through a variety of
channels and modes. The plan was published on Council's websile. Hard copies were made available in public
buildings, an online survey was developed, 14 consultalion evenls were held during the month of June,
information on the consultation evenis was published widely through adverising and ihrough a leallet, there
were daily social media posts and any feedback received from social media was logged, opinicn pieces were
developed on key elements of the plan wilh key spokespersons and circa 3,000 email invilations to the local
consultation evenls were issued to seek feedback on the plan. Stokeholder engagements with inlerested groups
were held on requesi - such as separate focus groups with Ulster Universily Staff, Ulster University students' union,
young people, Mighly Oaks Age Friendly Group and Marie Curie.

In summoaory, 206 responses were submitted as part of the consullation on the drait Sirategic Growth Plan. 144
attended the sixteen consultation events in June, 30 online survey responses and 30 writlen email responses were
received. 21 individuals responded and 39 responded on behalf of an organisafion. This significant feedback
demaonstrated an overwhelming support for the Growth Plan and the aspirations within it. The survey data
revealed an average 90% satisfaction with the ouicomes ond an 85% salisfaction with Ihe indicolors within the
rlan. The consullation evidenced and validoted the approach o co-design and co-production as they
supporied the outcomes and indicalors within the ptan and reinforced the key need for the fransformative
projects to deliver social, economic and environmenial regeneralion.

16,000 copies of a bespoke children's version of the Strategic Growlh Plan was also circulated to all primary
school pupils in the City and District. An easy read version has also been developed.,

Following this detailed public consultation and co-design process, Derry City and Strabane Distric) launched its
first Community Plan on the 07 November 2017.

All reporis are available on our dedicoled community planning website www.growdenystrabane.com

The Council alse has initiated eight local community planning processes, in each of the seven Distict Electoral
Areas and cne for Sirabane Town Centre, These local communily planning processes have engaged local
people in at least six workshops to consider the strategic outcomes for the communily plan and then how these
outcomes can be delivered in their iocal areas. This process has engoged in the region of 320 residents. Further
information on this engagement can also be found on the Community Planning pages of our website.

Pending the completion of the Strategic Community Plan, the Council agreed an interim Carporate Plan for
2017/18 which was informed by six engagement sessions which involved Elected Members and senior siaff,
approximately 260 stalf and local and regional Trade Union represeniatives. These engagement evenis were
designed fo co-develop the strategic direction and principles which formed the organisafional design. The
outputs frem these have been used fo formulate our first corporale plan and structure of the organisation. Twelve
local engagement sessions were also held early in the Council's formalion lo engage directly with cilizens and to
ascerlain their views ond aspirations for the new Council.

Copies of the droft corporate plan which includes the Performance Improvement Plan were made available in
hardcopy. on the website, and e-mail during the consullafion process. The final document is available 1o the
public (and inlerested parties) on request and via the Council's website.

The Council has a specific communicolion plan for the rales information and a dedicated website and social
media messages ore ulilised to supporl access to information by cilizens and service users. A Google URL link was
devised to manitor visitors to the rales page via social media, within 24 hours.

In addition 1o this, the Council provides a daily media service for updaling the public on corporate initiatives and
achievements through PR campaigns and initiafives, regular news stories and press releases and proactive social
media channels that are monilored and evaluated to measure reach and engagement.



Reviewing local authority’s vision and its implications for Council's governance arangemenis

Arising out of the Corporate Planning / engagement process the Council has idenlified the lollowing mission:
"Deliver improved social, economic ond environmental oulcomes for everyone.”

Our corporale objeclives are to:

1. Grow our business and facilitate cultural development,

2. Protect our environment and deliver physical regeneration.

3. Promole healthy communities.

4. Provide effeclive and facilitative cross funciional support services.

Govemance and decision-making arrangemenits were reviewed prior to the Annual Meeting in March 2015 and
the Council hos adopted a commitiee structure which reflecls the above objeclives / priosities. Accordingly,
there are é commiltees: Environmenl & Regeneration, Health & Community, Business and Cullure, Planning,
Govemance & Strategic Planning and Assurance, Audit & Risk. With exception to the inclusion of an additional
commiltee to look specifically al the development of the Local Development Plan, the governance and
decision-making arangements remain unchanged for 2017/18.

in addition. the objectives / priorities idenlified above are reflected in the organisational structure which is based
on 3 outcome focused direclorates - Environment & Regeneration, Health & Communily and Business and
Cullure plus a number of strategic support units.

These corporate objectives will be reviewed bi-annually with our various slakeholders using our Communily
Planning dalabase os a platiorm and a process of engagement will collate feedback and ensure any necessary
amendmenis our made o Councit objeclives. The corporate objectives were also cascaded into Direclorate
Delivery Plans.

Measuring the quality of services for users through the Citizen Satisfaction Survey, for ensuring they are delivered
In accordance with Council's objectives and tor ensuring that they represent the best use of resources.

The Council has reviewed {and updaled as necessary) its Customer Service Charter which sets the standards of
customer service the public can expect when contacting the Council. There is also a procedure in relation to
making comments, compliments or complaints. Updoted documentalion was subsequenily presented lo the
May 2016 meeling of the Governance and Stralegic Planning Commiltee.

Service delivery slandards were also reviewed in the context of the annual service/ delivery planning process
and work is ongoing in establishing new baselines and moniloring amrangements,

A Citizen Engugement campaign was opproved by Committee in December 2014 ihe objectives of which were
fo:

« Communicale key pieces of informafion on the new organisalion lo citizens in Strabane and Derry;

+ Generate owareness and interest amongst stakeholders, participants and the media in Oeny City & Strabane
District Council;

* Promote key messoges on community planning, citizen services, new council structure and brand; and

 Roll out Citizen Road show to visit key events and iocations.

These corporale campaigns are monitored and evoluated to determine the level of effecliveness and depth of
engagement. From this Council can idenlify potential gaps and devise methods to mitigale these.

As part of the Community Planning process a Cilizen Survey was also undertaken and the resulls published in
2015. This survey included details of cilizen salisfaction with services and is available on the link:
hitp:f fwww . denystrabane.com/Subsites/Community-Planning/Citizen-Survey-2015

At a service level, individual services underiake lailored surveys to establish customer views.



Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the executive, non-execulive, scruliny and officer
functions, with cleor delegation amangements and protocols for effective communication.

A Code of Governance was developed for the Council for the year 2017/2018, based on the seven principles set
out in the CIPFA/SOLACE 'Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: A Framework' 2014 Edition.

Terms of Reference have been documenied and approved for the Audit Committee, detailing their scrutiny
function.

Job descriptions and job specifications are in place for all Council positions including oll senior manager roles,
which clearly define and document the roles and responsibilities of senior officers. Organisation charis are in
place in each department. showing clear reporting iines. Regular senior management team meetings take
place on a fortnighlly basis and each departiment has their own arrangements in place for effective
communication including departmental meetings and siaff briefings.

Developing, communicaling and embedding codes of conduct, defining the standards of behaviour for
members and staff.

The Northern Ireland Local Govemnment Code of Conduct for Councillors came inlo force on 28th May 2014, All
Elected Members within Derry Cily and Strabane District Council have signed up to the Code of Conduct. The
Council also has Role Descriptions in place for Members. Training was provided to Members on the Code of
Conduct,

The Code of Conduct for Local government is written into Employee confracts.

The new Code of Conduct for Local Government Emplayees was issued in November 2014 and came inlo effect
for all staft from 151 April 2015, Council has embarked on a raining programme to ensure that all staff are aware
of their responsibilities in relation to the Code of Conduct. This includes a mandalory session on Council's e-
learning system as well as face to face awareness sessions.

reviewing the effectiveness of the authorily's decision-making framework, including delegation arangements,
decision making In parinerships and robusiness of data quality

Standing Qrders, Financial Procedures, a Scheme of Delegation and a Planning Scheme of Delegation have
been prepared for Demy City & Strabane District Council. In addition to this, there Is a protocol in place for the
Operalion of the Planning Commitiee. These documents clearly define how decisions are taken and the
processes and conirols required to manage risks.

Council's Lead Legal Services Officer conlinuously reviews the effectiveness of the Council's decision making
framework, including delegation arrangements and decision making.

Council appeinted an Information and Customer Services Officer in 2017/2018. One of the key funciions of this
role is to ensure that the Council is meeling the new GDPR regulations.

revlewing the effectiveness of the framework for idenlifying and managing risks and demonstraling clear
accountability

A Risk Management Strategy was reviewed and updaled in 2016 and approved by the Assurance, Audil & Risk
Committee in November 20164.

The Risk Management Strategy forms part of Derry City & Strabane District Council's internal controf and
corporaie governance framework. it has been developed io provide clarity and direction on current and future
risk management aclivity across the Council lo ensure @ consistent approach is taken to risks, which may have
an adverse impaoct on the Council's ability to achieve its strategic aims and objectives.

The Strategy delines the roles and responsibilities for risk identification and management and sets out how this is
delivered.
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A comprehensive database for managing identified risks across all services is maintained by the insurance & Risk
Manager (GRACE Governance Solutions Software). Regular meelings are held with Service Managers, Heads of
Service, Lead Qificers and Directors to assess the progress made in trealing risks and lo ascertain if new risks have
been ideniified. Regular risk monagement reporls are presented to the Assurance, Audit & Risk Commitiee.

Risk Registers are in place for all Service Areas within the Council and are reviewed on a conlinuous basis by the
Insurance ond Risk Manager.

A rolling programme is in place to ensure that each service area is reviewed at least once annually. However
high risk areas are reviewed more frequently e.g. montily / quarterly.

The Corporate Risk Register is reviewed ond monilored by the Senior Leadership Team quarierly and reported 1o
the Assurance, Audit & Risk Committee bi-annually.

Every risk within he Council’s Risk Management System has been allocaled lo a Service Manager, Head of
Service, Lead Qificer or Director.

Training is provided to senior managers by the Insurance & Risk Manager conlinuously on a cne-to-one basis, as
risk regislers are being reviewed and updated.

Derry City & Sirabane District Council agreed a new risk appetile process during 2014. Council has identified four
key corporale objectives, which set Council's overall strategic direction. Itis recognised that Council's risk
appetite will vary depending on the circumstances at a parlicular time, and also depending on the corporate
objective 1o which the risk relates. Plans are in place to mitigate agaoinst all high scoring risks.

Risk Management is embedded across all activilies of Derry City & Strabane District Council; however it is
important to nole that risk management is a conlinuous evolving process, which is monitored closely by the
Insuronce & Risk Manager, the Internal Audit Manager and the Lead Assurance Officer.

ensuring effeclive counter-fraud and anfi-conuption arrangements are developed and maintalned

The Council has a *Counter Fraud Pelicy’, which includes a Fraud Response Plan. The Policy was reviewed,
vpdated and communicoted to all members of staff during 2017/18.

The risk of fraud is identified and managed on all risk registers, Fraud risk assessments have been developed as
part of the Risk Management Framework,

The Council also has an Anti-Bribery Policy. The Policy was reviewed, updated and communicated to all
members of stalf during 2017/18.

The Internal Audit plan for 2016/17 and 2017/18 included provision for the developmen! and implementation of o
programme of fraud awareness Iraining. The fraud awareness Iraining commenced in mid-2016. Up to end of
December 2017, over two hundred staff have attended the fraining. Intermal Audit has also delivered three froud
awareness training courses for the staff at City of Derry Airport (CoDA Lid). Addilionally, ot the meeting of the
AARC on Thursday 15t December 2016, it was proposed that Fraud Awareness Training was organised and made
availoble to Members, Therefore, a Froud Awareness Training Course was delivered {o Members on 12th May
2017,

As part of internal audit assignmends, fraud risks, fraud awareness, design of sysiems to guard against fraud, sound
business praclices and ethical behaviour is discussed with management and staff generally and with direct
relevance 1o the areas under review.

enswing effective management of change and transformation

Derry City and Strabane District Council managed a seamless transfer of services and funcfions to the new
organisation in April 2015. The organisational structure of the new organisalion was clearly defined in 2015 and
has been fully embedded. Corporate values, vision and objeclives are clearly defined, A stalf engagement
stralegy has been approved by Council and routine staft engagement sessions have been held. Stafi newsletters
ore issued on a six monthly basis and regular JCNC meetings are held. Approximately £3m of efficiency savings
have been realised os o result of the creation of the new Council and the Council continues to invest these
savings into transformative projects highlighted wilhin the community plan.
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ensuring the authority’s finoncial management arrangements conform whh the governance requirements of the
CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chiet Financial Officer in Local Government (2010) and, where they dc not,
explaln why and how they deliver the same impact

The Chief Execulive is the Chief Financial Officer of Derry Cily & Sirabane District Council. In fuliilling this role, the
Chief Execulive was supported by the Lead Finance Officer during 2017/2018, a prolessionally qualified
accountant. The Chief Financial Officer leads the promotion and delivery by the whole organisation of good
financial management to ensure that public money is safeguarded at all times and vsed appropriotely,
economically, efficienlly ond effectively. The Lead Finance Officer reports directly to the Chief Execulive and is
a member of the Senior Leadership Team. The Council's govemance arangements allow the Lead Finance
Officer direct access o the Chief Executive, to other Senior Leadership Team members, the Assurance, Audil &
Risk Commitiee and External Audit. The Lead Finance Officer has the skills, knowledge. experience ond rescurces
to perform effectively in both the finoncial and non-financial areas of their role and the scope of the Lead
Finance Officer responsibilities ensure that financial malters are not compromised.

The Council's financial management arrongements conform with the governance requirements of the CIPFA
Statement on the Role of the Chiel Financial Officer in Local Government {2010) as set out in the Application
Note lo Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: A Framewaork,

ensuring the authority's assurance arangemenis conform with the governance requirements of the CIPFA
Statement on the Role of the Head ol Infernal Audit (2010) and, where they do nof, explain why and how they
deliver the same impact

The Intemal Audit Manager has a critical role within Council; helping the organisalion achieve ifs objeclives by
providing ossurance on the adequacy of its internal conirol arangements and playing a key role in promoling
good corporate governance.

The Council is satisfied thal the assurance arrangements in place conform with the governance requirements of
the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Intermnal Audit {2010).

The Internal Audit Manager helps the organisation to deliver its strategic objectives by:

1. Championing best praclice in governance, objeclively assessing the adequacy of govemnance and
management of exisling risks. commenting on responses fo emerging risks and proposed developments; and

2, Giving an objective and evidence based opinion on all aspects of governance, risk management and internal
control.

The Internal Audit Manager:

1. Has regular and open engagement across the organisation, particularly with the Leadership Team and the
Audit Commitiee,

2. Leads ond directs and internal oudit team thol is resourced to be fit for purpose; and

3. Is professionally qualified and suitably experienced.

ensuring elfective arrangemenis are in place for the discharge of fhe monitoring officer function

The effective amangements for the discharge of the monitoring officer functions are ultimately overseen by the
Chief Executive. However, the Council's Lead Legal Services Officer will provide conlinuous advice and
guidance in relalion to all of these areas.

ensuring effective amangements are in place for the discharge of the head of paid service function

The effective arangements for the discharge of the head of paid service funclions are ullimately overseen by
the Chief Execulive. The Chief Execufive will be supporied in this role by the Senior Leadership Team.
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underiaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identfified In CIPFA's Audit Committees: Practical
Guidance for Local Authorities

Derry City & Strabane District Council has an Assurance, Audit & Risk Committee. The Commitlee is a Sianding
Committee of Council and meels monihly. 14 Elected Members and 1 {externolly recruited) independent advisor
sit on the Committee. All meetings are atitended by the Chief Execulive, the Directors, the Lead Assurance
Officer and the Internal Audil Manager. A represeniative from the NIAQ is inviled io altend all meelings.

The Audit Commitlee oversee the work of the Intemal Audit Section including the approval of the annual
programme of work. The Internal Audit Service operates to the Public Seclor Internal Audit Standards 2013. The
Council’'s assurance armangements conform to the govemnance requirements of the CIPFA Stalement on the Role
of the Heod of Internal Audit (2010).

Audit Committee Terms of Relference have been documented and approved by the Commitiee. The terms of
reference sei out a clear statement of purpose that it will provide an independeni assurance on the adequacy
of the Council's risk management framework ond associated control environment, It will provide on
independent scrutiny of the Council's financial and non-financial performance 1o the extent that it exposes it to
risk and weakens the conirol environment.

ensuring complionce with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and procedures, and that expenditure
is lawful

The Lead Assurance Officer leads on risk management activities within Council, in line with the Council's Risk
Monagement Slrategy. Aclivities have focused on the development, monagement, monitoring and reporling of
risk registers. Corporate. departmental and operational risk registers are in ploce across the organisation.

Managers are aware of their responsibility for ensuring:

» Compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and procedures.

= Compliance with statutory responsibilities with regard to Heallh & Safety.

= That expenditure is lawful within their area of responsibility.

+ That staif conduct council business in accordance with the law and proper standards.

* That public money, for which they are responsible, is safeguarded and properly accounted for, ond used
economically, efficiently and effectively.

The Council has an in-house legal team, which contributes to providing ossurance that relevant laws and
regulations are complied with. The Chief Financial Officer is the designated Officer responsible for ensuring that
expenditure is lawful ond ensuring the proper adminisiralion of the Council's financial affairs.

All commitiee reporis are obliged io note any legal or financial issues arising. Council has a scheme of
delegation in respect of officer decisions and also has o reporting policy in respect of delegated decisions and
maintains a regisier of such decisions in line with the policy.

In addition o this, when corrying out oudits, Internal Audit will carmry out tesling to ensure that relevant laws and
regulations, internal policies and pracedures are in place and adhered lo, and that expendilure is lawful.
Internal Audit use a system of tisk based auditing and all high risk areos are audited as a malter of pricrity and in
line with the Assurance, Audit & Risk Commitiee's approved Audil Needs Assessment.

whistleblowing and for receiving and investigating complaints from the public

Derry City & Strabane Distict Council's Whistleblowing Policy was presenied lo and approved by the Assurance,
Audit & Risk Committee in November 2015, Following this it was communicated to all staff. The Whistleblowing
Policy was reviewed and updated in April 2017 and presented to the Assurance, Audit & Risk Committee in May
2N7.

The Council has a Customer Service Charter, which sets the standards of customer services the public can expec!

when contacting the Council. There is also a procedure in relation to making comments. complimenits or
complaints,
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ideniifying the development needs of members and senior officers in relation to thelr sirategic roles, supported by
appropriate training

There is a Learning and Development Programme agreed for Members for the period 2014 -2019. This Programme
was developed following complelion of a Member Training Needs Analysis and covers all identified learning and
developmenl needs required {o support Members to effectively fulfil their role within Council.

Council has also achieved the NI Charter for Elected Member Development and is progressing to the higher
Charier Plus standard.

The Council has an appraisal process for its employees, which is linked to job descriptions and the Local
Govemment competency framework.

In addition o this, there is also a considered approach o iraining as training needs are idenlified by senior
officers in relation to their strotegic role.

establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the community and other stakeholders,
ensuring accouniability and encouraging open consuitation

To facilitate clear channels of communicaotion with all sections of the community and other stokeholders the
Council ulilised the following approaches / mechanisms in 2017/18:

» Community Planning Sessions - strategic and local.

» The establishment of 8 outcome delivery partnerships

* Corporate Plan,

* Websile, media placements and social media engagement through various platforms and channels for various
service-users i.e. corporate, festival and events, sports and leisure etc.

* Equality group established to assist in development of the Communily Plan, thus ensuring equality was at the
forefront of participation and engagement.

* Elecied members acting as spokespersons for the local govement organisalion.

+ Council and Committee meetings - open meelings and communicating key messaging derived from the
Council meelings as well as live-streaming of full Council meetings.

* Database development for communily services and business and cuitural orgonisations.

= Specialist interest database for events and initiafives.

* Service / issue specific engagement including Children and Young People and Civic Alcohol Forum, for
example.

* Media database for local, regional and ROl media.

* Regular e-zine programme of information for dotabase groupings.

* Improved access to commiltee meeling ogenda, reports and minutes via website and 'app’ service

enhancing the accountability for service delivery and effectiveness of other public service providers

According fo the Community Planning duly the Community Planning Parinership is due to publish o statement of
progress on its community plan in November 2019. The Strategic Community Planning Partnership meels in public
each quarter. During these meetings key presenlalions are given on progress on initiatives within the communily
plan. The Council has also led the establishment of eight outcome delivery partnerships and eight outcome
delivery plans with named "aclion leads"” tasked with co-ordination and reporiing on the actions to assist in the
delivery of the community plan, A websile hos aiso been developed to aid communication and reporling on
progress of the community plan www.growdenystrabane.com

Moreover, arange of public service providers often frequently attend Council Commitiees lo present plans and

stralegies. Council led parinerships - such as the PCSP - facilitate performance monitoring and reporting of police
performance.
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incorporaling good governance arrangements in respect of parinerships and other joint working as identified by
the Audit Commilssion’s report on the governance of partnerships, and reflecling these in the authority's overall
govemnance arrangements.

The Council continuously sirives to have the highest standords of governance amangements in place and
endeavours to ensure that its partners also have high standards of governance arrangemenits in place. The
Council reviews its governance amangements regularly 1o take account of best praclice guidance.

Morecver, arange of public service providers often frequently attend Council Committees to present plans and
strategies. Council led parinerships - such as the PCSP - facilitate performance monitoring and reporting of police
performance.

The Local Govermnment Act {Ni) 2014 legislated the Council's general power of compelence enabling a Council
lo take any action it considered appropriate provided the aclion was nol prohibited by any other legislation.
Councils have been provided with the ability to act in their own interests and to develop innovative approaches
to addressing issues in their area.

Decisions taken under the power of general competence must be taken in line with the council's standing orders
ond council's constitution. There is no such provision for such decisions o be taken under the Council's scheme
of delegation.



Review of Effecliveness

The authority has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its system of intemal
confrol. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the executive managers within Council who have
responsibility for the developmeni and maintenance of the governance environment, the Internal Audit's annual repor,
and also by comments made by the external auditors,

The following process has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the govemence framework;

. the authority

A Committee Structure was in place within Derry Cily & Strabane District Council during 2017/2018 consisting of
the following:

* Governance & Strategic Planning Commitiee;

* Planning Commitiee;

* Business & Cullure Commitiee;

* Health & Community Commitiee;

* Environment & Regeneration Committee; and

* Assurance, Audit & Risk Commiitee.

. the execulive

Direclors, Heads of Service and Lead Officers completed an Annual Assurance Slatement for 2017/2018 for their
Direclorate/Service Area. In signing the Assurance Statements, opinions were informed by the following:
= Assurcnce from the relevant Depariment's management leam.

+ Corporale and Departmental Service Plans including Key Performance Indicators.

« Service Risk Registers.

+ Operational policies and procedures.

* Regular management and monitoring information.

¢ Internal and external audit reports,

= Administralive procedures {including segregation of duties).

* Management supervision.

= A system of delegation and accountability.

. The Audit Committee / Overview and Scrutiny Commitiees / Risk Management Committee

Denmy City & Strabane District Council has an Assurance, Audit & Risk Commitiee. The Commitiee is a Standing
Commiltee of Council and meets monthly. 14 Elected Members and 1 {externally recivited) independent advisor
sit on the Commitiee. Meelings are attended by the Chief Execulive, the Directors. the Lead Assurance Olfficer
and the Infemal Audit Manager. A representafive from the NIAQ is inviled o altend all meefings.

The Audit Commiliee provides an independent assurance on the adequacy of the Council's risk management
framework and associaled conlral environment. |} provides an independent scruliny of the Council's financial
and non-financial performance to the extent that it exposes it {o risk and weakens the control environment.

. Internal oudit

Dermy City and Strabane District Council has o dedicated in-house internal audit team. The work of the Internal
Audit Seclion is directed by and approved by the Assurance, Audit & Risk Committee,

The key challenge for the Intemnal Audit Section in 2017-2018 was to continue to camy out the planned audit work
and to provide an appropriate level of assurance to the Council whilst also delivering on a number of competing
demands. The Audit Plan was not completed in full for 2017/2018, however, despite ihis fact the Internal Audit
Manager is satisfied that a significant amount of assurance work was caried out and the associated audit
reports were provided to the Commitiee on high risk areas facing the organisation, Internal Audit also provided
advice and guidance confinuously during 2017/18 throughout the Council in relation to audit, risk and
govemance issues. In addilion to this, the Internal Audit team achieved ils target for the delivery of Fraud
Awareness Training, wilh over 200 staff now having received this training.

The general level of control in the organisation remains at satisfactory. In preparing the overall audil opinion the

Internal Audit Manager reviewed all oudit and risk aclivity camied out in the period April 2017 to March 2018 and
ploced some reliance on the work caried out by External Audit.
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Other explicit review/assurance mechonisms

Risk Management
Risk Management is embedded across all the acilivities of Council and is a continuously evolving process, which

is monitored closely by the Insurance & Risk Manager. Risk Regislers are in place for all Service Areas within the
Council and a comprehensive database is maintained for managing risks and action plans. Risk Management
Reports are presented quarterly to the Senior Leadership Team and the Assuronce, Audil & Risk Commitlee.

External Funding

Exlernal funding received throughout the year is subject to independent audits from the relevant funders i.e.
Europe, Government Departments, SEUPB etfc.

Local Government Audit

Work carried out by the Local Government Auditor during 2017/2018 is also used by the Councit as an additional
assurance mechanism.

Health & Sately
The management of Heolth & Safety within the organisation is a key pricrity for all staif. Demry City and Strabane

District Council received the OHSAS 18001 occreditation in 2015. As a result of having this accreditation the
Council is subject to three extemal audits per annum, The Council has continued to retain this accreditation
during 2017/18 with no major non-conformances idenlified.

City of Demny Airport

City of Derry Airport {CODA) Cperations Lid became an incorporated enfity on 1st April 2010 and is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Deny City & Strabane District Council. At that time some assets and employees belonging to
the Council were fransierred aver lo the new Company. Derry Cily & Slrabane District Council, as port of the
Annual Rates Estimates, approved an annual revenue subvention to CODA Operations Lid for 2017/2018. CODA
Operalions Lid is governed by a Board of Directors, which meets monihly. The Board of Directors consists of ¢
Directors / Members including 4 non-executive Directors (including the Chairman}, 3 Elected Members from Derry
City & Sirabane District Council, Derry City & Strabane Dislrict Council's Chief Executive and Lead Finance
Officer. The Lead Assurance Officer attends the Board meetings as an observer. The Board meetings are also
atiended by the Company Secretary and representolives from RCA {Management Company). Dery Cily &
Strabane District Council's Intermnal Audit Section deliver the annual Internal Audit Plan and a Risk Management
Service for CODA Operations Lid is also provided by Council. All reports are presented to CODA's Assurance,
Audit & Risk Commitlee. which meets quarterly. Work undertaken at CODA Operations Lid is also discussed al
Council's Assurance, Audit & Risk Commiitee. CODA Operations Lid have their own external auditors. The
external auditors of CODA (Operations) Limited have included a “moleriol uncertainty relaling to going
concern” paragraph in their audit opinion for 2017/18 but have not maodified their audit opinion in respect of this.
The Direclors acknowledge thal there remains a material uncertainty relating to going concermn due 1o funding
discussions however they consider it appropriate to prepare the financial statements on @ going concermn basis,

As a resull of the withdrawal of the London Stansted route by Ryanair, support wos secured with the Depariment
for Transport (DfT} in early 2017 lo operate a Public Service Obligation (PSO) route to Landon for an initial two-
year period. Additional support waos also agreed with DCSDC to provide its shore of funding for the new PSO
route, Probable changes to the funding structure of the PSO from May 2019 would require significont additional
funding commitment which DCSDC has indicated it is not presently in a position to provide. In order lo address
this going concern issue the company is in discussion with the Northern Ireland Executive and the DIT in relation
1o the funding of the PSO route beyond 2019. The company requires access to the £2.5m Route Development
Fund set aside by the Northern Ireland Executive which tagether with the DIT input will enable the London PSO to
continue afier May 2019, On the basis of the discussions to dale, the Directors are hopeful that this funding will be
released in which case DCSDC's current subsidy will be sufficient to fund the airport at its current level of
operafion until 31st March 2021.

In the event that these funds are not secured, DCSDC's current subsidy will be sufficient to meet the cost of
operalions at a reduced level for a minimum period of six months after May 2019 during which the viability of the
airport over the short and medium term will be considered and appropriate actions taken.

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of Ihe effecliveness of the govemnance
framework by the Assurance, Audit /& Risk Commiltee/ Overview and Scruting Committee/ Risk Management
Commiltee, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure confinuous improvement of the system is in ploce.
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Significant Governance Issues

In response lo the issues raised in the Annual Governance Statement for 2016/2017, we can confirmn that these issues were
highlighted in appropriale risk registers, risk owners ollocated and actlions were put in place o address them. Aclions
taken in managing these Issues were reported as appropriate to the Assurance, Audit & Risk Commitlee. However, it
should be noled that given the nalure of some of the risks identified, some actions are still ongoing.

As part of the process of preparing this year's Annuol Goverance Statement the Chief Executive, Direclors, Heads of
Service and Lead Officers have been asked to consider significant govermnance issues that require action and disclosure.
The most significani issues for the Council are detailed below:

Governance Issue

Proposed Action

As noted in the Review of Effectiveness there remains a
material uncertainty around going concern at CODA
Operations Ltd. The development of new routes for CODA
Operations Ltd was a key risk and challenge for 2017/2018
and continues to be for 2018/19. Counci! was awarded
£2.5m from the Northern Ireland Executive in October
2016 for route development; however, the Council have
not been able to access this funding due to the current
political uncertainty.

The company is in discussion with the Northern Ireland
Executive and the DfT in relation to the funding of the P50
route beyond 2019. On the basis of the discussions to date,
the Directors are hopeful that the required funding will be
released in which case DCSDC's current subsidy will be
sufficient to fund the airport at its current level of operation
until 31st March 2021,

In the event that these funds are not secured, DCSDC's
current subsidy will be sufficient to meet the cost of
operations at a reduced level for a minimum period of six
months after May 2019 during which the viability of the
airport over the short and medium term will be considered
and appropriate actions taken.

Central Government reduced budgets and political
uncertainty is currently causing Council significant financial
issues. The Rates Support Grant has been reduced by over
9% and central government grant cuts have had a direct
rates impact of 0.23% in 17/18 and 0.76% for 18/19.

A detailed report was presented to Council advising Members
of the Central Government funding cuts and their
implications. Approval was obtained to proceed with a 7
Council detegation to Government following recent
confirmation of funding cuts.

There were a number of high scoring residual risks facing
Council including the implications of central government
funding reductions; the inability to avail of funding from
the NI Assembly for CODA and the inability to maintain
existing or develop new routes at City of Derry Airport.

All risks identified during the risk management process are
subject to continuous monitoring and review.

Action ptans are in place for all high scoring risks and these
are reviewed and monitored continuously to ensure that they
are being implemented.

Risk Management is reported quarterly to the Senior
Leadership Team and bi-annually to the Assurance, Audit &
Risk Committee.

In addition to this, Internal Audit have a system in place of
Risk Based Auditing — essentially meaning that ail risk
registers are subject to audit as the Strategic & Operational
audit plans are being delivered.

The NWRWMG Residual Waste Project was abandoned
during 2013/2014.

In common with other Councils in Northern Ireland, there
is a continuing risk that the Council would incur fines for
non-achievement of Waste Management targets.

Derry City and Strabane District are at present meeting
residual waste to landfill targets through centracts procured
through The North West Region Waste Management Group.
The Group are shortly to retender this service with a view to
securing 2 longer medium term contract with a residual
waste treatment provider. The Council will also shortly
commence a review of its Waste Management Plan and will
use this opportunity to consider longer term options.
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Interna! Audit Reports — Improvement Needed: Internal audit recommendations, agreed with Management,

* Waste and Environmental Management - to be implemented within agreed timeframes. Follow up
recommendations have been made in the following areas: |audits to be completed as per the Audit Plan.

- Enforcement of Environmental Legislation; Internal Audit are working closely with Management to
- Site licences and working plans; ensure that all of the recommendations made as a result of
- Waste Management; the audits are implemented as soon as possible.

- Street Cleansing;

- Bulky waste collections;

- Commercial waste; and

- Contract Management.

* Licensing ~ a number of recommendations were made to
help improve the audit trail evidence going forward so that
the licensing section is able to provide assurance that key
risks are being managed effectively across the various
licence types and to ensure that the necessary information
for review and decision making is provided to
management and Committee.

High levels of absenteeism. Management are continuously monitoring absenteeism and
introducing additional control measures to try to reduce the
figures. A new Attendance Policy was introduced during
2017/18 and absence levels reduced by 0.8%.

Absenteeism will be continuously monitored during
2018/2019,

We propose over the coming vear to lake steps fo address the above matters lo further enhance our governance
arangements, We are salisiied that these steps will address the need for improvements that were identified in our review
of effectiveness and will monitar their implementalion and operation as part of our next annual review.

Signed Date 24 Septernber 2018
Chief Financial Office.

signed % w7 Dote 24 September 2018
Chalr of Assurance, Audit and Risk Committee K/&/2e7 é’w‘é_’

On behalt of the Commiitee of Derry City and Strabane District Council or the Members of the body meeting as a whole
and by the Chief Executive.
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REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

INTRODUCTION

The Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations {Northemn Ireland) 2015 require larger local government bodies
o prepare a remuneration report as pari of the statement of accounts,

ALLOWANCE AND REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS

COUNCILLORS

Allowances are payable by councils to councillors and commiltee members under Part 3 of the Local Govemment

Finance Act [Norihern ireland) 2011 and The Local Government {Payments to Councillors) Regulations {(Northem Ireland)
2012, which came into operation on 1 April 2012,

Guidance and determinations on Councillors' Allowances applicable from 1 April 2017 was issued by the Depariment for
Communities on 15 February 2017 {in the update Circular LG 03/2017). Details of the allowances poid to individual
councillors are published on council websites.

Following local elections on 22 May 2014, 462 councillors were elected to the 11 new councils for a tour year term. Derry
City and Strabane District Council had 40 councillors in 2017/18.

SENIOR EMPLOYEES

The remuneralion of senior employees employed by the Council is determined by the Council in line with that determined
by the Nalional Joint Council (NJC) for Local Government Services. Senior slaft are those statt who are members of the
Execulive Management Team/Senior Management Team,

Council appoiniments of employees are made in accordance with the Local Government Statf Commissions’ Code of
Procedures on Recruilment and Selection, which requires appoiniment to be on merit and on the basis of fair and open
competition.

Unless otherwise stated below, the officials covered by this report hold appoiniments which are open-ended.
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ALLOWANCES PAID TO COUNCILLORS

The folal amount paid to Councillors by way of ollowances, under Part 3 of the Local Government Finance Act {Northern
Ireland) 2011 and the Local Government {Payments to Councillors) Regulations {Norihern Ireland) 2012 was:

Table 1: Total Allowances paid to councillors {audited information)

Allowance 2017/18 2018417
Total Allowances Number of Councillors Total Allowances Number of
£ receiving the Allowance £ Councillors receiving
the Allowance

Basic Allowance 579,237 41 572,563 401
Mayor Allowance 30,113 ] 30,197 1
1Depuiy Mayor 7.528 1 7.549 1
Allowance

Special 71,408 i? 70,829 22
Responsibility

Allowance

Dependents’ Carers 5,462 3 6,289 5
Allowance

PCSP Allowance 6,840 11 7,500 11
|IEmployer Costs 128,250 - 136,931 -
Mileage Allowance 28,303 20 37,024 24
lCourses/ 380 - 7,358 -
Conferences Visils

{registration &

joining fees)

Traove! and 3.427 10 943 -
Subsistence

General Secretarial 1,766 41 - -
Services

Other Costs 1.605 41 -
Communication 5,353 4] 4,643 12
ond Support Costs

TOTAL ALLOWANCES 849,472 - 881,825 -

Details of the allowances paid to individual councillors in 2017/18 are published on the council website at

www.dermnystrabane.com.
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of senior employees covers the Execulive Management Team/Senior Management Team. The following
lable provides details of the remuneration paid to senior employees:

Table 2: Remuneration of Senior Employees - including salary (audited information)

Officers 2017/18 2016/17
Salary (Full Bonus Benefits in Total Salary (Full Bonus Benefits in| Tolal
year Payments | kind {to year Payments | kind {tc
equivalent in nearest equivalent in nearest
brackets £100) brackets £100)
where £'000 where £'000
applicable) £'000 opplicable) £'000 £'000

£'000 £'000 £'000
Chief Executive - 110-115 0 o] 110-115 105-110 0 0] 105-110
John Kelpie
|Director of Business 80-85 t] 0 80-85 80-85 0 0] 80-85
& Culture - Stephen
Gillespie
Director of Health & 80-85 0 0 80-85 75-80 0 0] 75-80
Communily - Karen
McFarland
Direcior of 80-85 0 0 80-85 75-80 0 0] 75-80
Environment &
Regeneration -
Karen Philips
Direclor of Legacy - 65-70 0 0] 6570 65-70 0 0] 45-70
Oonagh McGillion

Councils are required fo disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of Ihe Execulive
Management Team/Senior Manogement Team and the median remuneration of the Councils workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Execulive Management Team/Senior Management Team in
the financial year 2017/18 was £110k-115k . This was 4.45 times the medion remuneration of the workforce, which was

£24,148.
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Table 3: Relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive Monagement Team/Senlor
Management Team and the median remuneration of the Councils worklorce {audited information)

2017/18 2016/17
Salary Band of Highest Paid member of the 110115 105-110
Execulive Monaogement Team/ Senior
Management Team
Median Totol Remuneralion £000 24 24
|Ratio 4.65 4.34

In 2017/18, no employees received remuneration in excess of the highest paid member of the Execulive Management
Team/Senior Management Team,

Total remuneration includes salary, bonus payments and benefits in kind.

Salary
“Salary” includes gross solary, overtime, and any gralia payments.

Bonus Payments

Bonus payments are based on performance levels attained ond ore made as part of the appraisal process. Bonuses relate
to the pertormance in the year in which they become payable 10 ihe individual. The bonuses reported in 2017/18 relale to
performance in 2017/18.

Benefils in Kind
The monetary value of benefils in kind covers any benefits provided by the employer and treated by HM Revenue and
Customs as a taxable emolument.

Exit Packages for stalf
The number of exit packages provided to all staff by the Council, fogether with total cost per band and total cost of the
compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table below:

Table 4; Exit Packages {(audited information)

2017718 2016717

Number of Number of Total Total Cost of | Number of Number of Total Total Cost

Compulsory Other Number of | Packogesin | Compulsory Other Number of of
Severance Redundancies | departures Exit each Cost |Redundancies| depariures Exit Packages

Package Cost Band agreed |Packogesin Band agreed Packages | in each
each Cost £'000 in each | CostBand
Band Cost Band £000

£0 - £20,000 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 11
1£20,001 - £40.000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
£40.001 - £60.000 0 0 Q 0 0 0 0 0
£460,001 - £80,000 0 0 0 Y | 0 1 1 80
|£80.001 - £100.000 0 0 0 o] 0 3 3 249
£100,001 - £150,000 0 3 3 418} 0 8 8 997
£150,001 - £200,000 0 0 0 0 0 o] 0 0
rToIaI 0 k| 3 418 0 14 14 1337
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Pension Benefits

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Northem lreland) {the Scheme) which is a funded defined benefit pension
scheme, which provides refiremeni benefits for council employees on a “career average revalued eamings” basis from 1
April 2015, Prior to that date benefits were built up on a *flinal salary” basis.

From 1 April 2015, a member builds up retiremeni pension at the rate of 1/49th pensionable pay for each year. Pension
benelits in relation to membership between 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2015 were built up at the rale of 1/60th pensionable
pay for each year of membership. There is no automatic lump sum provided in respect of membership after 31 March
2009. Pension benefils in relation to any membership before 1 April 2009 were built up at the rate of 1/80th (pension) and
3/80ths {lax-free lump sum) of pensionable pay for each year of membership up to 31 March 2009. At retirement, members
may give up some pension for additional lump sum. subject to HM Revenue and Customs {HMRC] limiis. The conversion
rate is £12 addilional lump sum for every £1 of pension given up.,

Councillors have been able o join the Scheme since May 201 1. The Scheme application is modified to reflect the fact
that councillors hold an elected office. Councillor members have always accrued pension on a career average basis.
Prior to 1 April 2015 pension was accrued at a rate of 1/60ih and thereafter at a rate of 1/4%th.

The Scheme is funded by coniributions made by both employees/councillors and employers. Prior to | April 2009, a
member's contribution rates were fixed at 6% of their pensionable remuneration {excepi for those who were entilled to
contiibute to the Scheme al 5% before 1 February 2003 and have remained in continuous employment), Tiered member
contribution rates, determined by the whole-time equivalent rate of pay, were infroduced from 1 April 2009. From 1 April
2015, the member coniribulion rates are determined on the aclual rate of pay.

The ranges for the bands for liered contribution rales are revised by the Department for Communities in April each year in
accordance with the increase applied lo a pension in payment, The bands, effective from 1 April 2017, were as follows:

Table 5: Employee Confribution Rates

Band Range Employee Contribution Rate
1 £0-£14,100 5.5%
2 £14,101 - £21,500 3.8%
g £21,501 - £35,900 6.5%
4 £35,901 - £43,400 6.8%
5 £43,401 - £85,800 B8.5%
6 More than £85,800 10.5%

Employers' contibution rates are determined by the fund's actuary every three years al the tiennial valuation. A formal
triennial actuariol voluation of the Fund as at 31 March 2016 was carried out in 2016/17 and set the employer contribution
rales for the 3 years commencing 1 April 2017 as follows:
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Tahle &: Employer Contribution Rates

Year Employer Contribution Rate
| April 2017 - 31 March 2018 18%
| April 2018 - 31 Morch 2019 19%
1 April 2019 - 31 March 2020 20%

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations (Northern Irefand) 2014 were made on 27 June 2014 and The Local
Governmenl Pension Scheme {Amendment and Transitional Provisions) Regulations [Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on
30 June 2014. Both sels of regulations are effective from 1 April 2015,

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011 and therefore have not accrued significant benefits thus
far. However, the in-year pension contributions made by the Council for all councillors during 2017/18 was £75,233.

The value of pension benefils of the most senior management of the Council accrued during the year was as follows;

Table 7: Pension Benefits of senior staff {audited information)

Officers Accrved Pension at  |Real increase in pension| CETV at CETV af Real increase in
pension age as at and related lump sum at| 31/3/18 317317 CETV
31/3/18 pension age
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Chief Execulive -
John Kelpie 20-25 plus lump sum 20-25 2.5-5 plus lump sum 0-2.5 338 290 28
Director of Business
& Culture - Stephen | 15-20 plus Jump sum 0-2.5 0-2.5 plus lump sum 0-2.5 219 192 15
Gillespie
Director of Health &
Community - Karen | 35.40 plus lump sum 70-75 0-2.5 less lump sum 0-2.5 457 404 27
McFarland
Director of
Environment &
Regeneration - 15-20 plus fump sum 10-15 | 0-2.5 less lump sum 0-2.5 171 148 [
Karen Philips
Director of Legacy -
Oonagh McGillion 20-25 plus lump sum 25-30 0-2.5 less lump sum 0-2.5 273 253 7

The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)

This is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benelils accrued by a member at a particular
point in lime. The benefils valued are the member's accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from
the scheme. it is a payment made by a pension scheme or amangement to secure pension beneiits in another pension
scherne or amangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to iransfer Ihe pension benefits they have
accrued in their lormer scheme. The pension figures shown relate 1o the benefits that the individual has accrued as a
consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which
disclosure applies. CETVs are calculated in accordance with The Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer Values)
{Amendmenl) Regulalions and do not take account of any aclual or potential reduction to benefits resulting from Lifetime
Allowance Tax which may be due when pension benefils are taken.

The real Increase in the value of the CETV

This refiecls the increase in CETV effeclively funded by Ihe employer. It iokes account of the increase in accrued pension
due to inflation, conlribufions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits fransierred from anolher pension
scheme gr arangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.

hief Efeculive
24 Septbmber 2018
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Cedificate of the Chiet Financlal Officer

| certify that:

(@)  the Stalemenl of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2018 on pages 30 to 115 has been prepared in the

form directed by the Department for Communities and under the accounting policies sel out on pages 34 {o 58

b} in my opinicn the Statement of Accounis gives a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash

flows for the financial year and the financial position os al the end of the financiai year ending 315t March 2018.

[/

Financlal Officer

Date 24 September 2018

Council Approval of Statement of Accounts

These accounis will be approved by resolution of Council in September 2018,

Kieme [ Pt

Chair of Assurance, Audit and Risk Commitiee

Date 24 Septernber 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DERRY CITY AND STRABANE DISTRICT
COUNCIL

Opinion on financial statements

| have audited the financial statements of Derry City and Strabane District Council and its group for
the year ended 31 March 2018 under the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005. The
financial statements comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement, together with the Group Accounts and
the related notes. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set
out within them. I have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is described in
that report as having been audited.

In my opinion the financial statements:

* give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and statutory requirements and
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017-18, of the
financial position of Derry City and Strabane District Council and its group as at 31 March 2018
and its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

* have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government (Accounts and Audit)
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 and the Department for Communities’ directions issued
thereunder.

Emphasis of matter

I draw attention to Note 11 of the Council financial statements and Note 5 of the Group financial
statements which outlines the potential impact on the carrying value of assets connected to the City
of Derry Airport should the going concern issue of the airport crystallise. My audit opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Basis of opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (I1SAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of this certificate. My staff and | are independent of Derry
City and Strabane District Council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Financial
Reporting Council’s Revised Ethical Standard 2016, and have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. | believe that the audit evidence obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Other Information

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the other information included in the Statement of
Accounts. The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts
other than the financial statements, the parts of the Remuneration Report described in the report as
having been audited, and my audit certificate and report. My opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and | do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material



misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in
this regard.

Opinion on other matters
In my opinion:

s the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance
with the Department for Communities’ directions made under the Local Government
{Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015; and

* the information given in the Narrative Report for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 is
consistent with the financial statements.

Responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Council’s and Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities,
the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the
financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with the Local Government
(Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

I am required to obtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website www. frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of my certificate.

This report is made solely to the Members of Derry City and Strabane District Council in accordance
with the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and for no other purpose, as specified in
the Statement of Respansibilities of the Local Government Auditor and Local Government Bodies.

Matters on which | report by exception
I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which | report to you if:

s in my opinion:
o the Annual Governance Statement:

* does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017-18;

» does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department for
Communities;

= is misleading or inconsistent with other information | am aware of from my
audit; or
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o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or
o the Statement of Accounts and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited
are not in agreement with the accounting records; or
o Ihave not received all of the information and explanations | require for my audit, or
* lissue areport in the public interest under Article 9 of the Local Government (Northern
Ireland) Order 2005; or
* |designate under Article 12 of the Local Government {Northern Ireland) Order 2005 any
recommendation made to the Council; or
* | exercise the other special powers of the auditor under Article 19 to 21 of the Local
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005.

Certificate

I certify that | have completed the audit of accounts of Derry City and Strabane District Council in
accordance with the requirements of the Local Government {Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and
the Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

%%@%/

Pamela McCreedy

Local Government Auditor
Northern Ireland Audit Office
106 University Street

Belfast

BT7 1EU

17 September 2018



Derry City and Strabane Distict Councll
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2018

Res!aled 2014817

. ~ Gross == E?’Ml}_ . Gross D

g o | - E-;Expendth;:’ Gross Income 'Ex endifure J r.Expendl!ure 1IGrc:ss lncome Nel Expendliure_
Service Expenditure  Motes  E ; E'.f_,-,_- : E £ £ £
Cross Cutting Support 2 6581378 (1.240221)  5341.156 5.809.223 (957,063} 4852.160
Services
S bt 2 30680956  (3.510,647)  27.170.308 28,568,549 (3,030,347} 25,538,202
Regeneration
Business & Culfure 2 12723224 (3.422.459) 9,300,765 11.640.191 (2,706,161) 8,934,031
Health & Community 2 16980827  (5239.572)  11.741.255 15,706.783 (4.958,506) 10,748,277
Council 2 1,237,893 (1.150)  1.236.743 1.129.785 {1.525) 1,128,260
City of Derry Airport 2 4083349 (1.767.504)  2.315.845 2271927 {331) 2.271.596
Other Corporate 2 1,425927 {449,755} 976172 2928797 (99%) 2.927.798
(9.2 KRR O (15.631,308)  58.082.244 68,055,255 (11,454,932) 54,400,324
Canlinving Operations
Other Operating
Ependiiure 8 174,986 (6.424] 168,562 1.936.446 (298,426} 1.638,020
Financing and Investment 5758.214 {30.800] 5727416 5.438,042 (61,383) 5376.679

Income and Expenditure

Net Cperating Expenditure 79,646,758 (15,648,532}  63,978.222 75,429,743 (12.014,721) 43,415,023

UL TN To =L U (65.637.114)  (65.637.114) . (57,364,263) (57,364,263)
Grant Income

(TN TR 79.646.756  (81,305648) (1,658,892 75,429,743 {69,378,984) 4,060,759

Provision of Services

{Surplus) /Deficit on
revaluation of non-curent  25b (23,110.682) 56,722
assels

Remeasurements of the
Net Defined Benefit 25¢ 327,054 10,495,700
Liability [Asset)

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure {22,783,628) 10,552,422

Totat Comprehensive Income and Expenditure {24,442 520) 75,429,743 (69,378,984} 156,603,181
The figures above are prepared to two decimal places but rounding due to formotting may occur.




Derry City and Strabane District Council

Movement In Reserves Stalement for the year ended 31 March 2018

- e e R

Balance as at 1
Movement in reserves
during the year

Surplus/ (Deficit} on the
provision of services
Other Comprehensive
Income and Expendiiure
Total Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Adjustments betlween
accounting basis &
funding under regulations
Net Increase before
transiers fo Statutory and
Other Reserves

Transfers to / from
Statutory and Other
Reserves

Increase/ Decrease in
year

Movement In reserves
during the year

Surplus/ {Deficit) on the
provision of services
Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Tolal Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Adjustments between
accounting bosis &
funding under regulations
Net increase before
transters to Statutory and
Other Reserves

Transfers to / from
Statutory and Other
Reserves

Increase In year

April 2016

4,250,552 15,985.059

747,142

20,977,753

92,272.502

eral fund  Other Fund| - TolalUsa
mary Bolances and ceipts ~ Resen
] ia ] ‘a ! o Ea E

113,250,255

Balance as at 31 March 2017

Baolance as at 31 March 2018
The ligures above are prepared to two decimal places but rounding due to formatting may occur.

{6.050,759) - - [6.050.759) - (6.050.75%)
- - - {10,552,422) {10.552,422)
(6.050,759) - - {4.050,759) (10,552,422) (16,403,181}
7.506.661 (762,457) 37.500 6,781,664 (6,686,914} 94,750
1,455,902 (762,497) 37,500 730,905 (17,239,336} (16,508,431)
[1.013.348) 1.013.346 = = - -
442,556 250,849 37,500 730,905 (17,239,336) (16,508,431)

4,693,108 16,235,908

1,658,892 0
0 0
1,658,892 o
2,370.623 3,247.450
4,029,515 3,247,450
[3.927.732) 4,280,636
101,783 7,528,084

4,794,891 23,763,994

779.642

21,708.658

1.658.892
0

1,656,892

5618073

7.276,945

352904
7,629,869

2%.338.527

75,033,144

0
22,783,428

22,783,628

{5.615,520)

17,168,108

{352.504)
14,815,204

91,848.370

96,741,824

1,658,892

22,783,628

24,442,520

2,553

24,445,073

0
24,445,073

121,186,8%7
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Derry City and Strobane District Councll
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018

e i P e PR g —_.-\;_S_r_l.:-.—vxlqvf P "-:_r£;na=m4
Fixed Assets i1 193,919,288 168,522,091
Long Term Debtors 15 596.455 655380
LONG TERM ASSETS 194,515.743 149.177.471
invenlories 14 253,019 154,423
Short Term Debtors 15 22,428,692 16,214,944
Cash ond Cash Equivalents 2 15,304,371 18,847,015
Assets Held for Sale 11 650,000 -
CURRENT ASSETS 38,636,082 35,214,604
Short Term Borowing 17 3,436,172 3,086,464
Short Term Credilors 18 12,032,217 13,856,441
Provisions 19 1,044,209 838,232
CURRENT LIABILITIES 14,512,598 17,781,137
Provisions 1% 4,445,170 4,040.288
Long Term Borrowing 17 50.234,150 48,896.317
Other Long Term Liabilities 21 40.772,000 346,934.500
LONG TERM LIABILITIES 95.452,320 89,871,105
NET ASSETS 121,184,907 94,741,833
USABLE RESERVES
Capital Receipts Reserve 24 779.642 779.642
Capital Grants Unapplied Account 24 11,114,788 7.274.566
Capital Fund 24 3,619.955 3.074.246
Renewal and Repairs Fund 24 4,344,627 2,944,588
Other Bolances and Reserves 24 4.682.624 2,882,508
General Fund 24 4.794.901 4,693,118

29,338,537 21,708,667

UNUSABLE RESERVES

Capital Adjusiment Account 25 58 526,732 58,519.118
Revoluation Reserve 25 74814,411 53,818,384
Pensions Reserve 25 {40.772,000) {36,934,500)
Accumulated Absences Account 25 {367.86%) {369.83%)
Provisions Discount Rate Reserve 25 [{352.904) -

91,848,370 75.033,145

NET WORTH 121,186,907 96,741,833
The figures cbove are prepared to two decimal places but rounding due to formatting may occur,



Derry Clty and Strabane District Council
Cash Flow Statement at 31 March 2018

PSS TSN, ———— TEE
Net Surplus/[Deficit) on the provision of services 1,658,891 {6.050,751)
Adjustment for non-cash movements 9,523,944 11,839,437
Adjust lor iterns included in the net surplus or deficit on the (7.981,446) (2.448,388)

provision of services that are investing and financing octivities

Net cash flows from operating activities 3,201,389
Cash flows from Investing Aclivities 23 [B.431.548}
Net Cash flows from Financing Activities 23 1,687,534
Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents {3,542,444)
Cash and cash equivatents at the beginning of the reporting period 18.847.015
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 15,304,371

The figures above are prepared fo two decimal ploces but rounding due 1o farmatiing may occur.

3,340,300

{2.214,946)

[296,594)

824,740

18,020,275

18,847,015

EE]



Dernry City and Strabane District Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Accounting Policies

General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council's transactions
for the 2017/8 financial year and its position at the year-end of 31
March 2018, The Council is required to prepare an annual
Statement of Accounis in a form directed by the Department for
Communities in accordance with regulations 3 {7) and (8] in the
Local Government {Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern
Ireland) 2015 in accordance with proper accounting practices.

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18, supported by
International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS}. The accounting
convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally
historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of
non-current assets and financial instruments.

The Cede of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2015/16 also requires disclosure in respect of:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

- Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council
transfers the significant risks and rewards of ownership to the
purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.

- Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the
Council can measure reliably the percentage of completion of the
transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.

- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed -
where there is a gap between the date supplies are received and
their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance
Sheet.

- Expenses in relation to services received (including services
provided by employees) are recorded as expenditure when the
services are received rather than when paymenis are made.

- Interest payable on borrowings and receivable on investments is
accounted for on the basis of the effective interest rate for the
relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or
determined by the contract.



i)

- Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash
has not been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant
amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet, Where it is doubtful that
debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a
charge made to revenue for the income that might not be
collected.

Provision for Single Status, Job Evaluation and Pay and Grading
Reviews

The Council has made a provision for the costs of settling claims for
back pay arising frorm discriminatory payments incurred before the
Council implemented its Single Status Policy.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial
institutions repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24
hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in no more
than three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk
of change in value. In the Cash Flow Statement, cash ond cash
equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafis that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Council's cash
management.

Contlingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that
gives the Council a possible asset whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future
events not wholly within ihe control of the Council. Contingent
assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a
note to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an
inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken ploce that
gives the Council a possible obligation whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occumrence or otherwise of uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Council, Contingent
liabilities also arise in circumstonces where a provision would
otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outilow of
resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in
the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.
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Employee Benefits

Shori-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12
months of the year-end. They include such benefits as wages and
salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-
monetary benefits (e.g. cars} for current employees, and are
recognised as an expense in the year in which employees render
service to the Council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday
entitlements earned by emplovees but not taken before the year-
end and which employees can carry forward into the next financial
yeaqr.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision
by the Council to terminate an officer's employment before the
normai retirement date or an officer's decision to accept voluntary
redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the Non
Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement at the earlier of:

a) when the offer cannot be withdrawn or

b} when the related restructuring costs are incurred.

Where termination benelfits involve the enhancement of pensions,
statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension
fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated
according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement
in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for
pension enhancementi termination benefits and replace them with
debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and
any such omounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of the Nerthern Ireland
Local Government Officers' Pension Fund administered by the
Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Superannuation
Committee. The scheme provides defined benefits to members
{refirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked
for the Council.



The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund is
accounied for as a defined benefits scheme.

The liabilities of the Northern Ireland Local Governmenti Officers'
Pension Fund attributable to the Council are included in the
Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit
method - i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be
made in relation to retirement benefits earned o date by
employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee
turnover rates , etc, and projections of projected earnings for
current emplovees.

Liabilities are discounted fo their value at curent prices, using a
discount rate based on the Aon Hewitt GBP Select AA Curve over
the duration of the Employer's liabilities.

The assets of the Northern Ireland Local Government Qfficers'
pension fund attributable to the Council are included in ihe
Balance Sheet at their fair value:

quoted securities - current bid price
unguoted securities - professional estimate
property — market value

unitised securities — current bid price

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven
components:

Within the Cost of Services

Current Service Cost - the increase in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation {liabilities) resulting from employee
service in the cumrent period.

Past Service Cost - (where applicable) the change in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation for employee service in prior
periods, resulting from a plan amendment (the introduction or
withdrawl of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan) or a
curtailment (a significant reduction in the number of employees
covered by the plan).

Any Gains or Losses on Settlement - (where applicable) arising
where a council enters into a transaction that eliminates all further
legal or constructive obligations for part or all of the benefits
provided under a defined benefit plan.

Within Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset) — the change
in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the
passage of time.
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Within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
{(Remeasurements)

The Return on Plan Assets — excluding amounts recognised in the
Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liakility (Asset). This includes
interest, dividends and otherincome derived from the plan assets,
together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan
assets, less any costs of managing plan assets, and any tax payable
by the plan itself other than tax included in the actuarial
assurmptions used to measure the present value of the defined
benefit obligation.

Actuarial Gains and Losses — changes in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from: a) experience adjustments
(the effects of differences between the previous actuarial
assumptions and what has actually occurred) and b} the eifects of
changes in actuarial assumptions.

Any change in the Effect of the Asset Ceiling — {(where applicable)
excluding amounts included in the Net Interest on the Net Defined
Benefit Liability (Asset].

Within the Movement in Reserves Statement Appropriations

Contributions by Scheme Pariicipants - the increase in scheme
liabilities and assets due to payments into the scheme by
employees (where increased contribution increases pension due to
the employee in the fuiure).

Contributions by the Employer - the increase in scheme assets due
to payments into the scheme by the employer.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the
General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by
the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year,
not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations
are made to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional
debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with
debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and
any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The
negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby
measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being
required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash
flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.
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Discretionary Benefits

The Council alsc has restricted powers to make discretionary
awards of retirement benefits in the event of early retirements. Any
liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member
of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award
and accounted for using the same policies that are applied to the
Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' pension fund.

As a result of Local Government Reform on 1 April 2015, staff that
transferred from Central Government to the Council retained
membership of the Northern Ireland Civil Service [NICS} Pension
Scheme. The schemes provides defined benefits to members
{retirement lump sums and pensions). However, the arrangements
for the NICS Pension Scheme mean that liabilities for these benefits
cannot ordinarily be identified specifically to the Council. The
scheme is therefore accounted for as if it were a defined
contribution scheme and no liability for future payments of benefits
is recognised in the Balance Sheet.

Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both
favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of the
reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounis is
authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

a. those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the
end of the reporting period - the Statement of Accounts is adjusted
io reflect such events

b. those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the
reporting period — the Statement of Accounis is not adjusted to
reflect such events, but where a caiegory of events would have o
rmaterial effect disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the
events and their estimated financial effect.

The financial statements may subsequently be adjusted up to the
date when they are authorised forissue. This date will be recorded
on the financial statements and is usually the date the Local
Government Auditor issues his cerlificate and opinion. Where
material adjustiments are made in this period they will be disclosed.

Eventis taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not
reflected in the Statement of Accounts.
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Exceptional ltems

When items of income and expense are material, their noture and
amount is disclosed separately, either on the face of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes
to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an
understanding of the Council's financial performance.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and
Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in
accounting policies or to correct a material error. Changes in
accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e., in the
current and future years affected by the change and do not give
rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by
proper accounting practices or the change provides more reliable
or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other
events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial
performance. Where a change is made, it is applied
retrospectively by adjusting opening balances and comparative
amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been
applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected
retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative
amounts for the prior period.

Financial Instruments

Most financial instrumenis held by Councils would fall to be
classified into just one class of financial liability and two classes of
financial assets:

Financial Liabilities
Amortised Cost

Financial Assets
Loans and Receivables
Available for Sale



Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a
financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are
carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing
and investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based
on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective
rate of interest for the insirument. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over
the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally
recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the
amount presenied in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal
repayable {plus accrued interest); and interest charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount
poyable for the year according to the loan agreement.

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settliement of borowing
are credited and debited to the Financing and Investmeni Income
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement.
However, where repurchase has taken place as part of a
restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or
exchange of existing instruments, the premium or discount is
respectively deducted from or added io the amortised cost of the
new or medified loan and the write-down to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the
toan by an adjustment to the effective interest rate.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, regulations
allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread over
future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss
over the term that was remaining on the loan against which the
premium was payable or discount receivable when it was repaid.
The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement {o the net charge required
against the District Fund Balance is managed by a fransfer to or
from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified into two types:

a. loans and receivables - assets that have fixed or determinable
payments but are not quoted in an active market

b. available-for-sale assets — that have a quoted market price
and/or do not have fixed or determinable payments.
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Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when
the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a
financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They
are then measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest
receivable are based on the canying amount of the asset
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For
maost of the loans that the Council has made, this means that the
amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal
receivable (plus accrued interest] and interest credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount
receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

When soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement {debited to the appropriate
service) for the present value of the interest that will be foregone
over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost
than the outstanding principal. Interest is credited to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement at a marginally higher effective
rate of interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary
organisations, with the difference serving to increase the amortised
cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require
that the impact of soft loans on the District Fund Balance is the
interest receivable for the financial year — the reconciliation of
amounts debited and credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statemeni to the net gain required against the General
Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financiat
Instruments Adjustiment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

Where assels are identified as impaired because of a likelihood
arising from a past event that payments due under the contract will
not be made, the asset is wiitten down and a charge made to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the camrying
amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows
discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. No such
impairments have been identified by Derry City and Strabane
District Council.

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are
credited or debited to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
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Available-for-Sale Assets

Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when
the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a
financial instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair
value. Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual
credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for
interest receivable are based on the amortised cost of the asset
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the insirument. Where
there are no fixed or determinable payments, income (e.q..
dividends) is credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement when it becomes receivable by the Council.

Assets are maintained in the Bolance Sheet at fair value. Volues
are based on the following principles:

a. instruments with quoted market prices — the market price

b. ofher instrumenis with fixed and determinable payments -
discounted cash flow analysis

c. equity shares with no quoted market prices — independent
appraisal of company valuations.

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in
accordance with the following three levels:

* Level 1 inputs - quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets that the authority can access at the measurement
dafte.

» Level 2 inputs - inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset, either directly or indirecily.
» Level 3 inputs - uncbservable inputs for the asset.

Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-
Sale Reserve and the gain/loss is recognised in the Surplus or Deficit
on Revaluation of Available-for -Sale Financial Assets. The
exception is where impairment losses have been incured - these
are debited to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Cormprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, along with any net gain or loss for the asset
accumulated in the Available-for-Sale Reserve.
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Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood
arising from a past event that payments due under the contract will
not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or fair value falls
below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. If the asset
has fixed or deferminable payments, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the camying amount and the
present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the
asset's original effective interest rate. Otherwise, the impairment
loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against the acquisition
cost of the instrument [net of any principal repayment and
amortisation).

Any gains ond losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset
are credited or debited to the Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated gains or losses
previously recognised in the Available-for-Sale Reserve.

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is
carried at cost [less any impairment losses).

Foreign Currency Transiation

Where the Council has entered into a transaction denominated in
a foreign currency, the transaction is converted into sterling at the
exchange rate applicable on the date the transaction was
effective. Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at
the year-end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31
March. Resulting gains or losses are recognised in the Financing
ond Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalmenis or in arrears, government
grants and ihird party contributions and donations are recognised
as due to the Council when there is reasonable assurance thaot:

a. the Council will comply with the conditions attached o the
payments, and
b. the grants or coniributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement until conditions attaching to
the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are
stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service
potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or
contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as
specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be
returned to the transferor.



xiil)

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions
have not been satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as
creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is
credited to the relevant service line [attributable revenue grants
and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-
ring-fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Staiement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the
grant has yet {o be used o finance capital expenditure, it is posted
to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been
applied, it is posied to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in
the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital
expenditure.

Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical
substance but are controlled by the Council as a result of past
events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when ii is expected
that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the
intangible asset to the Council.

Internolly generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable
that the project is technically feasible and is intended to be
completed {with adequate resources being available} and the
Council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver
service potential by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure
is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as attributable to
the asset and restricted to that incurred during the development
phase (research expenditure is not capitalised).

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the
websiie is solely or primarily intended to promote or adverfise the
Council's goods or services.
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Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only
revalued where the fair value of the assets held by the Council can
be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no
intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they
are therefore carried at amoertised cost. The depreciable amount
of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant
service line{s) in Cost of Services on Continuing Operations in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. An assef is
tested forimpairment whenever there is an indication that the asset
might be impaired - any losses recognised are posted to the
relevant service line(s} in Cost of Services on Continuing Operations
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible
asset is posted to the Other Operating Expendiiure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible ossets qualifies as capital
expenditure for statutory purposes, amortisation, impairment losses
and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact
on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore
reversed out of the District Fund 8alance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account
and (for any sale proceeds greater than £5,000) the Capital
Receipis Reserve.

Inventories & Long Term Contracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is assigned using
the weighted average costing formula.

Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. The definition is not met if the
property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or
production of goods oris held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially ot cost and
subsequently at fair value, based on the amount at which the asset
could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm's
length. Investment properties are not depreciated but are
revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end.
Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and
Investiment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied
to gains and losses on disposal.
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Rentals received in relation to investmeni properties are credited to
the Financing and Investment income line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement and resuli in a gain for the
General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains
and losses are not permitted by statutory araongements to have an
impact on the District Fund Balance. The gains and losses are
therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital
Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipis Reserve.

Landfill Allowance Scheme

The Landfill Alowances Scheme operates under the Landfill
Allowances Scheme (Northern Ireland) Regulations 2005. Local
Authorities are allocated annual iarget figures for the maximum
amount of biodegradable municipal waste that can be sent to
tandfill but there are no tradable allowances. [t is not a ‘cap and
trade’ scheme since landfill allowances are not tradable. For this
reason, landfill allowances are not recognised as assets on the
Balance Sheet.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the property from the lessor to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and
buildings elements are considered separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legai status of a lease but
convey aright to use an asset in return for payment are accounted
for under this policy where {ulflment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of specific assets

The Council as Lessee - Finance Lease

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is
recognised on the Balance Sheet at the commencement of the
lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the
present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset
recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the
lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to the carrying
amouni of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into o lease are
applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are
charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
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Lease payments are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property -
applied to write down the lease liability, and

b. a finance charge [debited to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement)

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is
accounted for using the policies applied generally to such assets,
subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is
shorter than the asset's estimated useful life.

The Council is not required to raise district rates to cover
depreciation or revaluation ond impairment losses arising on leased
assets. Instead, a prudent annual provision is made from revenue
towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with
statutory requirements. Depreciation and impairment losses are
therefore replaced by a revenue provision in the General Fund
Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the
difference between the two.

Operating Leases:

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an expense
of the services benefiting from use of the leased properly, plant or
equipment, Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life
of the lease, even if this does not maich the pattern of payments
(e.g. there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the
lease).

The Council as Lessor - Finance Lease

Where the Council granis a finance lease over a property or an
item of plant or equipment, the relevant asset is written out of the
Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of {he lease,
the carmrying omount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether
Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. A gain, representing the Council's nef investiment in the
lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on
disposal {i.e. netted off against the camying value of the asset at the
time of disposal), matched by a lease asset (long term debtor) in
the Balonce Sheet.
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Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisition of the inierest in the property —
applied to write down the lease asset (long term debtor) together
with any premiums received, and

b. finance income {credited to the Financing and Investment
income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement).

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement on disposal is not permitted by statute to increase the
General Fund Balance and will be required to be tfreated as a
capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted
out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in
the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the amount due in
relation to the lease asset is o be setiled by the payment of rentals
in future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund
Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement
in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are paid, the
element for the charge for the acquisition of the interest in the
property is used to write down the lease asset (debtor). At this
point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital
Receipts Reserve.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against District
Rates, as the cost of fixed assets is fully provided for under separate
arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Council as Lessor - Operaling Lease

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an
item of plont or equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance
Sheet. Rentalincome is credited to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of

the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g..

there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are
odded to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged
as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income.
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Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the canying amount of an asset
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than
through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale.
The asset is revalued immediaiely before reclassification and then
carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less cosis to sell.
Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell,
the loss is posted to the CGther Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair
value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously
recognised losses. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for
Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Held for Sale,
they are reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the
lower of its camying amount before they were classified as Held for
Sale: adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that
would have been recognised had they not been classified as Held
for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision
not to sell.

Assets that are to be decommissioned i.e. abandoned or scrapped
are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the carnying
amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet {whether Property, Plant
and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
Receipis from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of
the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value
of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains
accumulated for the asset in the Revalualion Reserve are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal exceeding £5,000 are categorised
as capital receipts and credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve.
Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against disirict
rates, as the cost of fixed assets is fully provided for under separate
arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to
the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services. for rental to others of for
adminisirative purposes and that are expected to be used during
more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and
Equipmeni.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of
Properiy, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis,
provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or
service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure
that mainiains but does not add te an asset's potential to deliver
future economic benefits or service potential (i.e.. repairs and
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.

Measurement

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

a. the purchase price

b. any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management

c. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the
item and restoring the site on which it is located

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst
assets are under construction,

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to
be its fair value, unless the acquisition will not increase the cash
flows of the Council . In the latter case, where the asset is acquired
via an exchange, ihe cosi of the acquisition is the canying amount
of the asset given up by the Council.

Donated assets are measured initially at {air value. The difference
between fair value and any consideration paid is credited to the
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been
made conditionally. Unlit condifions are satisfied, the gain is held in
the Donated Assets Account. Where gains are crediied to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital
Adijustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
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Assefs are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following
measurement bases:;

- infrastructure - depreciated historical cost

- community assets and assets under construction - cost

- all other assets ~ fair value, determined as the omount that would
be paid for the asset in its existing use (existing use value - EUV or
Depreciated Replacement Cost- DRC)

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of
the specialist nature of an asset, depreciated replacement cost is
used as an estimate of fair value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued
sufficiently regularly to ensure that their camying amount is not
materially different from their fair value at the year-end. A full
revaluation was carried out by Land and Property Services at 31st
March 2018 and will be updated at yearly intervals going forward.
Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation
Reserve to recognise unredlised gains. Exceptionally, gains might
be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously
charged to a service.,

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised
since 1 April 2008 only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains
arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital
Adjustment Account.

impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. Where indications exist
and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less
than the carmying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is
recognised for ihe shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

a. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the
Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written
down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated
gains}, with any excess charged to the service line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

b. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve, the
carrying amouni of the asset is written down against the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement,
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Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is
credited to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the
original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been
charged if the loss had not been recognised.

The same accounting freatment is applied to revaluation losses as a
result of a general fall in asset prices across the board as opposed
to a consumption of economic benefit specific to an asset asis in
the case of impairment losses.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment
assets by the systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts
over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a
deierminable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and Community
Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use [i.e. assets under
construction).

Deprecation is calculated on the following bases:

- Buildings, installations and fittings are depreciated on a straight
line basis on their carrying value over the estimated remaining
useful life of the asset as advised by the valuer from Land & Property
Services. Depending on the type of building, installation or fitting the
maximum useful life will be in the range of 10 to 40 years.

- Plant, vehicles and equipment {excluding IT equipment) are
depreciated on a straight line basis on historic cost using a standard
useful life of between 5 and 20 years

- IT equipment is depreciated on a straight line basis on historic cost
using a standard useful life of 5 years. Intangible assets are
amortised over the estimated lives of the assets.

Componentisation

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has maijor
components whose cost is significant in relation to the total cost of
the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Componentisation is only applicable to larger value land and
buildings or equipment assets.

Revaluations

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to
the difference between current value depreciation charged on
assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable
based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the
Revaluation Reserve to the Capiial Adjustment Account.
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Heritage Assets

Heritage Assets are assets with historical, artistic, scientific,
technological, geophysical or environmental qualities that are held
and maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge and
culture.

Heritage Assets are those assets that are intended to be preserved
in trust for future generations because of their cultural,
environmental or historic associations and they are held by this
authority in pursuit of our overall objectives in relation to the
maintenance of heritage.

The Council has a large number of items which are deemed to be
classed as Heritage Assets under the definition in IFRS. These have
been categorised into a range of different classes and are located
in a number of Council owned facilities. Acquisitions are made by
purchase or donation. Acquisitions are initially recognised at cost
and donations are recognised at valuation with valuations
provided by the external valuers appointed to determine values for
Insurance purposes and with reference to appropriate commercial
markets where they exist. These assets are valued annually by
suitably qualified professional valuers o ensure they are comrectly
valued for Insurance purposes. Assets on loan from the Council are
deemed to remain as part of Council's assets while items on loan to
the Council are deemed to remain in the ownership of the loaning
bady.

The camrying amounts of heritage asseis are reviewed where there is
evidence of impairment for heritage asseis, eg where an item has
suffered physical deterioration or breakage or where doubts arise
as to its authenticily. Any impairment is recognised and measured in
accordance with the Authority’s general policies on impairment -
see note 1xix) in this summary of significant accounting policies.

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the
Council a legal or constructive obligation that probably requires
settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. For instance, the Council may be involved in a court
case that could eventually result in the making of a setllement or
the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in
the year that the Council becomes aware of the obligation, and
measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account
relevant risks and uncertainties.
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When paymenis are eventually made, they are charged to the
provision carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated setflements are
reviewed at the end of each financial year - where it becomes less
than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be
required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the
provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to setile a provision is
expected to be recovered from ancther party {e.9. from an
insurance claimy}, this is only recognised as income for the relevant
service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if
the Council settles the obligation.

Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy
purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves are created by
approprating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statermment. When expenditure to be
financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate
service in that year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The reserve is then approprioted back into the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no
net charge against District Rates for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for
non-cuirent assets, financial instruments and retirement benefits
and do not represent usable resources for the Council - these
reserves are explained in the relevant note to the accounts,

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Charges to revenue for non-current assets e.g. services, support
services and frading accounts are debited with the following
amounts io record the cost of holding fixed assets during the year:

a. depreciation atiributable to the assets used by the relevant
service

b. revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service
where there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve
against which the losses can be written off

c. amortisation of intangible fixed assets attribuiable to the service.
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The Council is not required to raise District Rates to cover
depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or amortisations.
However, it is required to make an annual provision from revenue o
contribute towards the reduction in its averall borrowing
requirement [equal to either an amount calculated on a prudent
basis determined by the Council in accordance with statutory
guidance]. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and
amottisations are therefore replaced by minimum revenue provision
[MRP] in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement
in Reserves Statement for the difierence between the two.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under
statutory provisions but that does not result in the creation of a non-
current asset has been charged as expendiivre to the relevant
service in the Comprehensive Income and Expendifure Statement
in the year. Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of
this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a
transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General
Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out
the amounts charged, so that there is no impact on the level of
District Rates.

Value Added Tax

All expenditure and income, irespective of whether it is revenue or
capital in nature, is shown net of Value Added Tax, unless it is
irecoverable.

The Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme (CRC)

The Council is required to pariicipate in the Carbbon Reducfion
Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme. The Council is required to
purchase and surrender allowances, currently retrospectively, on
the bosis of emissions, i.e. carbon dioxide produced as energy is
used. As carbon dioxide is produced (i.e. as energy is used), a
liability and an expense are recognised. The liability will be
discharged by surrendering allowances. The liability is measured at
the best estimate of the expendiiure required to meet the
obligation, normally at the current market price of the number of
allowances required to meet the liability at the reporting date. The
cost to the Council is recognised and reperied in the costs of the
Councils services and is apportioned o services on the basis of
energy consumption,
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Fair Value Measurement

The Councit measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus
assets and investment properties and some of its financial
instruments such as equity shareholdings at fair value at each
reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participonts at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the mast advantageous
market for the asset or liakbility.

The Councit measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest. When measuring the fair value of a non-
financial asset, the authority takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The
authority uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data is available, maximising
the use of relevani observable inputs and minimising the use of
uncbservable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities
for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the authority's
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
as follows:

* Level | — quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that

the authority can access at the measurement date

* Level 2 —inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for

the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

* Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability,
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Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been
Adopted

For 2018/19 it is anticipated that the introduction of IFRS 2 - Financial
Instruments may have a material impact on the Council's core
financiol statemenits. IFRS ? Financial Instruments, which introduces
exiensive change in the classification and measurement of
financial assets by providing a single approach. A new “expected
credit loss” model has also been introduced for impairing financiat
asseds. As such the council are required to reassess the classification
of assets which are currently disclosed as loans and receivables,
ond available for sale to amortised cost and fair value through
other comprehensive income respectively based on the
contractual cash flows and business model for holding the assets.

Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are
based on assumptions made by the Council about the future or
that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into
account historical experience, current trends and other relevant
factors, However, because balances cannot be determined with
certainty, actual results could be materially different from the
assumptions and estimates.

As noted in the Governance Statement CODA Operations Limited is
in discussions with the Northern Ireland Executive and the DFT in
relation to ihe funding of the PSO route beyond 2019. On the basis
of the discussions to date, the Directors are hopeful that the
required funding will be released in which case DCSDC's current
subsidy will be sufficient to fund the airport at its current level of
operation unfil 31st March 2021.

In the event that these funds are not secured, DCSDC's curent
subsidy will be sufficient 1o meet the cost of operations at a
reduced level for a minimum period of six months after May 2019
during which the viability of the airport over the short and medium
term will be considered and appropriote actions taken, On this
basis the accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Pension Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number
of complex judgemenis relating to the discount rate used, the rate
at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement
ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets.
A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to provide the Council
with expert advice about the assumptions fo be applied.



Berry City and Strabone District Councll
Notes io the Financial Stalements
For the year ended 31 March 2018
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Expenditure ond Funding Analysis

The Expendilure and funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from rasources (govemment grants, rents,
council tax and business rales) by local authorities in comparisan wilh those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance
wilh generally accepted accounting practices. Il olso shows how this expenditure Is allocaled for decision making puposes belween the
council's directorales/ services/ depariments

Nei Expmg’lftg_.rz Adjustments Nel Expendiiurs
nthel et Expendiure| beiwsen the e
! Comprahensive| - ° =0 0 E TR TR EE | Comprehensive
S0 | Chargabde lo He| Funding and i L-Liaal
i T General Fund| Accounting Income and
g s Exp_:l'ld“‘“l’. h 'tlm’-sls Ex'p:ndﬂuu
" ghf_lm-_rg S}d.mnﬂ
e S———— e k| L [P it | (] g
Cross Cuting Support Services 4,775.029 1564,127) 5.341,156 4,705,895 {144,245} 4,852,140
Environmen! & Regeneralion 21,466,534 15.701.774) 27,170,308 21.285.233 14,252,965} 25,538,202
Business & Culture 4985005 | {2.315.760) 9,300,765 7.724909 [1.209.122) 8,934,031
Hegith & Communily 8,950,553 | (2,790,702) 11,741,255 8,557,033 [2.171.244) 10,748,277
Councll 1,144.991 [21.752) 1,236,743 1.170,244 41,586 1,128,260
Cily of Dernry Altport 1,978,510 1,482,665 2.315.845 3,624,851 1,355,255 2.271.594
|Copital Financing 5175971 5175971 - 4,771,425 4,771,425 -
Other Corporate 821,654 {154.518) 976,172 1,700.880 {1.226,918) 2927798
Transfers fo/from Reserves & Provisions 4,235,538 4,235,634 - 968,346 968,344 -
e 0 O 84 B8.35 8 08 44 d OB 8a%. 50 &.400
Other Income and Expenditure {57.555,667) 2,085,469 (59.741.138) (54,953,375) | (4.603.811) (50.349,544)
») ar D 0 o 0 8 G D50 0
Qp Q Q d 0

Surplus/ {Defleit) on General Fund
Balance In Yeor 101.785 442,558

Clesing General Fund 4,794 903 - 4.693.110

Net expendilwe chaiged 1o general fund of £57,553,883 is eflectively the 2017-18 net accrued cost of running tha council that has 1o be
lunded by both rates or rom exisling surplus in the general fund. Conseqguently this cost includes financing and Investment Income and
Expenditute of £4,858,216 [Note 9). As this s not part of the “cost of services on conlinuing operalions” in the CIES then in order o
reconcile biack 1o the nel figure of £58 082,244 in the CIES. the £4,858,214 is revarsad oul in the "adjustmenls column’ 1olalling £528.341.

O the finoncing cost of £4,858,214, Loan interest cosls of £491,709 relaling to Alrport copilol expenditure and CODA share write-down cost
of £2.408,616 are included within City of Deny Airport costs above. Furthermore the girport has also been allocated ils portion of the
minimum revenue piovision (£717,987). The Aiport is the anly area that has been charged its share of financing and Investment Income
and Expendilire. The remoining copilal financing costs of £5,175.971 consist of both the unallocated to service heads elemenls of loan
interest and minimum revenue provision cosls.
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[(JNote to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

This note provides a reconciliafion of the main adjusiments to Net Expendilure Chargeable {o the General Fund fo amive at
the amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statemenl. The relevanl transfers between reserves are
explained in the Movement in Reserves Stalement

AdJustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

2017/18
Ad = » erg dtoa e 2 A = = ange Othe . O Othe cta
O » O andad D ¢l s 4] apita " a e Biffe

§'=.—....:-.-.—-._-'}.;n_-...-_., R A T T | e | e [ e | e e
Cross Culing Suppor Services {211.871) [355,085) 829 - 566,127
Environment & Regeneration {4,366,437) [982,726) {354,611} - {5.703,774
|Business & Culture 1,744,922} [369,316) {1,522) - [2,315,740}
Health & Community {2,071,732) {723,341 4,371 - [2.790,702)
Council {76.306) {60,447 - 45,000 {91.752)
City of Derry Airport {1.974.198) - - 3,656,863 1,682,665
Capital Finoncing - B - 5175971 5,175,971
Other Corporate - {122.085) - 32,433) {154,518}
Transters lo/from Reserves & Provisions - - - 4,235,636 4,235,634
Net Cost of Services (10,645,466} {2,613.000) [350.9331 13,081,037 [528.,351)
Other Income and Expenditure from the

Expenditure and Funding Analysis 7.806.461 {200,000} - (4.820,992) 2,085,469
Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit

and Comprehensive income and Expendilure

Statement Surplus or Beficit on the Provision of

Services 12.839.005) {3.513,000) {350.933) 8,260,046 1,557,107

Adiustments for Capital Purposes

Adjustments {o Genergl Fund Balances to meet the requirements of generally accepted accounting practices. this column
adds in deprecialion and impairment and revaluation gains and losses in the services line and for:

i) Other operating expendilure - adjusis for capital disposals with o fransfer of income on disposat of assels and the amounis
wrilten off for those assets.

i} Financing ond investiment income ond expenditure - the slatutory charges for capital inancing ie Minimum Revenue
Provision and olher revenue coniributions are deducted from financing and invesimenl income and expendilure as these
are not chargeable under generally accepied accounting praciices.

i) Taxation and Non Specific Gront Income and Expenditure - Capital grants are adjusted for income not chargeable under
generolly accepied occounting praoclices. Revenue gronts are adjusted from those receivable in the year 1o those
receivable without condilions or for which conditions were salisfied throughout the year. The Taxation and Non Specific
Grant Income and Expendilure line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for which
conditions were satisfied in the year,

Net Change for the Pension Adiustment

Net change for the removal of pension contibulions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefils pension reloted
expendiiure and income:

For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contnbulions made by the authority as permitied by siatute
and the replacement with curent service costs and past service costs.

For Financing and investment income and expenditure - the net interest on the defined benefit liokility is charged to the CIES.

ther Statylory Adjusimeant iher Differen
Other Differences between amounts debiled/credited {o the Comprehensive income and Expendifure Slotement and
armounis payable/receivable to be recognised under statute
The charge for services here is a statutory adjustment for a financial instrument relating to a decision by services 1o issue soft
loans to community crganisalions. Soft loons are loans below market rates.
For Ainancing and investment income and expendilure the ofher differences column recognises adjustments to General
Fund for the timing dilferences for premiums and discounts.
The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure represents the difference between what is
chargeable under siotutory regulations for Council Tax ond NDR that was projected to be received at the start of the year
and the income recognised under generally accepled accounting praclices in the Code.



Adjusiments between Funding and Accounting Basis

2014/17
AQ g O enera dtoag P g B Al g g ange O a O O o olQ
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|Cross Cutting Support Services {140.555) 17,685 [3.395) - {144,265)
anironmenl & Regeneration {4.273.716) 49,042 {26.514] {1,800} 4,252.9469)
Business & Cuiture {1.218.854) 18,000 [8,248) - 1,209,122}
[Health & Community 2,208,674 38,110 {20.480) - 2,191,244)
Councll [6.158 3.143 - 45,000 41,986
Cily of Derry Airport (1,972,749 - - 3,328.023 1,355,255
Capital Financing - - - 4,771,425 4,771,425
Other Comporale - [931,000) - {295,918} {1.226.718)
Transfers 1o/from Reserves & Provisions - - - 948,345 968,346
Net Cost of Services {9.840,724) {805.000) [58.859} B.B15,074 {1.889.507}
Other Income ond Expenditure from the

Expendilure and Funding Analysis 511,942 {758.000Q) - {4,357.753) [4,603.811)
Oifference between General Fund surplus or deficit

and Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Staterment Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of

Services {9.328.782) {1.563,000) {58.859) 4,457,324 | (6,493,318)

Adiustments tor Copital Pyrposes

Adijustments to General Fund Balances to meet the requirements of generally accepled accounting practices, this column
adds in deprecialion and impairment and revaluation gains and losses in the services line and for:

iy Other operaling expenditure - adjusts for capitol disposals with o transfer of income on disposal of assets and the ocmounts
writien off for those assels.

i} Financing and investiment income ond expenditure - the statutory charges for capital financing ie Minimum Revenue
Provision and olher revenue contributions are deducted from financing and investment income and expendilure as these
are nol chargeabile under generally accepted accounting practices.

iii) Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure - Capilal grants are adjusted for income not chargeable under
generally accepled accounting practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the yeor io those
receivable without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation and Non Specific
Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited with copital gronts receivable in the year without conditions or for which
conditions were salisfied in the year.

Net Change for the Pension Adiystments

Net change for the removal of pension contibutions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension relofed
expendilure and income:

For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contribulions made by the authority os permitied by stalule
and the replacemenl with current service cosls and past service cosis.

ther Statut justment ther Differen
Other Differences between amounis debited/crediled to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Siatement and
amounis payable/receivable to be recognised under statute;
The charge for services here is a statutory adjustment for a financial instrument relaling to a decision by services to issue sofl
loans lo community organisations. Soft loons are loans below market rales.
For Financing and invesiment income and expenditure the other differences column recognises adjustments 1o General
Funct for the timing dilferences for premiums and discounis.
The chorge under Toxalion and non-specific grant income and expenditure represents the difference between what is
chargeable under stotulory regulations for Council Tax and NDR that was projected to be received at the start of the year
and the income recognised under generally accepled accounting practices in the Code.
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[4 Segmental Income and Expenditure

|
|

Income and expenditure on a segmenlal basis are analysed below:

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

PERSONNEL

POLICY & IMPROVEMENT
GOVERNANCE

STRATEGIC FINANCE & FUNDING
LEGAL SERVICES

CROSS CUTTING CORPORATE SERVICES
ENVIRONMENT & REGEN., OFFICE
PLANNING & REGENERATION
ENVIRONMENT SERVICE

CAPITAL DEV, & BUILDING CONTROL
ENVIRONMENT & REGENERATION DIRECTORATE
BUSINESS & CULTURE DIRECTOR
BUSINESS

CULTURE

BUSINESS & CULTURE DIRECTORATE
HEALTH & COMMUNITY OFFICE
COMMUNITY WELLBEING
COMMUNITY DEV. & LEISURE

HEALTH & COMMUNITY DIRECTORATE
COUNCIL

CITY OF DERRY AIRPORT

CAPITAL FINANCING

PENSIONER COSTS

OTHER COSTS

BANK INTEREST AND CHARGES
OTHER COSTS

TRANSFERS TO/ FROM RESERVES
TAXATION AND OTHER INCOME

NET COST OF SERVICES

| e Net'
| 're_ipeﬁq_iﬁi.lre as
| 2 {reported to
|Gross expenditure [lncome  |Cotncil
g —
| | MR £ | R
1,636,612 {924,109} 712,503
799,422 {75,245} 724,277
1,659,939 {12,944) 1,646,995
597,563 {26,222) 971,341
522,032 (18,430) 503,603
399,682 (183,371) 216,312
6,015,251| (1,240,221) 4,775,029
611,379 {124,331) 487,043
1,836,867 (1,082,888} 753,979
20,819,747 (1,392,840) 19,426,907
1,709,188 {910,588) 798,600
24,977,182 (3,510,647) 21,466,535
279,987 {29,371) 250,616
3,809,955| (2,946,804) 863,151
6,317,521 {446,283) 5,871,238
10,407,464, (3,422,459} 6,985,005
425,733 {1,663} 424,070
2,486,346 {624,409} 1,861,937
11,278,047 {4,613,500) 6,664,546
14,190,125| (5,239,572) 8,950,553
1,146,140 {1,150) 1,144,990
5,766,015 (1,767,504) 3,998,511
5,175,971 5,175,971
462,455 462,455
834,507 (448,755} 385,151
4,848 {30,801) (25,953)
1,302,210 (480,556) 821,654
4,235,636 4,235,636
0|(57,655,668) (57,655,668)
73,215,993)(73,317,777) {101,784}
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i Net
expenditure as
reporied to

Gross expenditure lncome  [Council
U= ) I £ £] e £

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 1,522,150 (722,745) 759,405

PERSONNEL 755,029 {23.727) 731,302

POLICY & IMPROVEMENT 1,522,477 {35,272} 1,487,205

GOVERNANCE 994,630 {16,780} 977.850

STRATEGIC FINANCE & FUNDING 508,288 (10.076) 498,212

LEGAL SERVICES 340,383 (148,443) 211,920

CROSS CUTTING CORPORATE SERVICES 5,662,957] ({957.043) 4,705,895

ENVIRONMENT & REGEN. OFFICE 534,710 (121,247) 413,463

PLANNING & REGENERATION 1,753,130] {1,062.419) 690,711

ENVIRONMENT SERVICE 20,412,190 (895,772} 19.516,418

CAPITAL DEV. & BUILDING CONTROL 1,617.349] {952,709} 664,639

ENVIRONMENT & REGENERATION DIRECTORATE 24,317,379 (3.032,147) 21,285,232

BUSINESS & CULTURE DIRECTOR 251,244 {20,378) 230,846

BUSINESS 2,891,522 {1.937.228) 954,293

CULTURE 7,288,304| (748,554) 6,539,749

BUSINESS & CULTURE DIRECTORATE 10,431.06%( (2,706,1461) 7,724,90%

HEALTH & COMMUNITY QFFICE 430,220 0 430,220

COMMUNITY WELLBEING 2,540,196 {576.654) 1,943,543

COMMUNITY DEV. & LEISURE 10,545,123] (4,381,852} 6,163,270

HEALTH & COMMUNITY DIRECTORATE 13,515,539 (4,958,504) 8,557,033

COUNCIL 1,171,771 {1.525) 1,170,244

CITY OF DERRY AIRPORT 3,427,181 {331} 3,626,850

CAPITAL FINANCING 4,771,425 4,771,425

FPENSIONER COSTS 121,657 0 121,657

OTHER COSTS 1,617,964 {1.000) 1,616,964

BANK INTEREST AND CHARGES 21.819 {59.562) {37.743)

OTHER COSTS 1,761,442 (460,562) 1,700,880

TRANSFERS TO/ FROM RESERVES 768,344 948,348

TAXATION AND OTHER INCOME 0](54,953,375) (54,953,375}

NET COST OF SERVICES 46,227,111)(46,649,671) (442,559}

The 2016/17 delailed analysis of income and expenditure for each service area is restated in line wilh the "Telling the
Story" formal of accounts. This is then reconciled in Note 2a lo the expenditure and income included in the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
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Derry Clty and Strabane Distict Counell
Noles to the Finonclol Sialements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

L3 Expendilure ond Income Analysed by Nalure

Expenditure

Emgloyes Benefils Expenses 7A 30.894,784 30.481,009
Other Services Expenditure 32,173,306 27,733,523
Depraciation, Amortisation, Imparment 4h, 10.445.444 ?.840,723
Interast Poyments PA 2,449,600 2,335,043
Deficit on Non-Curent Assails BA 174986 1.8%8,944
Other Expendilure 3,308,416 2.940.499
Total Expendiiure 79.646,758 75,429,743
Incame ] 2017

Interest and invesiment Income {30.800) {41.353)
District rate income 10D [51.735.54%) 148.7467.391)
Government grants and Conbributions 10A.8.C [13.901.545) {B.594,872)
Support Service Incoma [15,631,308) {11,654,932}
Other Income BA.B [4.424) (298,424}
Tolal income {81.305.844) {69.378.984)

(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provislon of Sesvices {1,658 890} 4,050,759




Adjustments between an Accounling Basls and Funding Basis under Regulations

Amounts included In the Comprehensive Income and Expendituie Statement but equired by stalute to be excluded when determining the
Movement on the Gencral Fund Balance for the year:

20]7'18 2016117

= 1 = =
Amourd: Im:lude:l In the Comprahonﬂve income and Expundllme Slcliemenl hl.d required by statule to be excluded when
delemmining the Movement on the Genercl Fund Balance lor the year:

Impairments {losses & revarsals] of non-current assets {76,948]

Revaluation increases/decreases faken 1o

Surplus/Delicit on the Provision of Services ] 1,673,343 1,410,691

Depracialion charged in the yéar an non-cument

assets " 9,049,069 10445 454 8,230,032 7840723
Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital under

slatule " E

Canying amount of nan curent ossets soid & 174,954 1.9348.446

Proceeds from the sale of PPAE, invesiment property

and intangible assets 2324 174 984 {37.500) 1.898944

Difference between finance costs calculaled on on
occounting basis and finance costs caleutated in
accordance with statutory requiremants 25 E =

Net charges made for relrement benefitsin
cccordancea with 1AS 19 21 7.940,000 6,691,000

Drecl revenia finoncing of Capital Expenditure

12.24 {241,803} {239.974)
Cepital Grants and Donated Assels Recelvoble ond
Apgiied in year
108 (287.502) 1590.082)
Capilal Granis Receivable and Unapplied in year
102 248 [7.693.945) {L.B20.807)
Rates Clow-Bock Reserve .
5 .
Adjustments in relalion o Short-term compensated
absences
25 [EF0) 58,859
Adjustments in refation o Lessor Amangements
Landfill Regwiations Reserve Adjustment o
Pravisions Discount Raote Reserve Adjusiment -
£ a
Amounts not Included in the Comprehenslve Income
ond Expenditure Stalement bul required by slatule to
be Included when determining the Mov ! on the
General Fund 3alance for the yeor
Statutory Provision for the financing of Caopital
Investmant 25 {3,737.607) [3,204,004)

Employers cenirbutions payable to the NILGOSC and
retrement benelils payable direct to pensicners 21 {4,427.000) {5.128.000}

2370.623 7.508. 681

c D o atutory and o a a d

0 3 ¥, 8 alé D14
— o e JIM_.‘“!E [ e e £

Capiia) Fund
Transfer to General Fund 24 736.541 240,045
Transfer from Generol Fund 24 (1,171,203} (435.362) 1632.8781 (379.852)
Renewal and Repairs Fund
Transfer lo General Fund 25 224612 1,132,604
Transter fram General Fund 25 [2.222.769) {1.598,158)  {1,000.805) 131,999
Landfill Frovision Discount Rale Reserve
Transter from General Fund 25 352504 352,504 - -
Other Funds and earmarked reserves
Transter o General Fund 24 462,434 1073124
Transter rom General Fund 24 {2.309,550) [1.847.114) [1.838.619) (745.4%3)

{3.927.732) {§,013,344}




[l Cost of Services on Continuing Operotions
[:] General power of compelence

Priex 1o Local Government Retorm on st April 201 5. expenditure for speclal purposes was limited under Section 40 of the Locgl Governmen!
Finance Act {Northern Ireland) 2011, This section wos repeacled by Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act {Northern reland] 2014.

Under Section 79 of tha Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014. the Council has the power to do anything thal individuals generalty
may do, Counclls have the power 1o do this with or without chorge. The power of compalence is not limited io benefitting the grea or It
tesidants nor is it imiled by existing powers.

The cctual expenditure under the power of compelence amounted fo £0 during 2017/18 (£01n 2014/17)

[S1External Audit Fees

The Council has incured the following costs relating to the annual audit of the Stotement of Accounts. cerification of grant claims and other
servicas provided by the Councils external auditors.

erlees *
Other Feas - Performance Audit Fees 16.400 16.333
Other Fees - Nalional fraud Inikative Fees - 1,201

* The figure of £55,000 inciudes an amounl of -£2,000 in respect of over accrved audit fees for 2016/17. Thera was -£2.000 alse over acerved in
2018/17 tor 2015/16.

There were no other lees incured in respect of any other services provided by the appointed audilor over and above those described above
[£0 2016/17).

Operating and Finance Leases
Councll as Lessor

The Council does not have any leases that would be classitied as Finance Leasas under the IFRS Code.

kB ating Lecses {Council as lessor

The Councll, In accordance with its siatutory and discretionary responsibitities, leases out land ond property under operating leases for the
following purpeses:

- for the provision of community services, such os sporis lacilities, tourism services ond community centres

- for ecenomic development purposes to provide sultable aifordable accammaodation for small local businesses

= any olher purposes

Rental income recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expendiluie Stalement in the curenl year amounts 1o £111,393 {2016-17
£103.704). No contingent rents were recognised.

The ledss controcts are oll nen-cancellable and de net include on exlension opfion. The lecse tarms are bebween 1 and 1000 years, fulure
minimum lecse Income is set out below:

s —

Mlnurn leaze rentols receivable:

No later than | year 71,759 92,674

Later than | yaar and no later than 5 years 197,546 - 229,340 -

Later than 5 years 119,027 - 155,983 -
388332 . 477,997 -

Ther awsels legsed by the Coundil 1o third parties are included in the following categaries of Property, Plant ang Equipment with
corrying vahes of

1_

Cost 2817.145 2793242

Additiens during the year {638) - 536,599 -
Accumulaled deprecialion and

impaEments at 1 Apxil {74.838) A 91.752) g
Dapraciation charge for the yaar {55.884) - {55.241) -
Revaluation/Imparments for the year 915410 - (620,541} -

3.401,195 - 2.862.307 -



Councl o3 Lessee

Fnanca Leases {Cauncl as fesse).

Ther Council has @ number of office photocopiers and printers oequired by entering inte operaling leases with typical lives of 5
yeaars. It also hos leased various sites all of which are freated as Operating Leases due to ther short terms.

The expenditure charged to services in the Coemprehensive Incomea and Expenditure Statement during the year in relation to
these ieases was:

Minimum legse yments

Total | 261.033 | 31,855 | 239.211 | 31.572

No suit-lease payments or conlingent rent payments were made or received, No sublecse income is expacied as ol ossets
hold under operating lease agreements are used axclusively by the Council,

The future minimum lease payments dug under non-concellable aperating leases in futura years are sat out below:

Nolater thon | year 155.183 o 179.113

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 yeary 275.28% - 392,186 7.393
Later than § years 130133 . 145.458 1.668
Tolal [ ssna0s | 3298 [ 718757 | 41177 |

BT



Employee Cosit and Member Allowances

2012/48

Salaries and Wages 24.662.568 24.134,330
Employers NIC 2.209.016 2099332
Empleyers Superannuation - NILGOSC 3.772,653 4,003,728
Empioyers Superannuation - Civil Service 243,547 243.619

481 009
The Employer's superannuation figwe In Note 60 above does not include £232,920 for the caopital cosls incured in respect of the
Council's 2017-18 exit packages (2016-17 £1.0%5,923).

In oddition, agency cosis dwiing the year omounied 1o £518,241 {2014-17 £723.486).

The Council's cutent conthibution rate to NLGOSC scheme is 18% {2016-17 18%). At the last actural valuation. cdated 31 March
2016, the Fund's assets as a whole were sufficlent 1o maet 96% of the liabilities occrued up to Ihat date. The Council also pake

£419,822 during 2017-18 [2014-17 £1,433.014) In respec! of former employees wha were granied early retremenl or redundancy
of empioyees who continued lo pay ther contributions during perlods of obsence such s career braaks.

Average Number of Employees - where FTE represents fullime equivalent employees

[.] Average Number of Employees

lFuIi-ﬁme numben employed 816 749
Part-tima numbers employed 93 115
Total Number 09 884

ful-time numbers employed

Port-lime numpers employed | §72 204

ola by 20

e 0 plo ato y B 0
5 £

£50.001 ta £60.000 11 14
£60.001 ta £70.000 4 1
£70.001 fo £80.000 - 2
£80.001 to £90.0000 3 i
[£50.001 To 100,000 , B

[£100.001 1o £116.000 -
[ET100071 16 £120.000 T 5

Tolal Number 1% 19

L:{ Members' Allowances

201718 201617
E

Basic allowance 572.563
Mayor's Allowance 30,113 30.197
Deputy Mayor's Allowance 7,528 7,549
Special Responsibllity Allowanzes 71.408 70.829
Dependenlts’ corers alowance 5.442 4.28%
PCSP aliowance 4,840 7.500
Employer costs 128,250 134,931
Miteage 28.3C3 37.024
Conferences. Courses & Visits 380 7.358
Travel & Subsistence Costs 3.427 943
Generol Secrelarkal Services 1.76& -

Other Costs 1.405 -

Communicaticn ond Support Costs 5353 4,643

Total 849 472 881.825




L]l Nosthern ireland Civil $ervice Penslon Anmengements

As aresull of Relorm on 1st April 2015, stalf fransfered from Ceniral Governmant 1o the Council and are members of the
Norihern ireland Chvil Service Pension Scheme.

The Norhern Irelond Civil Service Pensicn arangements are unfunded muit-employer delined banefit schames but the
Department for Communilies at 01/04/15 was unoble to identify Its share of the underlying assets and liabilities. The most up 1o
date actuariol valuation was canied out as at 31/03/2012, This valuafion is then reviewed by the Schems Acluary and updated
to reflect cument conditions ond rolled forward to the reporling dale of the DOF Superannuation ond Other Allowances
Resourca Accounts cs at 3F March 2018.

For 2017-18. employers’ contributions of £245.547 (2016/17: £243.41%) were payabla to the NICS pension amangements of one of
three rales in the range 20.8% to 24.3% of pensionabie pay. based cn salary bands. Tha scheme's Actuary reviews employer
contributions every lowr years ollowing a full scheme valuation, A new scheme funding vaivation based on dota as at
31/03/2012 was compleled by the Actuaty during 2014.15. This valugtion was used o delermine employer conbibulion rates tor
the infroduction of alpha. a new career average eorning scheme from Aprl 2015. For 2018-19 the rales will range from 20.8% to
26.3% however the salary bands ditfer. The conlribulion rates are sef to meet the cost of the benefits accruing during 2017-18 to
be pald when the member ratires, and not the benefits paid during this period to exisling pensioners.

Nobody retked sarly on lil-health grounds, | person retired (oge 40 at no cost 1o emgloyer), | perscn resigned ther posiflion (al
no cost 1o employet], one further person was dismised due to capabllity (ot no cost to emplayer). The actuarlal cost for
employees lor Ihe early payment of retirament benefils was £0 (2016/17; £0}.



|3 Other Operating Expendilure
[:] Surplus/Ceficlt on Non-Curren! Assets (excl Investmenl! Properties)

2017118 201417
e e e T e e ]
Proceeds from sale - {37.500!

Canying amaount of non-curan!
assats sold {excl invesiment
Properties] 174,984 1,934,446

§74,984 1,898,944

b Other Operoling Income/Expenditure

2017718 2016417

e R Eren e £
Income [6.424) [250.926)
|Expenditure - -

16,424) [240,924)

Other Operaling Expendiure 2017418 201617

e e L N e R B S AT et T
{Surplus) / Deficll on Nan Current Assets 174,986 898,746
Other Operoling [Income) / Expenditure [6,424) {260.926)

The obove figures ore prepared o two decimal places but rounding due to formatting may occur.
g
Blinicrest Fayabie and Simllar Charges

e ol R T ¥ SR I SR

Leqasa/hire purchase interest - -

Sank interest 1.838 3512
Government Loan Interest 2.444.808 2.510.472
Cther interast (please specify) 2954 21,059

2.44%.600 2,535,043

-] Interest and Investment Income

= Geem _ T B e i

I_Bg'lk nteres! 29,005 58.133
Employea car loan interest 1,795 1,430

NIHE Lean interest recaivable - -
Investment income on Fund Balances

Capital Fund - -
Repars B Renewais Fund B -
Other Funds - -
Other Invesiment income - -
30,800 59,563
[ Persions inleses! cosls

2014/17

| e — T — Y AT

Nat Interest on the ne! defined
benefit iability {cisel} 200,000 758.000

$00.000 758.000




d Surplus/{Deficll) on frading operations

Income from trading -

(Expendilure

{Surplus)/Deficil for the year -

& Income, Expendiiure ond chonges in Falr Value of Investment Properties

G178

201617

neoms including rental ncorme

Expenditure N

De-recognition in relation to
amaounts written off 5

Net income from investment
oroperties .

Surplus/deficli on sale of Investmenl
Properfies

Proceeds from saie -

Camying amoun of invesiment
properiias sold -

{Surplus}/deficit on sale of
Investment Properties: -

Changes In Folr Value of Invesiment
Properiies 5

Financing and Investiment Income
and Expendilure

2.535.043

linterest and Invesiment Income - 130,800} [30.800] - 159.563) [59.563)
Pensions interest cost $00,000 - $00.000 758.000 - 758.000
SUrpius/ [DeTic) on Hading

operatians - - - - o o
[OTher Invesiment Incoma - - - 2 11.800) {1.800}
Writedown of value of shares purchased in

CODA (Dperatians] Limited 2408414 o 2,408,614 2,144,999 - 2,144,999
Changes in Far Value of Invesiment

Properiies o o = o = -

5.758.214

(30.800)

5727414 5438042

{41,383)

5376479

i



LU Toxotion and Non $pecitic Grant Income
o T —

T i inamn Emiim poay

General 15.920099) | [6,185.984)

Other 5 B

[5.520,099)  {6,185,984]

<] Revenue Grants - Unapplled

e e o e e el P ndnie _E
Government & Other Granis - = 5
Conditions med and applied in yeor
Other N B

-] Caplial Grants and Donoted Assets - Applicd

201718 20156117

T e e T T P e L I
Government & Other Grants - {287,501) (590.081)

Conditions mel and applied in year
Government & Other Grants -
Transter om raceipts in advance - -

Donafed Awals - Condiions mel N B
Donated Assets - Transfer frem
donated assels creditor s 5

[287.501) {5%0.081)

[4 Capltal Gran!s - Unapplied

e e e

Government & Other Grants -
Conditions met and not applied in
yaar |7,693.945) | (1.820.807)
Other - -

[7,693,945)  [1.820.807}

[.] District Rates

207718 20417
Cument yaar 150,245,760] | [48,454.448)
Finalsation - pravious year 12.077,254) 1587.645)
Transitional Reliaf - -
Finalisation - other yaars 587,645 274922

(51.735.569) (48,767,371}

— e v P Y A S T B S e RSy £
District Rate Income {51.735,549) | [4B,767.391]
Revenue Grants [5.520,099} [6.185.984)
Caopital Granis and Contributions [7.981,444} {2.410.888]

{85.437.114)  (57.384.283)
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Desry City ond Strabane District Council
Notes to the Financial Stalements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

11 ¢ Intangible Assets

The Council owns Intangible Assets which relate to varous pieces of software purchased by the Council to assist in the delivery
of services. These assels are being depreciated over their estimated uselul lives.

31/03/2018

Intangible Assets f
— - S

: T e o e, = Rt s e e e e el R R e e
Computer Soffware and Telephone Syslems 1 20,602 | 30,202 |
20,602 30,202

d Investment Properties

The focllowing items of income and expense have been recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Siatement:

Investment Properties

T e Tl
F%entc:- income from Investment Aclivilies

|Ne! gain/(loss) 1.800

[ M Heritage Assets

Herilage Assels are valued forinsurance purposes wilh the latest valuation date being as at 3ist March 2018. This valuolion
incorporates the majority of legacy Dermry ond Strabane assets wilth the remaining assets valued using historical information.

Sculptures
The Council’s collection of sculptures are reporied in the Balance Sheet at an insurance valuation which is based on market
values. These insurance values are reviewed annually.

The colfection of sculplures has particulardy significant ilems in terms of both value ond public visibility. The colleclion includes
the sculptures funded through the HEART project which are locoted in five towns accross the district, Whera Dreams are Made
and Myles Afler Myles sculpiures which are located beside the Alley Theatre ond Let the Dance 8Begin Sculplure which is
located on the Lifford Rooad.

Art Collection

The Councii's art collection is reported in the Bolance Sheet af insurance valuation which is based on markei values. These
insurance valuations are reviewed annually,

The art collection includes the Dunbar Museurn Collection, the Civie Chain of Office, an abstract painling by Felim Egan and
several paintings and art pieces which are displayed throughout the main Council buildings

Additions during the year

A number of additions o heritage assets were recorded during the year. These include the purchase of the main bell from RMS
Laurentic which sank in Lough Swilly in 1917 as well as the recognition of an anchor lacated at the Strand Rood offices. the
Pegasus sculpiure localed on Skeoge roundabout and the Stitch in Time ilumination.

t Assefs Held for Sale

aro aie 0 3 010

B i o 1 L P e, e 7 ST ey et B [y b i
Cost or Valuation
|Boiance as ot | Apm 2017 S o B
Transtered from Non-Curent Assets dunng year 450,000 R £50.000
Balance as at 31 March 2018 650,000 - 550,000
Net Book Value
!iulance as at 31 March 2018 450,000 - 450,000

The Councilintends 1o dispose of the former Lisnagelvin Lesure Centre site following the opening of Foyle Arena. Council
officers are working alongside an appointed estate agent o progress the marketing and sale of the site.



g Fair Value Hierarchy for Surplus Assets

Delails of the Councii's surplus assels and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 3! March 2018 and 2017 are as
follows:

0 B R g 10 alue Guoted P g 0 e {1 P O =, q o o O a alue gs a
Qa g a al .. opse ab chse ap Q O1&
D e P
o —— — T e | PR, £ P T SR £ e
Existing at 01 Aprll 942,945 121.430 2 1,044,575
Transters rom Cperational
during year - 200,488 - 200,688

Depreciation, impairments and
transfers between levels of
hierarchy and movements to

Held For Sale {942,945} 205,382 - (737,543}
|1otal | - 527,700 | | 527,700 |

014 Re q fa 0 Gluoted P e & » 0 B g QO g 0 a alue as g

a e g or 1de al g ob abxle ch ab Q 0

EESTEETAEESS e e e | e s | EE————— e
[existing ot 01 April 292,945 2,874,262 - 3,187,207
Transfers from Operational
during year - {746.293) - (744,293)

Depreciation, impairments and
transfers belween levels of
hlerarchy and movements to
Held For Sale 450,000 [2.006,339) - {1,354,339)

[total | 942,945 | 121,430 | - | 1.064.575

Transfers between levels of the fair value hlerarchy
A number of public conveniences ransferred from operational to surplus during the veaor.

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised In accordance with the following levels:

Level 1
Quoled pnces (unadjusted) in active markets for idenlical assels that the authority can access at the measurement date.,

Level 2
Inputs other than quoted prices included with Level 1 that are observable for the asset, either direcily orindirectly

level 3
Unabservable inputs for the asset.

Highest ond best use of surplus assets
In estimating the fair value of the Council's surplus assets, the highest and best use of the assets is their current use.

Gains arising from changes in the fair value of surplus assets are recognised in the revaiuation reserve, unless they reverse a
previous impairment charged 1o the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. Losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the surplus ossets reduce any revaluation reserve balance relating 1o that asset and, thereaHer, are recognised in
Surplus or Deficil on the Provision of Services.

Voalvotion Process for Surplus Assets

The full revaluation of all surplus assets was camied out as ot 31 March 2018, All voluations are canied out externally by
Land & Properly Services, in accordonce with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional
standards of the Royal Institution of Chariered Surveyors.



h Foir Value Hierarchy for Investment Properties

Details of the Council's Investment Properties and informalion about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are

as follows
2017418 Recurring fair value Quoted Prices In active markets  Other significont Significant Fair value as at
measurements using for identical assets {Level 1) observable unpbservable 31st March 2018
inputs (Level 2) inpuls
(Level 3}
Office Units
Other Assets 28,000 - - 28,000
[Total | 44,000 | - -] 44,000 |
2015/17 Recuming fair value Quoted Prices in active markets  Other significant Significant Fair value as of
meaosurements using for identical assets [Level 1) observable unobservable 31st March 2017
inputs {Level 2} inputs
£
O3 y N
Other Asse 28,000 S - 28.000
[Total | 44,000 | -] - 44,000 |

Transfers between levels of the fair valve hierarchy
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 duiing the year.
Valuation Techniques

There has been no change in the voluation techniques used during the year for Invesiment Properties, The relevant
properiies have been valued by Land & Property Services as of 31 March 2018 ai open market value.

Valuation Process for Surplus Assets

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the investment property are recognised in Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services - Financing and Investment Income ond Expendiiure line.

1 C apital Expenditure and Capital Financing

apita pend e U 8 0164
Opening Capilal Financing Requirement 56,184,587 56.683.417
Capitol Investment
Property, Plant and Equipment 11 13,756,965 6,167,645
Intangible Assets 11 - 34,500
Souvrces of Finance
Government Grants and Other Contibutions 4a. 10b, 25a [287,501) [590.081)
Govemment Grants and Other Contabutions
applied from prior year 24b. 250 (3.871.723) {2,302.170)
Coapital contibutions received from external source 25a {74,800)
Transfers from Earmorked Reserves 250 (574.772) {291,946}
Sums sel aside from Revenue:

Direct Revenwe Contributions 4, 24f, 250 241,803} {239.974
Minimum Revenue Provision 4, 250 {3,737.607) {3.204.004
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 61,228,144 56.184,587

Explanation of Movements in Yeaor 2017718 201617
£ £

ncrease in underying need fo bomow | 5,043,559 | {498,830}

Increase/{decrease) in Capital Finoncing Requirement 5043 559 (498 830)

** The Council's MRP policy is as follows:-
. borrowings made before the introduction of MRP - Loan Principal payments in yvear,
. borrowings folowing the introduction of MRP - Annuity Method [commencing in the year following completion of the asset).

7



13 Future Capital Commitments

The Council has an ongoing programme of capital works ond the estimated cost of the schemas is as follows

Gross Cost Grant Aid Net Cost
£ £ £
Schemes underway 17.333,416 10,556,023 6,777,593
Qther Commitments 2.140.591 164,000 1,974,591
Tolal 19,474,207 10.720,023 8.754,184
14 entarie 0 B 014
Stock Derry Fue! 8,578 11,787
Stock Strabane 41,592 42,325
Stock Demry Bins 18.849 47,437
Stock Stores ltems - 53.074
Stock Demry Vehicle items 183,999 -

253.018 154,423

Total

The cost of inventories written down, recognised as an expense and included in *services' amounted to £0 (2014/17: £0).

Debtors
Long Term Debtors 2017/18

Employee carloans 54,167
Gas Income 542,288
Total Long-Term Debtors 596,455

[\% Short Terrn Debtors 201417
£

Government Departments 10,181,184 11,766,115
Other Councils 220,677 171,433
Employee car foans 32,188 17.073
Revenue Grants 1.384.6%7 373.727
Capital Granis 7.985.135 1,530,786
Value Added Tax 1,630,159 1,167,218
NHS 4,670 70,485
Gas Income 175,275 183,382
Prepayments 48,732 34,074
Oiher 563,682 806,320
Trade receivables 701,883 706,390
Impairment Igss - Trade receivables 1501,5%90) {612.057)

oo G = Debio 428 49 4 4 Ybb
Total Debtors 23,025.147 15,870,344

| 'J Investments
.l Long Term Investments

Invesimenis - general S -
Invesiments - repairs and renewals N N
[nvestments - capital fund 3 N
{Invesimenis - ather _ T

Anolysed over 2007/18

£
Shares purchased In CODA {Operations} Limited 2,436.506 2278127
Writedown of value of shares purchased In CODA {Operations} Uimited [2.435,504) [2,278.127)

Telal Long-term Investments o 5

ihe difference between the value above of £2,434,506 for the witedown of value of shares purchased in
CODA and the value of £2.408,616 in Nole 9 is £27,8%0. This relates to CODA fixed assel additions purchosed
in 2017-18 of which £27.890 were disposed off for 'nil' considerotion to CODA and which is reflected in the
disposal of fixed assels figure of £174,986 within the Capital Adjustment Account.
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Borfowings

Short Term Borrowing 2017/18 201617
£ £
Loans re-payabie within one year i | 3,436,172 3,084,464
Total Shert term Borrowing 3436172 3.085.454
-} Long CIIo . 0 0
Between 1 and 2 years 3.391.71 3,174,325
Between 2 and 5 years 9.856,778 9,180,512
Between 5 and 10 years 12,832,052 12,674,323
|in more than 10 years 24,153,609 23.867.157
» ola a { 0
Total Borrawing 53.470.322 51,982,781

Interest rales on Government Loans range between 1.16% ond 16.25%

Creditors
Q@ Short Term Creditors

2017/18

£
Government Depariments 1,584,120 1.517.745
Other Councils 90,348 27.124
[Remuneration due to employees 257,029 102,981
Accumulated Absences 367,869 349,839
Credilor Accruals 1,419,814 2,004,626
[Receipts in advance 2,592,648 3,171,446
[Trade creditors 3.271.657 3.875.732
[Loan Interest Payable 393,588 396,618
Capital Creditors 1,734,473 2,014,924
Other 318,651 375.406
Total Short Term Creditors 12032217 13,854,441

* Included within Receipls in advance is a balonce of £1.8M (£2.1M al 31.03.17) provided to Demry City and
Strabane Distnet Council by the Republic of relond Govermment under the 1erms of the Fresh Start

Agreement,

Total Creditors

12.032.217

13.856.441

[l Payment of invoices

The Council defauit target lar paying supplier invoices, where no other terms are agreed, is within 30 calander daoys.

Dwing the veor the Council paid 22.177 invoices totalling £45,329,732,

The Council paid:

9,671 invoices (43.61%) wilhin the 10 day target:
18,172 invoices (81.94%) within the 30 day target; and
4,005 invoices (18.04%} oulside of the 30 day target.

The average number of days token to pay suppliers during the year was 20 days.
The Council's poiicy is to pay invoices as quickly os possible and it will keep it's performance under review.

79



Provisions

Londfil closure

Bolance as at
1 April 2017
£

2,810,450

Increase in
provision

during year Ulilised during year

£

£

{62.510]

Unused amounts
reversed
£

Interest cost
and/cr discount
rale changes

Balance as at 31
Morch 2018

£

3,186,053

[Claims manogement

1,369.840

370,132

1,358,840

Reorganisation

698,230

171,279
(623.921)

945,484
5490379

Cument Provisions 838,232 418,535 212,558) - - 1,044,209
Long Term Provisions 4,040.288 817,245 411,383 - - 4,444,170
Tota! 4,878,520 1.235,780 [623.921) 5.4%0.37%
Comparative Year
Pro O D 1 # g yeo d g » ersed ate ang 0
Landiill closure 3,265,393 309,319 {744,262) - - 2,810,450
Claims managemeni 1,052,172 379.593 [41.925) - - 1,349,840
Reorganisation 954,463 1.384.350 {1,640,583) - - 498,230
oo 024 ( ] t 4 878 0
Currenl Provisions 1,806,200 1,384,350 [2,352,318 - - 838,232
Long Term Provisions 3.465.828 688,912 {114.452 - = 4,040,288

5,272,028

2,073.262

4.878.520

Landfill closure

{2.466.770)

The restorafion of Cuimore Landfill Site is complete and it is estimaled that the remainder of the aitercare cosls for 52 years will

be £3,186,053.

During 2017-18 guidance was sought from Department of Communities ond based on thot guidance the Council has applied
the Aringclose recommended discount rales la the Landiill Provision which are based on PWLB borrowing rates adjusted for
inflation. The Depariment guidance has also resulted in a negative reserve being crealed in the balance sheet for £352,904

Claims Mcnagement

This provision relates to the estimated costs to the Council under if's self-insurance policy of unsetlled Public & Employer Liability
claims as af 31 March 2018.

Reorganisation

Al 31 March 2018 there remains o number of single status claims/appeals ond severance payments oulstanding which are

expecied to be resolved or paid during the 2018-12 year,
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Financial instruments

The Council has no material exposure 1o any of the risk types identified below in its dealings with Financial Instruments

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposils with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Council's customers.
Customers are assessed, taking inlo account their financial position. past experience and ather faciors, with individual credit
limils being sel in accordance with intemal rafings in accordonce with parameters set by the Council. The provision for bad
ond doubtful debis reflects the Council's assessment of the risk of non-payment by irade deblors and, as such, there is no
further additional eslimated exposure to defaull and inability to collect

Trade debtors, inclusive of VAT, can be analysed by age as follows:

frade debtors, inclusive of VAL con

be analysed by age as tol

Less than three months 525,214
Three to six months 107,277
Six months o one yeaor 37.762
More than one year 228.178 |

898.433

** Includes the government element of frade debtors which is reflected in the Government Departmenit figure in Note 158.

There is no historical experience of default in relation to deposits with banks and other financial institlutions. Therefore there is no
estimated exposure to risk of defaull.

Liquidity Risk

As the Council has ready access to borowings from the Department of Finance's Consclidated Fund. there is no significant risk
thot it will be unable fo raise finance to meet its commitments under Financial Instruments, The maturity analysis of financial
abilities is included in notes 17 1o 19. All rade and other payables are due for payment within one year,

Market Risk
Interest rate risk

The Council is exposed 1o risk in terms of its exposwre to interest rate movements on its invesiments. The Councilisin receipt of
loans from the Department of Finance, however these loans are at fixed concessionary interest rates that differ from the
prevaiing market rates.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Council has a bank account denominaled in euros but there is no material exposure to loss ansing from movernents in
exchange rales, as whatever the euro funds ranslate 1o is the amount of the expenditure that will be Incurmed.

Fair Value of Soft Loans and Government Loans

The Councitisin receipt of loans from the Department of Finance at concessionary interest rates that differ from the prevailing
market rates. The foir value of these loans is £71,9462,440 broken down as foliows:

£
Govemment Loans 71.962.440
Total 71.962.440

Bl



21 Retirement Benelits

Parficipation in the Norhern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund.

As par of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the Council offers refirement benefis.
Although these benefits will not actually be payable unlil employees relire, the Council has o commitment to make the
payments thal need 1o be disclosed at the time thal employees eam {heir future entittement.

The Council paricipates in the Northem Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund administered by the Northem Ireland
Local Government Officers’ Superannuation Commitiee. This is o funded scheme, meaning that the Council and employees
pay confribulions into @ fund. calculated at o level intended to balance the pension’s kabilities with investment assets.

b Tronsactions reloting to relirement benefits - Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalement Charges:

The Council recognises the cost of relirement benefits in the Cost of Services on Conlinuing Operalions when they are eamed
by employees, rather than when the beneiits are eventually paid as pensions.

However, the charge the Council is required to make against district rates is based on the cash payable in the year, and the
real cost of refirernent benefits is reversed out in the adjustments between accounling basis & funding basis under regulations
line, in the Movement on Reserves Stotement.

The following fransactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalement and the adjusiments
belween accounting bosis & funding basis under regulations line, in the Movement on Reserves Statement during the vear:

201718 2016117

3 £

Net cost of services:

Cument service cost 4,919,000 5.002.000
Past service cost/(gain} 121,000 931,000
Ne! Interes) on net defined benefil Liability [asset) 900.000 758,000

Totol Post-employment Benefits charged o the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services 7,240,000 6.6%1.000

Movement in Reserves Stotement:
|Reversal of net charges made for retirement benefits in accordance

with 1AS 19 and the Code {7.940.000) {6,691,000}
|[Employers’ contibulions payable 1o scheme 4,427,000 5,128,000
Net adjustment to General Fund {3.513.000) (1,563.000}

The service cosl figures include an alowance for adminisiration expenses of £0 084M.

0 ecoq 0 0
O D O and * » 0 0 8 0
Liabilily gains/{losses) due to chonges in assumptions {3,534.000) [33.625.000)
Liokility gains/{losses) due to changesin demographic assumplions - 1.092.000
Liability experience gains/(losses) arising in the yeaor {744.000) 1,004,000
Acluarial gains/[{losses) on plan assels 3,842,000 21,078,000
Tetal gains/(losses) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure {434,000) (10.451,000)
.: Q ) ap e1aria O e * 2
Reco aron of prese a C e o e hab 0 0 ) QT4
Balance as at 1 April 188,061,000 148,541,000
Current service cost 6,919,000 5.002.000
[interest cost 4,853,000 5,003,000
|Coniributions by members 1,357,000 1,295,000
[Remeasurerment [gains) and losses:
Actluarial {gains)/iosses arising from changes in financial assumptions 3,534,000 33,625.000
Actuarnal [gains)/iosses arnsing from demographic changes - {1.092.000)
Acluarial {gains)/iosses arising on liabiities from experience 744,000 {1.004,000)
[Pasi service cosis/(gains) 121.000 931,000
Estimated unfunded benefits paid {109.000) {106,000
Eslimated benefits paid {4,180.000) [4,134,000
Balonce as at 31 March 201,300.000 188,061,000




Reconciliation of present value of the scheme assels: 2016417

£
Bolance as ot 1 Apri! 151,238,000 123.732.000
[Interest Income 3.953.000 4,245,000
Contibutions by members 1,357,000 1,295,000
Contributions by employer 4,318,000 5,022,000
Contributions in respect of unfunded benefils 109,000 106,000
[Remeasurement gain/(loss) 3.842.000 21,078,000
[Unfunded benefils paid [10%.000 {106,000}
[Beneiits paid {4.180,000 {4,134,000)

Baolance as at 31 March 140,528,000 151,238,000

The expected return on scheme assels is delermined by considering the expected relums available on the assets underlying
the curent invesiment policy. Expected yields on fixed interes! invesiments are based on gross redemption vields as al the
Balance Sheet dote. Expected returns on equily investments reflect long-tern median reat rates of retumn experienced in the
respective markets,

The actual return on scheme assels in the year was a gain of £7,795.000 {2014/17 gain of £25,323,000}.

Equity investments 114,616.992 112,672,310
Bonds 19,905,472 17,392,370
IPropery 16,052,800 15.879.9%0
Cash 7.223.740 3,932,188
Other 2,728,976 1,341,142

140.528.000 151,238.000

The above asset values are al bid value as required by IAS 19,
The bid value of assets for the Fund as a whole as at 31 March 2018 were provided by the Administering Authority.

The amounls included in the fair value of plan assets for property occupied by the Council was £0.

The Council's shore of the Net Pension Liobllity {(included in the Balance Sheet):

Fair Value of Employer Assets 140,528,000 151,238,000
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation {199.309,000} {186.,077.000)
Pension asset/{liability} of Funded Scheme {38,781,000) {34,839,000}
Present Volue of unfunded defined benefit obligation {1.991.000) {1.984,000)
Net asset/(llabillty} arising from the defined benefit obligation {40,772.000) (36,823,000}
amount in 1he Balance sheet:

Liabilities {40,772,000) {36,823,000)

Net Asset/{Liability) {40,772.000) {36,823.000)

a 0 a and kab { I8 { 0
Fair Value of Assets in pension scheme 140,528,000 151,238,000
|Present Value of Defined Benefit Obigation {201.300.000) {188,061.000)

surplus/{deficit) in the Scheme (40.772.000) (34.823.000}

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure: 31/03,/2018 3170372017

£ £
Actuarial gains/{losses) (435,000} {10.451.000}
|Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and
Expendifure {434.000) {10.451,000}
Cumuiative actuarial gains and losses {4.558.000) [4.122,000)

Histary of experlence gains and losses:

Experiencigoins ond [losses) on assels 3,842,000 21,078.000
Experience gains and [losses) on liabilities {4,278,000) {31.529,000)
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The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the authority has in the long run fo pay refirement benefils. The 1otal
liability of £40.772,000 hos a substontial impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet,

However, stalutory arangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Council should remain healthy.
The deficit on the Northem Irelond Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund should be made good by increased confributions
over the remaining working life of employees, assessed by the scheme actuary.

Analysis of projected amount to be charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year to 31
March 2019

310372019
£
Projected curent cost 7,369,000
Net Inlerest on the net defined benefit liabiity {asset) 949,000
8.318.000

The total contibutions expectied o be mode fo the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund by the council
in the year to 31 March 2019 is £4,671,000.

History of experience gains and losses

The acluarial gains/iosses identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve 2017/18 can be analysed into the following
calegories. measured os a percentage of assels or liakilities at 31 March 2018.

31/03/2017

Experience gains and {losses) on Assels 2.% 13.94%
Experience gains and {losses) on Liabilities 2.13% 16.77%

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an ocluarial basis using the projecied unit melhod. an estimale of the pensions that will be
payabie in ihe future years dependent on assumplions alzout mortality rates. salary levels, elc. The Council's Fund liabilities
have been assessed by Aon Hewitt Limited, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the Council Fund being based on
dota pertaining to the lotest full valualion of the scheme as at 31 March 2014.

2017/18 2016117
o Ta

Split of Investments:-
[Equity investments 71.4% 74.5%
Bonds 12.4% 11.5%
Properly 10.0% 10.5%
Cash 4.5% 26%
Other 1.7% 05%
Moriality assumplions:
Longevity at 65 curent pensioners: Yeors Years
Men 23.3 232
women 259 258
Longevify at 45 for future pensioners:
Men 25.5 25 4
women 28.2 28.1
Inflation/Pensicn Increase Rate 2.10% 2.00%
Salary Increase Rate 3.60% 350%
Discount Rate 2.60% 2 60%
Pension occounls revalualion rate 2.10% 200%
Take-up of option to convert annual pension into retirement lump som:
Service fo April 2009 75% 75%

Pension Assumplions Sensitivity Analysis

The pension figures disclosed in these financial statemenis are sensilive to the assumptions used.

The approximate impact of changing key assumplions on the present value of the funded defined benefit obligation as at 31
March 2018 is set aut below,

In each case. only the assumption noted below is altered; all other assumptions remain the same and are summarised in the
disclosure above.



Eunded Pension Scheme Benefis

Discount Rate Assumption

|Adjustment lo discount rate +0,1%p.d. -0.1%p.a.

Present value of the total obligalion[EM) 195,462 203,232

% change in the present value of the lotal obligation -1.90% 200%
Projected service cost {(EM) 7.156 7.587

Approximale % change in projecied service cost -2.90% 3.00%

Rate of General Increase in Salaties

Adjustment to salary increase rate +0.1%p.a. -0.1%p.a.

Present value of the tolal obligation(Em) 200,475 198.154
B change in the present value of the tolal obligation 0.60% -0.60%
Projected service cost (EM) 7.369 7.369
Approximate % change in projecied service cost 0.00% 0.00%

Rate of Increase to Penslons In Payment and Deferred Pension Assumption

Adjusiment to pension increase rate +0.1%p.0. -0.1%p.a.
|Present value of ihe fotal obligation(£M] 202 053 196,605
% change in the present value of the olal obligation 1.40% =1.40%
Projecled service cost (EM) 7.587 7.156
Approximate % change in projected service cost 300% +2.90%

Past Relirement Morfailty Assumpfion

Adjustment to mordality age rating assumpfion* - 1 Year +1 Year

Present value of the total obligation(£M) 205,208 193.442

% change in the present value of the lotal obligation 3.00% -2.90%
Projected service cost [(EM} 7.630 7.110

Approximale % change in projecied service cost 3 50% -3.50%

* A rating of +1 year meons that members are assumed o follow the morlaity pattem of the base table above tor an
individual that is 1 year older than them

Major categeries of plan assets as percentage of total plan assets

31/03/2018 31/03;2017
Equity invesiments 71.40% 74.50%
Government Bonds 5.20% 5.40%
Corporate Bonds 7.20% &.10%
Froperty 10.00% 10.50%
Cash 4.50% 2.60%
Other 1.70% 3.90%]
Jolal 100.00% 100.00%

Northern Iseland Civil Service Pension Arrangements

The Northern lreland Clvil Service Pension arangements are unfunded multi-employer defined benefit schemes but the
Department of Communities was unable to idenfify the share of the underlying assels and liabilities transfered to Councils at 01
April 2005, The most up to date aclugrial valuation was camed out as at 31/03/2014, This valuation is then reviewed by the
Scheme Actuary and updated to reflect curent conditions ond rolled forward to the reporting date of the DoF
Superannuation and Other Allowances Resource Accounts as at 31 March 2018.

Pension Liahility Former Gasworks Employee

Gasworks Pension Liability 31/03/2018 31/03/2017

£ £
Balance a5 ot 01 Aprl 111,500 75939
Payments during the yeor -2,554 -2,139
Increase/{Decrease] in liability -108.944 44,700
Balance as at 31 March 0 111,500
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in accordance with the Code {ond I1AS 37), Councils should disclose by way of note if there is a possible abligalion arising from
past events and whose existence will be confirned only by the occumence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fulure
evenis not wholly within the control of the authority, or a present obligation that arises from past evenis but is not recognised
because:

aj itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potentiol will be required lo settle
ihe obligation, or
b} the omount of the obligofion cannot be measured with sufficient reliability,

Guaranteed Minimum Pension {GMP) is o portion of pension that was occrued by individuals who were coniracied out of the
State Second Pension prior to é April 1997, At present there is an inequality of benefits between male and female members
who have GMP. Unlilit is known how GMP equalisation will be camed out, the impact of allowing for it in the pension Gabilities is
uncertain and no allowance for GMP equalisation has been mode.

Ciher than this GMP issue, the Councilis not aware of any other contingent liabilifies.



Derry City ond Strabane District Council
Noles to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

P I Other cash flow disclosures
[.] Analysis of Adjustments to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

< 0 0 8 014
£ £
Depreciation 1" 9,049,049 8,230,032
Impairment & downward revaluations (& non-sale derecognitions) 11 1,596,395 1,610,691
{Increase}/Decrease in Stock {98.395} 4,538
{Increase}/Decrease in Debtors 13.668.736) {66.8%0)
Increase/(decrease) in impaiment provision for bad debts [110.4467 175,293
Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors {1.540,743, {1.198.595)
Increase/[Decrease) in Interest Creditors [3.030, {21.566)
Payments to NILGOSC 21 3.513.000 1,563,000
Comying amount of non-curenl assets sold 8o 174,984 1,936,446
Contnbutions io Other Reserves/Provisions 611,845 [393.508)
- & * d D o c O pro o c
at a g and " gaQ ote 0 a 0
£ £
Proceeds from the sale of PPAE, investment property and intangible assets 4,8, 11,24 - {37.500)
Capital gronts included in "Taxation & non-specific grant mcome” 10 (7.981.446) {2.410,888)

.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement. cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in bank ond short term depaosits and
investments {considered to be cash equivalents). net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
reporting period as shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconciled {o the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

Restated

2017718 2018617 2015714

£ £ £

Cash and Bank balances 3.044,834 2,903.174 2,030,500
Short Term Deposits {considered to be Cash Equivalents) 12,259,537 15,943,841 15.989.775

[4 Cash Flow Statement: Operaling Activities 2017/18
The cash Hlows from operating ochvities include: £ £
interest received b 30.800 56,832
Interest paid ga 2,449,600 2,535.54%

Cash flows from Investing Activities 2017/18

£ [
Purchase of PPAE. investment property and infangible assets {14.037.414) [6.275.785)
Proceeds from the sale of PPAE, investment property and intangibie assets - 37.500
Capital Grants and Contributions Received 5,605,848 3,946,519
Other Receipts from investing Activities - 74,800
Net Cash flows from Investing Activities {8.431,548) [2.216.968)

] Cash flows from Fingncing Activities 201718 !

£ [3
Cash Receipts from Short ond Long Term Bomowing 4,774,000 2,667,600
Repayment of Short and Long Term Barowing [{3.0B6,456) [2.964,194)
Net Cash flows from Financing Activities 1,687,534 (296.594)
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FIN Usable Reserves
Ll Capital Receipts Reserve

These are capital receipts which have orginated primarily from the sale of assets which hove not yet been used to finance capital

expenditure.

The Copital Receipts Reserve is credited with the proceeds from fixed asset sales and other monies defined by stalute as capital receipis,
These are onginally credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the goin/lass on disposal and posted
out via the Movement in Reserves Statement fo the Capital Receipts Reserve. The reserve is written down when resources are appied to
finance new copital expenditure or set aside to reduce on authority's capital financing requirement (or used for ather purposes pemitied

by statule),
Capilal Receipts Reserve 31/03/2018 /032017
£ £
At 1 April 779,642 742,142
Movement
4,8, 11,23 = 37,500

Disposal of Non Current Assets/ Copital Sales

b Capftal Grants Unapplied account

Where a capital grant or contnbution {or part thereof) has been recognised as income in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure
Statement, but the expenditure to be financed from that grant or contribution has not been incured at the Balance Sheet dale, the
grant or contribution shall be transferred to the Capital Granis Unoppled Account (within the usable reserves section of the balance
sheet), reflecting its status as o capital resource available to finance expenditure. This iransfer is reported in the Movement in Reserves

Statement.

When, ot a luture date, the expenditure ic be financed fram the grant or confribution is incurred. the grant or contibution {or part
thereof] sholl be transfered from the Copital Grants Unapplied Account to the Capital Adjusiment Account, reflecting the opplication of
capitai resources to finance expenditure. This transter is also reporied in the Movement in Reserves Statement or in the notes to the

accounts.

Capital Grants Unapplied accoynt 31/03/2018 31/03/20017
£ £
At 1 Apil 7,294,566 1785017

|Movement
Unapplied Copital Granis received in year 4, 10c 7.693,945 1,820,807
Grants transferred to Revenue in year = 10.812
Unapplied Capital Grants tronsferred o CAA in year 12, 250 {3.871,723} (2.302.170)

M Capital Fund

This fund was established under section 56 of the Local Government Act [NI) 1972, however this section of the act was repealed under the
Local Government Finance Act (Nothem ireland) 201 1. Details of how this fund has been earmarked are noted below

apitq d ote ¥ 018 0 0
£ £
At 1 April 3,094,244 2,867.207
Transters {to)/fom Revenue 4 1,171,903 639,898
Transfers fom Repairs & Renewals Reserve 74,000 -
Transfers fom Economic Development Reserve 47,000 -
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General Fund 4 [734.541) {260,046)
Transfers between Capital Fund & CAA to finance Capital Expenditure 12 {30.654) {152,815)
At 31 March 3,419,955 3.094.244
Capital Plan 1,906.082
Cuimore Landfill 269.849
Convergence Cosls 107.388
City of Demry Airport PSO 690,232
Other Commitments and reserves 624,382
Total 3.619.953
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-} Renewal and Repairs Fund
This fund was established under section 54 of the Local Govermnment Act (NI} 1972, however this section of the oct was repealed under the
Local Govemment Finance Act (Nothem lreland) 201 ). Details of how this fund has been earmarked are noted below.

Renewal and Repairs Fund 31/03/2018 31/03/2017
£ £
At 1 April 2,964,588 3,235.718
Transfers from General Fund 2,222,749 1,000,405
Transfers to General Fund 4 {224,612} {1,132,604)
Transfers to Capital Fund 4 {74,000) -
Transters between Renewal & Repair Fund & CAA o finonce Capital Expenditure 12 [544.118) {13%.131)
At 31 March 4,344,627 2,944,588
£

Leisure refurbishment and fit out costs 384,439
Computer Hordware/Disaster Recovery 271,064
Recyciing - Brown Bins 300,000
Digitisation of Building Conirol Records 75,000
Sports pavilions health and safety works 97.717
Melvin 3d Design and Construction 113,310
Resurface Ballyfalton 80.000
Fiooding repairs and riverside health and safety works 1,134,506
Car park maintenance 91.500
Generol §.797.091
Total 4,344,627

[-] Other Balances & Reserves

O er gala gs & Rese e ote D 018 ) O

£ £
At 1 April 2.882.508 2,117.015
Transfers from General Fund 4 2,309,550 1,838,619
Transfers o General Fund 4 {4462,434) {1,073,124)
Transfers {o Capital Fund {47.000) -
Al 31 Maich 4,682,424 2,882,508

£4,399,624 of this reserve is used for Economic Development purposes and £283,000 is to equadlise (smooth) the cost of elections by
building up a fund to cover the costs of fulure elections by making contributions. as and when required, to the reserve.

[l Generol Fund

This reserve shows the accounting cost in the yeor of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounfing practices.
rather thon the amount o be funded from District Roles. Councils roise rates to cover expendilure in accordance with regulations; this
may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Staiement.

£ £

At T April 4,693,118 4,250,552
Applied Capilal Grants 10,12 {287,501 {570,081
Unopplied Copital Grants received in year {7.693.945 {1,820.807
|Cirect Revenue Financing 4,12, 25q {241,803 [239.974
|Depreciation and Impaiment adfjustment 4 10,645,464 9.840.723
Statutory Provision for financing Capital investment 4 (3,737.607) 3,204,004
Surplus/{Deficit] on the Provision of Services CIES 1,458,891 6,050,750
Transfers between Statutory ond Other Reserves and the General Fund

4 {3.927,732) {1,013,344)
|Net movements on Pension Reserve 4. 21 3.513.000 1.563.000
Disposal of Fixed Assets/Capital Sales 4,11, 23 174,986 1.898.946
Difference between finance and other costs and income calcuviated on an
accounting basis and finance costs calculated in accordance with statutory
requirements 4, 254 11970} 58,859
At 31 March 4.794.9M 4.4693.118



FLEN Unuseable Reserves

] Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different amangements for accounting for the
consumption of non-curent assets ond for the acquisition. construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.

The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as deprecialion, impairment losses and amortisations
are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve o

convert fair value figures to an historic cost basis

The Account conlains accumulated gains and losses on Invesiment Properties and gains recognised on donaled assets that have yet to

be consumed by the Council.

The Account also contains revaluation gains occumuiated on Property. Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2008, the dale that the
Revoluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

Capital Adjustment Account 31/03/2018

£ £
At 1 April 58,519.119 61,750,774
Applied Capital Grants 4a, 10b, 12 287.501 590,081
Unapplied Capitol Granis fransferred to CAA in year 12, 24b 3,871,723 2,302,170
Contributions received form External Sources 12 - 74,800
|Direct Reverwe Financing 4,12, 24t 241,803 239.974
Depreciation & Impairment adjustment 4,11 {10,645, 4564) {3.840.723)
Statulory Provision for financing Capital Investment 4,12 3,737,607 3.204,004
Dispasal of Fixed Assets/ Capital Sales 4,11 (174,986} (1.936,444)
Other Moverments 2,114,657 1,842,539
Transfers between Copital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund & CAA to finance capital
expenditure 12 574,772 291,944
Al 31 March 58,526,732 58.51%.11¢%

[-] Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve conlains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment

c

and Intangible Assets. The reserve is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

- revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost

- used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation. or

- disposed of ond the gains are redlised.

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2008, the date the reserve was created, Accumulated gains arising
before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

The purpose of this account is to build up o balonce based on the revaiuation jupwards or downwards) of individual assets. All such
revaluations [excluding impairment losses that have been debited to Surplus/{Defcit) on the Provision of Services are mirrored in Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. It is a fundamental principle of this account that it never becomes negative. If an asset was
held at current vaive when derecognised, the balance held on the Revaluotion Reserve is written off to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Revaluation Reserve 31/03/2018 31/0372017
£ £
At 1 April 53,818,386 55,717,647
Revaluation & fmpairment 11,24 23,110.682 {56,722}
Other Movements [2.114,657) {1.842,539)
At 31 March 74,814,411 53.818,385

Pension Reserve

ofe

£ £
At 1 April [36.934,500) (24,884,939)
Net Movements on Pension Reserve 4,21 [3,510,446 [1.553.861)
Revaluation & Impgirment 21 {327,054 {10.495,700)

At 31 March

(40.772,000)

(36,934,500}
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[} Accumuloled Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund balance from accruing for
compensated absences eamed but not taken in the yeor e.g. staff annual leave entittement canmied forward at the end of the financial
year. Statutory arangements are expected to require that the impact on the General Fund is neutralised by transfers to or from this
Accumulaled Absences Account

Accumulated Absences Account Notes 31/03/2018 31/03/2017
£ £
At 1 April [34%.83%) {310.980)
1D‘sfference between finance and olher costs and income calculated on an
accounting basis and finance costs colculated in accordance with statutory 4
requirements 1.970 {58,859)
Al 31 March (367.849) (349.839)

e Londfill Provision Discount Rote Reserve

The Landfil Provision Discount Rate Reserve covers the arongement, put in place by the Depariment under its omendment o the
2017/18 accounts direction {see Department for Communities circular LG 17/18). to allow for mitigafion of the impact on the General
Fund of changes to the interest rates used to discount the landiill provision.

Provisions Discount Rate Reserve 31/03/2018 31/03/2017
£ £
At 1 April = -
1Difference between finance and other costs and income colculated on an
accounting basis and finance costs calculated in accordance with statulory 4
requirements 352,504 L
Al 31 March 352,904 -

Significant Trading Operations

The Council considers its only significant trading operation to be the provision of car parking facilifies. The results for this are disclosed in
Note 2 under the heading 'Business & Culture'. namely Income of £1,344,201 (2014-17 £1,181.717) and costs of £677.33% {2014-17
£455,522).

Agency Services

8ID5 Company

The Council ocls as an agenl. collecting the income for Strabane Business Improvement District Limited {colled the 'BIDS compariy)
The BIDS company was set up as part of a new LIK wide inilialive 1o help regenerate town centres foliowing a poll held omongst the
business in the Strobane town cenire which resulted in a majonty vote.

As a result the BIDS company issues a levy on the business in Strabane Town Centre,

During 2017-18 £41,103 {2016/17 £41.947) was coltected on behalf of the BIDS company and at 31 March 2018 £6,586 (2016/17: £41.947) is
included within Creditor Accruals in the 8alance Sheet.
At 31 March 2018 £0 (2016/17 £6,500} was also owed by the BIDS company to the Council for invoices paid on their behalf,

The Council employes the BIDS Officer the cost of whichis reflected in the Council's occounis and there is 1 senior officer of the Council
on the board of Directars. The BIDS Company produces a seporate set of annual accounts showing their total income and expenditure.

Northwest Greenway

Together with Donegal County Council and Sustrans. Councii is working towards the delivery of the North West Greenway Network Project
funded by the Special EU Programme Body (SEUPB). Durng 2017-18, Councii received a letter of offer from SEUPB for €14.9M of which
Donegal County Councit were allocated €8.3M. Sustrans were aocated €267K and Counci were ollocated € 3M. Each recipient is
responsible for preparing their own cloims direct to SEUPB. AF funds witl be paid by SEUPB to Council who will then forward the funds to the
pariner bodies.

During 2017-18, Council received no funding from SEUPE to be reimbursed to the partner organisations.

At 31 March 2018, Council recognised a revenue grant debior of £107,422 and o capital grani debtor of £4,393.844 relating to its element
of the grant aid.
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.3 Related Party Transactions

A Related Party Transaction is a transfer of resources or obligations between reloted parties, regardiess of whelher a price is chorged.
Reloted Party Transactions exclude fransactions with any other entity that is o reloted party solely because of its economic dependence
on the Council or ihe Governmeni of which it forms parl. A refated party is one that has the ability to control the other porty or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. This includes cases where the reloted party entity
and another entity are subject to common control but excludes providers of finance in the course of their normal business with the
Council and Trade Unions in the course of their normal dealings with the Council. In addition where the relationship with the Council ond
the entity is solely that of on Agency (see note 27} these are not deemed to be Related Party Transactions.

Transactions with related parties not disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are set out below, where o description of the
noture, the amount of the fransaction and the amount of the cutstanding balance is as follows.

Community Groups/Assaciations/Other Bodies

On the basis of information curently available to it, Derry City and Strabane Distict Council has been involved in the following
fransactions during 2017/2018:

(A} Payments below £25,000

Council made payments in aggregole of £40,002 {2016/17 £48,864), each individuolly below £25,000, to 11 (2016/17: 9} Community
Groups/Associations or other bodies which were deemed o be relaled porties of Council. This relationship has arisen due to one or mare
Councillors/Chief Officers being oppointed by Council to serve on the Monagement Committee, acting in o non-beneficial capacity.,
Councillors/Chief Officers acting in a voluntary capacity as members of the Management Committee or Counciltors being an employee
of the Community Group/Association involved.

{B) Payments above £25,000

Councilmade 11 {2016/17: 10} poyments/contributions to running costs above £25,000 to Community Groups/Associations or other
bodies on which Counciltors/Chief Officers were on the Management Committee, acling in a non-beneficial capacity since these were
Council appoiniments. Details of these payments are as follows:-

0 8 014

Cily Cenire Initiative 133.207 124,769
ERNACT EEIG 53,3468 52,285
Citizen's Advice Bureau 538,852 450,553
RAPID Limited 109,511 30,484
IESE Board - 37.981
W.E.L.B. 132,445 130,160
N.I. Local Govermment Assaciation 48,484 59.132
The Resource Centre 63834 61,071
[Dove House 154,041 136,572
Demy Theatre Trust 538,703 445,045
Demy Visitor & Convention Bureau 514,776 518,346
Neighbourhood Renewal Parinership: waterside 123,583 -
I'Norfh West Regional College 66,905 -
{C) Car Loans

Council makes available car loans to employees for whom it is neccessary 1o have access to a cor to camy out their wark, This applies to
all employees, and not just Chief Officers, so no benefits solely apply to this Group. Total Car Loans outstanding as at 315t March 2018 was
£86.,355 (31st March 2017: £39,443). The total outstanding for Chief Officers wos £18,255 {315t Morch 2017: £13,638).

(D) Department of Communittes {(formerly known as the Department of Environment)

Council receives on annual operating grant from the Department of Communities. During 2017/2018 it recelved £5,920,099 (2016/17
£4,185,984), details of which are given in Note 10

{E) Deny Visitor & Convention Bureau / Visit Derry

Council is represented by 4 Councillors on the Board of Denmry Visitor & Convention Bureaw (VCB), out of a fotal of 11 Board Members. A
Chief Officer of the Council olso acted as secretary of the company. It is 6 company imited by guarantee with no share caopital, set up
for the promation of tourism in the Council area.

Puring 2017/2018 Council poid £492.000 {2016/17 £4%8.000) in Management Fees to the Bureau. Council also paid £24,776 to the Bureau
during 2017/2018 {2014/17 £20.344) for Advertising, Morkeling and Tourism Promotion. The Bureau is situated in @ Council owned bullding
for which Council received £36,000 {2014/17 £36.000) from a lease amanged through the Land & Property Services, an independent body.
Derry City and Strabane District Council has provided a guorantee to NILGOSC in relation to the pension rights of VCB staff, The Bureau's
Accounts are prepared and audited by an independent Audit Firm,



(F) Derry Theatre Trust

Councilis represented by 3 Councillors on the Board of Derry Theatre Trust, out of the totol Board of 8 Directors. This is a registered charity
in the form of o compony fmited by guarantee and not having share capital, it has been set up to manage the Millennium Forum, the
thegire in the City.

During 201772018 Counci paid £531,940 {2016/17 £443,300) in Monagement Fees to Derry Theatre Trust. Derry City and Strabane District
Council has provided a guarantee to NILGOSC in relation 1o the pension rights of Demy Theailre Trust staff. The Trust's Accounts are
prepared ond oudited by on independent Audit firm. Council paid £6.943 to the Trust during 2017/2018 [2016/17: £1,745) for Joint
Productions and initiatives.

(G) ERNACT EEIG

Counci is a member of ERNMACT EBIG, ERNACT {European Regions Netwark for the Application of Communications Technology] is an
international network of European regional and city public authorities that work together to access European Union digital technology
programmes and funding for the benefil of their areoas, companies and universities. The Council along with Denegal County Councilis
represented on the Board of Management by 2 Councillors and the Strategic Direcior of Business and Culture. Both Councils have given
a commitiment to provide deficit funding to ERNACT EEIG and during 201772018 o sum of £53.368 (2016/17 £51,561) was provided by
Derry City and Strobone District Council o cover core costs of the organisation. There is also o potentiol liobility that both Councils would
have to face if the orgonisation became insolvent.

(H) Deny Policing ond Community Safely Parinership

Council is represented by 10 Councillors on the Derry Policing and Community Safety Partnership, one of which acts as Chairperson.
During 2017/2018 Council made no net contribution (2016/17: £0} to the running costs of the Partnership. Council aiso provides legal,
financiatl and personnel services o the Partrnership for which it received £9,300 during 2017/2018 {2016/17 £9,300).

{1} Other Loca! Authorities

During 20117/2018 the Counc had expenditure of £166,404 {2014/17 £128,539) to other Local Authorities of which £90,348 (Note 18) was
outstanding at 315t March 2018 (315t March 2017: £27,124). The Council also received £611,455 {2016/17: £389.000) from other Locol
Authorities of which £220,677 (Note 15) was oufstanding as at 3ist March 2018 {315t March 2017: £171,433). These amounis mainly relate
to services provided in the areas of Legal. Environmentat Health, North West Regional Waste Manogement Group administration and
Properly Cerlificale fee income.

(J) Clty of Denry Airport (Operations) Limited

with effect from 1st April 2010 the Council transferred the operation of City of Derry Airport to a new company, CODA (Operations)
Limited, with Council being the sole shareholder in this new company. Council is represenied by 5 Members/Officers out of the total
Board of ? Directars. During 2017/18 further operational assets in the value of £27,870 (2016/17: £133,128) were fransferred to the
company in exchange for shares with an issued value of £27,870 [2014/17: £133,128). The Infrastruciure Assels have not yet been
iransferred fo the company but are being operated by the company under Licence. Council also purchased additional shares during
2017/18 fo the value of £2,408.616, which are also deemed to be of minimal volue (2016/17: £2,144,999), Council confinued to provide
suppert services o the new company which have not been chorged to the company bul are shown in Council's Cost of Services.

During 2017 /2018 the Council invoiced CODA {Operations) Limited for £22,297 for expenditure incurred onit's behalf (2016/17:£ 20.056)
and also received invoices from the Company for £42,974 (2016/17: £215,667) mainly for capital expenditure incurred by the Company on
behalf of the Council. A1 31 March 2018 £19,900 was owed to $he company by Derry City and Strabane Distict Council {2016/17; £4.93%)
and £21,125 was receivable from the company (2016717 £12,239).

in addition o the above the Council pays directly for costs associoted with the PSO route to London of which 88% grant funding is
received from Department of Transport.

{K) North West Region Waste Management Group Joint Committee

Demry City and Strabane Distiict Council is a member of the NWRWMG Joint Commitiee, which is a partnership of 2 Councils established to
colloberate inimplementing the Waste Management Plan to develop on integrated network of regional waste management facilities
which would be cost effective to the public. Tolal expenditure by the Commitiee during the year wos £234,518 {2016/17: £180,662). The
fransactions for the loint Committee are not reflected in the Accounts for Dery City and Strabane District Council but are instead
reflected in the Joint Committee’s Statement of Accounts for the year ended 315t March 2018. These Accounts are prepared under the
Local Government (Northem ireland) Order 2005 ond are subject to audit by a Local Government Auditor,

Deny City and Strabane District Council acts as the lead Council for the NWRWMG Joint Committee and deals with all the financial
transactions for the Group. The stalff are also deemed to be employees of the Council. The Council provides office occomodation and
support services to the Joint Commitiee for which it received £15,000 during 2017/2018 (2016/17: £15,000}. Council paid a sumn of £87,202
to the Joint Commitiee gs it's share of operating costs for 2017/2018 (2016/17: £20.127) and a further sum of £13,256 (2016/17: £1,256)
towards costs incumed on behalf of @ number of Councils.

As the Joint Committee uses Demy City ond Strabane District Council to cashllow it's activities there was a balance owed to the Council
as 31st March 2018 of £16,385 in relation 10 2017/18 (315t March 2017: £16.422 in relotion to 2016/17).
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{L} North West Air Access Consorlium

Demy City and Strabane Distict Council is o member of the North West Air Access Consorlium which was set up to develop air access to
the North West area of Ireiand. The other members include Donegal County Council and Tourism reland

Deiry City and Strabane District Council acls as the leod Council and as at 315t March 2018 had a sum of £282,745 in it's Bank Account
and within Receipts in Advance which belonged 1o the Consorlium {201 6/17: £282.745), These funds are to be used for joint marketing
campaigns 1o develop air routes for the region.

{M) Neorth West Regional Develeapment Group

The Fresh Start Agreement of Novermber 2015 committed lo supporling the regional development work of the North West Gateway
Initiative which involves Donegal County Council ond Derry City and Strabane Distiict Council and is part of the work programme of the
North South Ministerial Council. Funding of €2.5m wos set aside by both the ROl Government and Northern Irelend Executive to support
the Inilialive. The arrangements and structures required to inform the necessory cross border strategic and operalional context for
regional growth for the North West Region of the island of Ireland are in place and include the North West Strategic Growih Parinership
and the North West Regional Development Group.

Demry City ond Strabane District Council and Donegal Counly Council are partners in the North West Regional Development Group with
membership comprising 4 elected representalives fram both Councils. Deny City and Strabane District Council is the lead adminishiative
Council with allincome and expendiiure reflected in its' accounts for the yeor ended 31st March 2018. The following expenditure has
been incurred and reflected in cost of services:-

" 'z
Expenditure:-
Adminisiration:-
Saolaries and Wages 123.849 124,872
Overheads 2,968 4,078
Joint Project Expendifure:-
Foreign Direct Investment Support 46,660 60,795
Trade Missions and Visits 9,481 61,567
BREXIT analysis 46 20374
NW Joint Economic Marketing 14,968 -
Capacily Building T 57.753 14772
Total Expenditure:- 255,725 288,458
Income:-
Donegal County Council [144,229) 144,229
NI Grant Funding 77.000 -
ROI Grant Funding 467,183 =
Total Income 399,954 144,229

Denmy City and Sirobane Distict Counci has received €2.5m from the ROl Government, A further €2.5m letler of otfer was received from
the Northermn Irelond Executive during the year meaning that the entire funding is now accessable by the group.

In 2016-17 the costs were shared equally between the Iwo pariner Councils on the basis of Government lunding not being confirmed.
Now that letlers of ofter have been received the 2016-17 Council contributions of £144,229 has been reversed in 2017-18.

The cumulative spend to 31 March 2018 for the group in line with the Parinership Agreement priorities is delailed below.

Portnership Agreement Priorities/Theme:-

Regonal Economic Growth and Investment 213,890
Regional Pyhsical and Environmental Development

Regional Social and Communily Coheslon and Wellbeing

Cross-cutling: Capacily Building, Colloborative Working ond Flanning for
Balanced Regional Development

330,293

Addilional Emerging opportunilies for Regional Developmenl and Growth

Total Expenditure to 31 March 2018 544,183

K1 Events after the Reporting Period

On 20 Seplember 2018 judgement was handed down in alegal case taken by a Council against the Depariment for Communities
relating to the allocalion of Rate Support Grant. Derry City and Strabane District Council is a recipient of Rale Suppor Grant and the
decision in this case potentially has a significan! impact on the amount of Rate Support Grant that the Council moy receive. It is not
possible for the Council to accurately assass the impact of the Court decision unlil such times as the Depariment for Communities has
indicated how it intends to give elfect to the Court judgement
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Dernry Clty and Strabane District Council
Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2018

2017/18 Restated 2016/17
R e e T T e i B [N T e e e e T T
LU [Expenditure .C:;misl_l!jlg_:qrr.le Expen _qmire ~ Gross Expen_c_lliure _Grnsls !l:u:ume Iygf,_ggt_ggrﬁi_lure
Service Expendiiure S oy G £ £ £
Cross Culting Support 6581378 (1224019) 5357359 5,809,223 (957,063) 4,852,160
Services
Environment &
Regeneralion 30,680,956 (3,508,442} 27172514 28,568,549 (3.030.347) 25,538,202
Business & Cullure 12,723,224 {3.422,459) 9.300,745 11,640,191 (2.706,161} 8,934,030
Health & Community 16,980,827 {5.239.343) 11,741,464 15,706,783 {4.958.504) 10,748,277
Council 1,237,893 {1.150) 1,236,743 1,129,785 [1.525) 1,128,240
Cily of Derry Airport 9,427,249 (4.137.032) 5,290,237 6,749,991 {2,301,434) 4,648,557
Other Corporate 1,425927 {449,755) 976,172 2,928,797 {99%) 2927798

T S Gl 79,057,474  (17,982,220) 61,075,254

72,733,319

{13,956,035)

SB,777.284

Confinving Operations

Other Operaling 147,096 (6.424) 140,672
Expendilure

Financing and Investment 3,363.600 (30,800) 3,332,800
Income and Expenditure

Net Operating Expendlture 82,548,170 {18,019.444) 64,548,726

1,936,446

3,302,043

77,971,808

{298,426)

{61,363}

(14,315,824)

1,638,020

3,240,680

43,655,984

Taxation and Non-Specific

Grant Income - (65.637.114)  {65,637.114)

TR hAT 82,548,170  (B3,654,558) (1,088, 388)

Provision of Services

77,971,808

(57.344,264)

(71,480,088}

{57,364.263)

6,291,720

{Surplus) /Deficit on
revaluaiion of non-current {23.110,482)
assels

Remeasurements of the
Net Defined Benefit 140,054
Liability {Asset)

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure {22,970,6238)

1.899.261

10,692,700

12,591,961

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (24,059,014)

77.971,808

{71.680,088)

18,883,681

The figures above ore prepared lo two decimal places but rounding due to formatting may occur.



Derry City and Strabane District Councll
Group Movement in Reserves Statement for the year ended 31 March 2018

o = Generolfund  Otherfund ~  Capitall  TolalUsable  TofolUnusable  Total Councll
| Summary Baolances ond Receipls Reserves Reserves Reserves|
| Reserves Reserve 1= e

£

: 23011
15,985,060

- £ & £
742,142

21,088,083 92,871,908 113,959,991

Balance as at 1 April 2016 4,360,881
Movement In reserves
during the year

Surplus/ (Deficit) on the

orvislon of seniZes (6,291.713) - : (6,.291.713) . (6.291.713)
Other Comprehensive .

Income and Expenditure 3 3 } (12591.961) {12.591.961)
PG L LI (6,.291,713) . ; (6.291.713) (12,591,961) (18,883,474)

Income and Expenditure
Adjustrmenis belween
accounting basis & 7,840,884 (762,497) 37,500 7.115,887 (5,045,470} 2,070,417
funding under regulations

Net increase hefore

transters {o Statutory and 1,549,171 {742,497) 37,500 824,174 (17.637.431) (14,813,257)
Other Reserves

Transters to / from

Statutory and Other {1,013,344) 1,013,344 - - - -
Reserves
:‘:c:f‘“e/ OGO 535,825 250,849 37,500 824,174 (17.637,431) (16,813,257)

Balance as at 31 March 2017 75,234,477
Movement in reserves
during the year

Surplus/ {Deficit) on the

4,896,706 16,235,909 21,912,257 97,146,734

o g 1,088,388 0 1] 1,088,388 0 1,088,388
provision of services
Other Comprehensive
Income and Expendilure 0 ] 1] 0 22.970,628 22,970,628
oaicomprehenive 1,088,388 0 0 1,088,388 22,970,628 24,059,014

Income and Expenditure
Adjustments belween
accounting basis & 2739117 3,247,450 0 5,986,567 -5984,014 2,553
funding under regulations

Net increase before

transfers to Statutory and 3,827,505 3,247,450 0 7,074,955 16,986,614 24,061,569
Other Reserves

Transfers to / from

Slatutory and Other -3,927.732 4,280,634 o 352,904 -352,904 o
Reserves
Increase in year -100,227 7,528,086 0 7.427,85%9 16,633,710 24,061,569

Balance as at 31 March 2018 4,796,479 23,763,995 779,642 29,340,116
The figures obove are prepared to two decimal places but rounding due to formatting may oceur.

91,848,187 121,208,303




Denry City and Strabane District Council
Group Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018

Note 31st March 2018 31st March 2017
- it - = T T e
Fixed Assets Group Note 5 194,562,479 169,372,776
Long Term Debtors 15 596,455 655.380
LONG TERM ASSETS 195,158,934 170,028,154
Inventories 14 379,100 288,905
Short Term Debtors 15 23,010,232 16,474,978
Cash and Cash Equivalents Group Note 7 15,445.677 19,005,668
Assets Held for Sale il 650,000 -
CURRENT ASSETS 39,485,009 35,769,551
Short Term Borrowing 17 3,436,172 3,086,464
Short Term Creditors 18 12,874,936 14,201,170
Provisions 19 1,044,209 838,232
CURRENT LIABILITIES 17,355,317 18,125,845
Provisions 19 4,445,170 4,040,288
Long Term Borrowing 17 50,234,150 48.896,317
Other Long Term Liabilities Group Note 6 41,400.000 37.588.500
LONG TERM LIABILITIES 94,080,320 90,525,105
NET ASSETS 121,208,308 97,146,734
USABLE RESERVES
Capital Receipis Reserve Group MIRS 779,642 779.642
Capital Grants Unapplied Account Group MIRS 11,116,788 7,294,564
Capital Fund Group MIRS 3,619,955 3,094,244
Renewal and Repairs Fund Group MIRS 4,344,627 2,964,588
Other Balances and Reserves Group MIRS 4,6B2,624 2.882.508
General Fund Group MIRS 4,796,482 4,896,708

29,340,118 21,912,258

UNUSABLE RESERVES

Capital Adjustment Account Groups MIRS 59.174.550 59,374,431
Revaluation Reserve Group MIRS 7481441 53.818,384
Pensions Reserve Group MIRS {41,400,000) (37.,588.500)
Accumulated Absences Account Group MIRS (367.849) {369.839)
Provisions Discount Rale Reserve Group MIRS {352.904) -

91,868,188 75,234,478

NET WORTH 121,208,306 97,144,736
The figures above are prepared to two decimal ploces but rounding due to formatting may occeur.



Dermnry City and Strabane District Council
Group Cash Flow Statement as at 31 March 2018

2017/18 2016/17

= =——re— R R s ey e
INei Surplus/(Deficit} on the provision of services 1,088.388 I (6.291.720)
Adjustment for non-cash movemeants Group Note 7c 10.077.101 12,017,520
vt eyt e oL el e SO oy ueen
Net cash flows from operating activities 3,184,043 3.277.411
Cash flows from Investing Aclivities Group NMote 7¢ {8.431,548) {2.083,837)
Net Cash flows from Financing Aclivities Group Note 7¢ 1,687,534 (296,593}
Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3,559,991) 894,981
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 19,005,648 18,108,687
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 15,445,677 19,005,668

The figures above are prepared to two decimal places but rounding due to formatting may occur.
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Derry City and Strabane District Council
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st March 2018

Group Accounts
The Group Accounting Policies are the same as the Council policies and have not
been repeated again in these Notes.

Since there are no significant changes to the Consolidoted Group Balance Sheet as
compared to the Council's Balance Sheet, except for Fixed Assels and Pensions, most
of the other supporling notes have not been deemed neccessary. The reader should
refer to the Council's Balonce Sheet notes for further detail on these areos.

City of Derry Airport (Operations) Limited

Derry City and Strabane District Council is the sole shareholder in City of Derry Airport
(Operations) Limited and has included the financial results for the company in the
Council's Group Accounts,

The Income & Expendilure for the company is included within the City of Derry Airport
service expenditure line in the Group Comprehensive Income & Expenditure

The Fixed Assets which have been transferred from Council io CODA [Operations)
Limited have been included in the Group Balance Sheet as have the other
Assets/Liabilities of the company. The loss on disposal triggered by the transfer of the
Equipmeni & Vehicles has been removed from the Group Accounts. The remaining
Assets in use at the Airport have not yet been transferred but are being operated
under licence by the company.

The losses incured by CODA (Operations) Limited during 2017/18 have been
reflected in the Cost of Services and District Fund Balonces. These losses have been
mainly offset by the removal of the loss on investment incurred by the Council on the
shares purchased during the financial year.

Going Concern of Whelly Owned Subsidiary - CODA (Operations) Limited

Derry City and Strabane District Council (DCSDC) currently provides annual funding
of £2.145m 1o the company. DCSDC will be requested to continue with this level of
funding until 31 March 2021 as part of its medium term strategy proposal for the
airport.

As a result of the withdrawal of the London Stansted route by Ryanair, support was
secured with the Department for Transport (DfT) in early 2017 to operate a Public
Service Obligation {PSO) route to London for an initial two year period. Additicnal
support was also agreed with DCSDC to provide its share of funding for the new PSO
route. Probable chonges to the funding siructure of the PSO from May 2019 would
require significant additional funding commitment which DCSDC has indicated it is
not presently in a position to provide,

The company is in discussion with the Northern lrefand Executive and the DITin
relation to the funding of the PSO route beyond 2019. The company requires access
to the £2.5m Route Development Fund set aside by the Northern Ireland Executive
which together with the DT input will enable the London PSQ to continue after May
2019. On the basis of the discussions to date, the Directors are hopeful that this
funding will be released in which case DCSDC's current subsidy will be sufficient to
fund the airport at its curent level of operation until 31 March 2021.

In the event that these funds are not secured, DCSDC's current subsidy will be
sufficient to meet the cost of operations at a reduced level for a minimum period of
six months after May 2019 during which the viability of the airport over the short and
medium lerm will be considered and appropriate actions taken.



The external auditors of CODA {Operations) Limited have included a "material
uncertainty relating to going concern” paragraph in their oudit opinion and have not
modified their gudit opinion in respect of this,

Whilst there remains material uncertainty around going concern due to funding
discussions as cutlined in the Council's financial statements [namrative statement
page 1, govemnance statement page 17 and group fixed asset note - note 5a},
Council consider it appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that would
result from a withdrawal of the support outlined.
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Derry City and Strabane District Council
Notes to the Group Financial Slatements
For the yeor ended 31 March 2018

Group Nole 2

[.]Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expendilure and Funding Anaiysis shows how annual expendiiture is used and funded from resources {govemment grants, rents, council {ox and business rates)
by local authorities in comparison with those resources consumed or eamed by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. I also
shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision moking purposes between the council's direclorales/ services/ depariments

Detween 8l comprehensiva Income
IFundingiand | == . Sonime= i st
 Accouning b 74 BT Setement)
Cross Cutting Support Services 4,791,231 {566,127 5,357,358 4,705,895 144,265 4,852,140
Environment & Regeneration 21,468,739 5,703,774 27.172.513 21,285,233 4,252,965 25,538,202
Business & Culiure 6,985,005 2,315,740 9,300,765 7.724,909 1,209,122 8,934,031
Health & Community 8.950.762 2.790.702 11,741,464 8.557.033 {2.191,244) 10,748,277
Council 1,144,571 {91,752} 1.236.743 1,170.246 41,986 1,128,240
City of Deny Airport 4,181,904 {1.108,333} 5,290.237 3.533,590 {1.114,967) 4,648,557
Capital Financing 5175971 5.175.971 - 4,771,425 4,771,425 -
Other Corporate B21,654 {154,518) 976,172 1,700,880 1,226,218) 2,927,798
Transfers to/lrom Reserveas & Provisions 4,235,634 4,235.634 - 968,346 948,346 -
et Cast of Se e B9 9.159 £1.0 4,4 4,359,728 8 8
Other Income and Expenditure (57.855,447) 4,507,975 {42,183.542) [54,953,375) (2.447.812) (52,485,563)
D or I » 0 il (838 0 818 0

Op * o a 0& i
Surplus/ (Deflcit) on General Fund
Balance in Year {100.226) 535,818

Net expendilure charged to the general fund of £57.755.893 is elfeclively the 2017-18 net accrued cost of running the group that has 1o be funded by rates or
from the existing surpius in the general fund.

This cost includes financing and investment income of £2,412,374. As this is not part of the "cosl of services on continuing operations” in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Stalement (CIES). in order to reconcile bock to the net figure of £61,075,252 in the CIES, the £2,412,374 is reversed out in the "adjusiments column”
tolalling £3,319,359.

The Airport is the only service head Ihat has been charged its share of financing and investment income and expenditure. The remaining copital financing costs
of £5.175,971 consist of loan interest and minimum revenue provision costs unallocated to service heads.



Demy City and Strabane District Councll
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Group Note 2

|-l Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

This note provides a reconciliation of the main adjustments to Net Expenditure Chargeable to the General Fund to
arive at the amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The relevant ransfers between
reserves are explained in the Movement in Reserves Staterment

Adjusimenis between Funding and Accounling Basis

2017/18

AQ = ) enerc ar1o e q A d = P ange O s O o o1G

= 0 prene = » and O apirg O »| . L) = =
e s o e e T | e £ | Err e [ S e e b | P
Cross Cutting Support Services {211,871) 355,085 829 E (566.127)
Environment & Regeneration (4.366,437) 982,724 (354,611) - 5,703,774)
Business & Cullure (1,944,922) [369.316) (1.522) - 2.315.760)
Health & Community (2,071,732 {723.341 4,371 - (2,790,702)
Council (76.306 (60.447 - 45,000 (91,753)
City of Derry Airport (2.209.582) {147,000) - 1,248,249 (1.108,333)
Capital Financing - - - 5,175,971 5,175,971
Other Corporale 2 {122,085) - (32.433) {154,518}
Transfers to/from Reserves & Provisions - - - 4,235,636 4,235,636
Net Cost of Services {10,880,850} (2,760,000} {350,933) 10,672,423 (3.319,340)
Other Income and Expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis 7,834,351 (914,000) - (2.412,378) 4,507,973
Difference between General Fund surplus
or deficit and Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services {3.044,499) {3.674,000) {350,933} 8.260,045 1,188,613

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

20016/17

O, (1 = ®) energ 10 a e A QO < = ange & = O e wlfs

0 prehe 3 O e and ») apira 0 = - O Differe o
= A | TR | P [T £ [——n £ | e £
Cross Cutting Support Services {160.555) 17,685 (3,395} - {146,265}
Environment & Regenerction (4,273,716) 49,062 {26,516) {1.800) (4,252,970
Business & Cullure (1,218,854]) 18,000 (8,26B) - (1.209.122
Heaolth & Community (2.208,674) 38.110 [20.680) - (2,191,244
Council {6,158 3.143 - 45,000 41,985
City of Derry Airport (2,245,992 (52.000) - 1,183,024 {1.114,948)
Capital Financing . - - 4,771,425 4,771,425
Other Corporate - {931,000) - {295,918} (1,226,918}
Transfers 1o/from Reserves & Provisions - - - 968,346 948,344
Net Cost of Services (10,113,949) {857.000) (58,859} 6,670,077 {4,359,731)
Other Income and Expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis 511,942 {767.,000) - (2.212.754) {2,467.812)
Difference between General Fund surplus
or deficit and Comprehensive income ond
Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services {9.402,007) {1,624,000) {58.859) 4,457,323 (6,827,543)

-



Adjustments for Capital Purposes

Adjustments to General Fund Balances o meet the requirements of generally accepted accounting praclices, this
column adds in depreciation ond impairment and revaluation gains and tosses in the services line and for:

i) Other operating expenditure — adjusis for capital disposals with a fransfer of income on disposal of assets and the
amounts written off for those assets.

ii} Financing and investment income and expenditure - the sialutory charges for capital financing ie Minimum
Revenue Provision and other revenue confributions are deducted from financing and investment income and
expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices,

iii} Taxalion and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure - Capital grants are adjusted forincome not
chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in
the year to those receivable without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The
Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year
without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the year.

Net Change for the Pension Adjusiments

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of 1AS 19 Employee Benefits pension related
expenditure and income:

For services this represents the removal of the employer pension conlributions made by the aulthority as permitted by
statute and the replacement with current service costs and past service costs.

For Financing and investmen! income and expenditure - the net interest on the defined benefit liability is charged 1o
the CIES.

ther Stalutory Adjustments / Other Differences
Other Differences between amounis debited/credited o the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
and amounis payable/receivable to be recognised under statute:
The charge for services here is a statutory adjustiment for o financial instrument relating to a decision by services lo
issue soft loons fo community organisations. Soft loans are loans below market rates,
For Financing and invesiment income and expenditure the other differences column recognises adjustments to
General Fund for the timing differences for premiums and discounts.
The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income ond expenditure represents the difference between what
is chargeable under statutory regulations for Council Tax and NDR that was projected to be received al the start of
the year and the income recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in the Code.



Deny Chy and Strabana Distrlct Counell
Notes to the Group Finonclal Stolements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Group Note 3

Amounts included in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure $talement bul required by sotute fo be excluded when determining the

Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year:

2017-‘\8 201417

e

= =

LE|

—:n— e —-.qgj
Amounl: included In the Comprehansive Income and Expendiiure Slatement buf requlmd by stalvie jo be excluded when determining the
Movement on the Generol Fund Bolance for the yearn

Impairments (losses & reversals) of non-cunent

assets Gioup Nole § 176,948)

Derecognition {olher than disposal] of non-cuirent

assels

Revalualion increases/decreases laken 1o

Surplus/Deficil on the Provision of Services Group Note 5 1,673,343 1.610.691

Deprecialion charged in the year on non-cunent

assels Group Note 5 9.284,453 10,880,848 8.503,255 10,113,944
Net Revenue expendilure funded lrom capila

under statule

Carrying amaount of non currenl assels sold Group Nole § 147.0%4 1,936.444
Proceeds Irom the sate of PPLE, invesiment
properly ond inlangible assels - 147,094 {37,500 1. B78,946

Ditference belween finance costs calculaled on
an accounting basis and finance costs calculated
In occordance with stalulory requiremens -
Het charges made for refirement benelits in
accordance wilh 145 19 Group Note é 8.319.000 7.015,000
Direct revenue financing of Capilal Expendituie

12.23 {241,803) [239,974)
Capital Grants and Donated Assels Receivable
ond Applied in year 108 [287.502) {5%0.082)
Capital Grants Receivable and Unapplied in year

10C {7.693.945) {1.820,807)
Rates Clow-Back Reserve

23

Adjusimenis in relafion 1o Short-term compensaled
absences 24 {1,970} 58,859
Adjustments in relolion to Lessor Amangemenis

Landii® Regulalions Reserve Adjustment
23
Provisicns Discount Rale Reserve Adjustment 23
Amounts not Included In the Comprehensive
Income and Expendiure Slatement but required
by statule to be Included when determining the
Movement on the General Fund Balance for the
year

Slatutory Provision lor Ihe financing of Capilal

Investmenl 23 13.737.607) 13,204,004}
Employers contiibutions payable 1o the NILGOSC

and refirement benelits payable direct to

pensioners Group Nole & {4,645,000) {5.3%1,000)

2733117 7.840.884

b ef franste o)/to atutery and othe 0 B 0 B & b

R o e e T w o] L | Ve e P | R
Cupl‘lal Fund
Transfer to General Fund 736,541 260,044

Transfer from General Func {1.171.903} {435,362) {639,898} {379.852)
Renewal and Repalrs Fund

Transfer to Genetal Fund 224,612 1,132,404

Transfer from General Fund 2,222,769 {1.998,157) { 1,000,605} 131.9%%
LandHill Pravision Discount Rate Reserve

Transfer to General Fund 352,904 -

Transier from General Fund - 352,904 - -
Othes Funds and sarmarked reserves

Transier 1o General Fund 442,434 1.073.125

Transfer from General Fund {2.309.550) [1.847,1148) 11,838,419} {745.493)

3.927.731) {1.013,348)




Deiry City and Strabane District Council
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Group Note 4
Il Employee Costs and Member Allowances

a Stali Costs 20172/18
=i = = = o Ca i e et k]
Salaries and Wages 26,948,663 25.854,3]
Employers NIC 2,407,072 2,265,229
Employers Superannuation - NILGOSC 3,995,653 4,266,728
Employers Superannuation - Civil Service 245.547 243,619
Total staff cosls 33596935 32,429,893
The Employer's superannuation figure in Note éa above does not include £232,920 for the capital costs incurred in respect of the Council's 2017-
18 exit packages (2016-17 £1,094.923).
In addilion, agency costs duiing the year amounted to £518,241 (2016-17 £723,484),
The Council's cument contnbution rate to NILGOSC scheme is 18% (2016-17 18%). Af he last acturial vaiuation, dated 31 March 2014, the Fund's
assets as a whole were sufficient to meet $6% of the liabilities accrued up lo that date. The Council also paid £419,822 duiing 2017-18 {2014-17
£1.433.016) in respect of former employees who were granted early refirement or redundoncy ar employees who continued to pay their
contributions during periods of absence such as career bregks.

b Average Number of Employees - where FIE represents lulliime equivalent employees
Average Number of Employees 2017/18
Fuil time numbers employed 814 749
Parl lime numbers employed 93 115
Other 109 10
Total Number 1.018 294
Full-time numbers employed 934 B?6
Part-time numbers employed 172 204
Total Number 1,104 1,100

(- Senior Employees’ Remuneration

H > 7 el T K i ier i E s o] i 2l £I
£50.001 to £60,000 N 14
£40.001 to £70.000 4 1
£70,001 to £80,000 5 2
£80,001 0 £90.0000 3 1
£90,001 fo £100,000 5 s
£100.001 fo £110.000 = T
£110,001 to £120,000 ] =
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Derry City and Strabane District Council
Noftes to the Group Financial Stotements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Group Note &
Refirement Benefits

éa Participation in the Nerthern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund.
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of iis officers and other employees, the Group offers
retirement benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable unlil employees retire, the Group
has a commitment to make the poyments that need to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their
future entitliement,

The Group participates in the Northern ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund adminisiered by
the Narthemn Ireland Local Government Officers’ Superannuation Committee. This is a funded scheme,
meaning that the Group and employees pay contributions into a fund, colculated at a level intended to
balance the pension’s liohilities with investment assets.

&b Transactions relating to refirement benefits- Comprehensive Income and Expendiiure Statement Charges:

The Group recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the Cost of Services on Continuing Operations when
they are earned by employees. rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.

However, the charge the Group is required to moke against expenditure is based on the cash payable in
the year, and the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out in the adjustments between accounting
basis & funding basis under regulations line, in the Movement on Reserves Statement. The following
fransactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account ond the
adjusiments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations line, in the Movement on
Reserves Statement during the year:

Nofe 2017718 2018717
£ £

Net cost of services:
Current service cost 7,284,000 2,2/ 3,000
Past service cost/(gain) 121,000 975,000
Gains and losses on settlements or curfailments 0] 0
Net operafing expendifure:
Net Interest on net defined benefit liability [osset) 914,000 /767,000
Total Post-employment Benefits charged io the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services 8,319,000 7,015,000

Adfustments befween accounfing bosis & funding basls
under regulations:

Reversal of net charges made for retirement benefits in
accordance with 1AS 19 (8,319,000} (7.015,000)
Actual omount charged against the general tund balance
for pensions In the year:

Employers confribufions payable To scheme 4 345,000 5,371,000

Net charge to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement {3,674,000) (1.424,000)

The service cost figures include an allowance for administration expenses of £0.090m.
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Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Nole 2017718 2018717
£ £
Liobility gains/{iosses) due to changes in assumptions (3,534,000) (33,790,000}
Liability experience gains/(Losses) arising in the year {764,000) 1,004,000
Actuarial gains/(losses) on plan assets T 4,049,000 22,138,000
Cther - |if appiicable) 0] 0
Tofal galns/{losses) recognised In Ofher Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure (249,000) (10,548,000)
&c Assefs and liabllities in relation to retiremeni benefits
Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities:
Nofe 2017718 2018717
£ £
Balance as af T ApriT 2617 196,846,000 155,467,000
Current service cost /7,284,000 9.2/3,000
Interest cost 2,082,000 5,246,000
Coninbutions by members 1,433,000 1,372,000
Remeasurements (gains) and losses:
Actuarial gains/losses arising on liakilities from experience 744,000 (1,004,000}
Acluarial gains/losses arising from demographic changes ol {1.092,000)
Actuarial gains/losses arsising from changes in financial
assumplions 3,554,000 34,882,000
Other (it applicable] 0] 0
Past service costs/[gains] 121,000 975,000
Losses/[gains} on curiallments 0 0
Tiabilifies exfinguished on sefllements 0 0
tstimated unfundea benethits paid (109,000) {106,000}
tshmated benetits paid (4,213,000) (4,167,000}
[Bolance as af 31 March 2018 210,742,000f 194,844,000,
Reconciliation of present valve of the scheme assets:
Note 2017718 2016/17
£ z
[Balance as of 1 Apnl 2017 159.36%.000 130,262,000
Inferest Income 4,168,000 4,472,000
Coniributions by members 1,433,000 1,372,000
Contrbutions by employer 4,536,000 2,285,000
Conirbutions in respect of unfunded benefils 109,000 106,000
Remeasurements gain/{loss) 4,049,000 22,138,000
Assets distibuted on settlernenis 0 0
Unfunded benetits paid (10%.000) {106,000}
Benefils paid (4.213,000) 14.167,000]
[Balance as af 31 March 2018 T89.392000] 159,349,000

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the
assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected vields on fixed interest investments are based on
gross redemption yields as ot the Balance Sheet date. Expected returns an equity investments reflect long-
term real rates of return experienced in the respective markets.

The actual return on scheme assets in the year was a gain of £8,217,000 {2016/17 £26,617,000)
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Fair Value of Plan Assets

31/03/2018 31/03/2017
£ i

Equity investments 120,909,992 118,729,310
Bonds 20,998,472 18,327,370
Property 16,933,800 16,733,990
Cash 7.620,760 4,144,188
Other 2,878,976 1,434,142

169,342,000 159,369,000
The above asset values are at bid value as required by 1AS 19,
The bid value of assets for the Fund as a whole as at 31 March 2018 were provided by the Adminisiering
The amounts included in the fair value of plan assets for property occupied by the Council was £0.
The Group's share of the Net Pension Liability (included in the Balance Sheet):

3170372018 3170372017

£ £

Fair Value of Employer Assets 169,342,000 159,369,000
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation (208,751,000} {194,862,000)
Pension asset/(liobility) of Funded Scheme (39.409,000) (35,493,000)
Present Value of Unfunded defined benefit obligation {1,991,000) {1,984,000)
Unrecognised Past Service Cost 0 0
QOther movement in the liability [assef} {if applicable] 0 0
Net Asset/{Liability) arising from the defined benefit obligation (41,400,000) (37.477,000)
Amount in the Balance sheef:
Liabilities {41,400.000) {37.477.,000)
Assels 0 Q
Net Asset/{Liability) (41.400,000) (37.,477,000)

. The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Group has in the long run to pay retirement
benefits. The total liability of £41,400,000 has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Group as

recorded in the Balance Sheet,

However, slatutory arangements for funding the deficit mean thai the financial position of the Group
remains healthy. The deficit on the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund will be made
good by increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees, assessed by the scheme

actuary.

Analysis of projected amount to be charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for

the year to 31 March 2019

31.03.17
£
Projected cumrent cost 7,747,000
Interest on obligation 962,000
expected return on asseis 0
Past service cost 0
Gains ond losses on setlements or curfailmenis 0
8,709,000

The iotal contributions expected to be made to the Nodhern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension

Fund by the Group in the year to 31 March 2019 is £5,062,000.
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History of experience gaoins and losses

The actuarial gains identified as movernents on the Pensions Reserve 2017/18 can be analysed into the

following categories, measured as a percentage of assets or liabilities ot 31 March 2018,

2017/18

2016/17

o

o

Experience gains and (losses) on Assets

%

14%

Experience gains and [losses) on Liabilities

-2%

-17%

4d Basis for estimating assets and liabilitles

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the
pensions that will be payabie in the fulure years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary
levels, etc. The Group's Fund liabilities have been assessed by AON Hewitt Limited, an independent firm of
actuaries, estimates for the Group Fund being based on data pertaining to the lalest full valuation of the

scheme as at 31 March 2014,

201718 201617
Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 curent pensioners;
Men 233 23.2
Women 25.9 258
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
Men 25.5 25.4
Women 28.2 28.1
Inflation/Pension Increase Rote 2.10% 2.00%
Salary Increase Rate 3.60% 3.50%
Discount Rate 2.60% 2.60%
Pension Accounts Revaluation Rate 2.10% 2.00%
Take-up of option to convert annual pension into retirement lump
Service to April 2009 75% 75%
Service post April 2009 0% 0%

ée Pension Assumptions Sensitivity Analysis

The pension figures disclosed in these financial statements are sensitive to the assumptions used.

The approximate impact of changing key assumptions on the present value of the funded defined benefit

obligation as at 31 March 2018 is set out below.

In each case, only the assumption noted below is altered; all other assumptions remain the same and are

summarised in the disclosure above.
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Funded Pension Scheme Benefits

Discount Rate Assumption

Adjustment to discount rate +0.1%p.a. -0.1%p.q.

Present value of the total obligation {£M) 195,462 203,232

% change in the present value of the tolal obligation -1.90% 2.00%
Projected service cost (EM) 7.156 7.587

Approximate % change in projected service cost -2.90% 3.00%
Rate of General Increase in Salaries

Adjustment to salary increase rale +0.1%p.a. _ |01%p.q.

Present value of the toial obligation (EM) 200,475 198,154

% change in the present value of the total obligation 0.60% -0.60%
Projected service cost (EM) 7.34&9 7.369

Approximate % change in projected service cost 0.00% 0.00%
Rate of Increase to Pensions in Payment and Deferred Penslion Assumption

Adjustment to pension increase rate +0.1%p.qa. -0.1%p.a.

Present value of the total obligation {£EM) 202,053 196,605

% change in the present value of the total obligation 1.40% -1.40%
Projected service cost (EM]) 7.587 7.156

Approximaie % change in projected service cost 3.00% -2.90%
Post Retirement Mortality Assumption

Adjustment to mortality age rating assumption® -1 Year +1 Year

Ereseni value of the total obligation [£M) 205,208_ 193,442

% change in the present value of the total obligation 3.00% -2.90%
Projected service cost [£M) 7.630 7.110

Approximate % change in projected service cost 3.50% -3.50%

* A raling of +1 year means that members are assumed to follow the mortality pattern of the base table

above for an individual that is 1 year older than them.
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& Major categories of plan assets as percentage of total plan asseis

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund's assets consist of the following cotegories,

by proportion of the total assets held:

2017/18 201517

4 %

Equity investmenis 71.4 74.5

Property 5.2 10.5
Government Bonds 7.2 5.4
Corporale Bonds 10 6.1
Cosh 4.5 2.4
Other 1.7 0.9

100.0 100.0

4g Pension Liability Former Gasworks Employees

Council also has a liability for Pension payment for 1 former employee of the City Gasworks. This payment is
funded by the Council each year from the Rates Estimates and is not related to a Pension Scheme. Due to
the small scale of this liability ne Actuariol valuation of the liability has taken place. The liobility ot the end of
each vear is calculoted using the formula for the capital cost of compensatory added years, which takes
into account the age of the person, gender and a market value adjustment.

The Pension Liability is as follows:

Nole 2017718 20146717

£ i

Balance as af T April 2017 111,500 75,939
Payments during year <) {2,554) {9.13%}
Increcse/[{Decrease] in lability {108,944) 44,700
Balonce os of 31 March 2018 0 111,500

é6h Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension Arrangements

The Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension arangements are unfunded mulli-employer defined beneifit
schemes but the Department of Communities was unable to identify the share of the underlying ossets and
liabilities transfered to Councils at 01 April 201 5. The most up to date actuariol valuation was carried out as
at 31/03/2016. This valuation is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updated to reflect current
conditions and rolled forward to the reporiing date of the DoF Superaonnualion and Other Allowances

Resource Accounts as at 31 March 2018.
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Derry City and Sfrabane District Council
Notes to the Group Financial Stolements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Group Note 7
Other cash flow disclosures

a Analysis of Adjustments to Group Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of services

for noncash movements Notes 2017/18 2014/17
£ £
Depreciation Group Note § 9,284,453 8,503,255
Impairment & downward revaluations {& non-sale
derecognitions) Group Note 5 1.596.395 1,610,691
Amartisation {included with depreciation above) - -
[Increase)/Decrease in Stock {90,195 {4.320)
(Increase)/Decrease in Debiors [4.014,623 14,910
Increase/(decrease) in impairment provision for bad debts {110,447} 175,293
Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors {1.018,395 {1,294,540)
Increase/(Decrease) in Inlerest Creditors {3,030 {21,568)
Payments to NILGOSC Group Nole & 3,731,000 1,824,000
Camying amount of non-cumrent assefs sold Group Nole 7] 147,096 1,936,444
AIC/WIP written off to Net Cost of Services 5 -
Coniributions 1o Other Reserves/Provisions 554,867 (728.,629)
Movement in value of investment properties-inctuded - -
Amounts posted to CIES from Donated Assets Account - -

10,077,101 12,017,520

Adjust for tems included in the Group net surplus or deficit
on the provision of services that are investing and financing
activilies

2017/18

2016/17

Purchase of shorl-term [not considered 1o be cash
equivalents) and long-term investrments (includes
investments in associates. joint ventures and subsidiaries)

Proceeds from short-term (not considered to be cash
equivalenis) and long-term investments {includes
investments in ossociates, joint ventures and subsidiaries)

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment properly and

infangible assefs - {37.500)
Capital grants included in "Taxalion & non-specific gront
income" {7,981,444) {2.410,889)

b Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow stalement, cash and cosh equivalents include cash on hand and in bank and
shorl term deposits and invesiments {considered o be cash equivalents), nel of oulstanding bank overdrafis,
Caosh and cosh equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cosh tlows can be
reconciled lo the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

2017/18 206/17

£ £
Cash and Bank balances 3,184,140 3,061,827
Short Term Depaosits {considered 1o be Cash 12,259,537 15,943,841
Short Term Investments {considered o be Cash - -
Bank Overdrait - -

15,445,677 19,005,648
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' Cash Flow Statement: Operating Activities

2017/18

2016/17

The cash Hlows from operating activities include: £ £
Interest received 30,800 56,832
Interest paid 2,449,600 2,535,549

Cuash flows from Investing Aclivities

2017/18
£

Purchase of PP&E, investment property and intangible assels

{14.037.41 6}

[Purchase of Shorf Term Investments [nof considered 1o be

Purchase of Long Term Investments

Qther Paymenis for Invesiing Activities

intangible assels

Proceeds from Short Term Investments [not considered to be

Proceeds from Long Term Invesiments

Capital Grants and Contributions Received

5,605,848

3,946,520

Other Receipts from Investing Activities

74,800

Net Cash flows from Investing Activities

(8.431,548)

(2,083,837)

[-3 Cash flows from Financing Actlivities 2017/18 2014/17

£ £
Cash Receipts from Short and Lang Term Borowing 4,774,000 2,667,600
Other Receipls from Financing Activities B - -
Cash payments for the reduction of the oulstanding liability - &
Repayment of Shart and Long Term Bomowing {3,086,466) [2,964,193)
Other payments for Financing Activities 4- - -
Net Cash flows from Financing Activities 1,687,534 {296.5%3)

115



Derry City and Strabane District Council
Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Date of Authorisation for Issue

The Chief Financial Officer authorised these Financial Statements for issue on 24 September 2018,

ancial Officer



